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Directors and Corporate Information
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Board of Directors

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yaulai LO

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
M:. lain F. BRUCE

Mr. Jan P S. ERLUND

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myma Mo-ching LO
Ms. Yvonne Modling LO

Executive Directors

Mr. Llaurence P. EISENTRAGER
Mr. Eric Fat YU [refired on 1st April, 2012)

Company Secretary
Ms. Paggie Ah-hing TONG

Qualified Accountant
Ms. Kitty Kiryi FUNG

Registered & Head Office

No. T Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Auditors
KPMG
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The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China Limited

Westpac Banking Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

Rabobank International Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., lid.
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Stephenson Harwood
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Directors and Corporate Information
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Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Website Addresses

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
— www.vitasoy.com (English & Chinese)
— www.vitavitasoy.com (Chinese only)

Vitaland Services Limited
— www.vitaland.com.hk (English & Chinese)

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
— www.hkgourmet.com.hk (English & Chinese|

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and
Beverage Company Limited

Vitasoy (Shanghai] Company Limited

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited

— www.vitasoy-chn.com (Chinese only)

Vitasoy Australia Products Phy. Lid.
— www.vitasoy.com.au (English only]

Vitasoy USA Inc.
— www.vitasoy-usa.com (English only)

Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited
— www.unicurd.com.sg (English only)

Investor Relations Contact

Tel: (852) 2468 9644
Fax: (852) 2465 1008
Email: ir@vitasoy.com

Key Dates

Closure of Register of Members for the purpose of entitlement to
affend and vote af the Annual General Meeting:
24th August, 2012 (Friday) to
28th August, 2012 (Tuesé\i]y)

Annual General Meeting:
at 3:00 p.m., 28th August, 2012 (Tuesday),
Harcourt Room, lower lobby, Conrad Hong Kong,
Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong

Closure of Register of Members for the purpose of entitlement to
the Final Dividend:
4ih September, 2012 (Tuesday) fo
7th September, 2012 (Friday)

Final Dividend Payable:
18th September, 2012 (Tuesday)
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Financial Highlights
HA TS e

Year Ended 31st March HZ = A=+—HILFE

E
Results 345 2012 2011
HKS$ million HK$ million % Change
EEEET BEBET BALLEH
Turnover B 3,717 3,329 12
Gross Profit EH 1,760 1,601 10
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest REFFEHA
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, BEMA - BB -
Depreciation and Amortisation, TEREHER
and Impairment Losses on LA K B FE B EE
Property, Plant and Equipment] RERT & A 554 537 3
Profit Attributable to Equity AR AR A
Shareholders of the Company iyl 281 284 (1)
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) FRERZEF GBWL) 27.5 27.9 (1)
Total Dividends per BIRERIRAERE
Ordinary Share [HK cents) GBI 18.3 18.3 =

Year Ended 31st March BHE=A=+—HIFE
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Starting from FY 2010/2011, certain expenses were reclassified
to reflect more appropriately the nature of the expenses (see note
33 to the financial statements).
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Financial Highlights
HAF5

At 31st March R=A=+—H

Financial Position BAFEAkA 2012 2011
HKS$ million HK$ million % Change
BEEERT BEBHETT At EE
Total Assets BEE 2,936 2,654 11
Net (Borrowings)/Cash Balance (BE)/Re T8 (191) 89 N/ A iE A
Total Equity Attributable to Equity RNRFRERE A
Shareholders of the Company JEML R AR ER 1,494 1,416 6

Year Ended 31st March, 2012 HE—T——F=ZA=+—HILFE

Sales Analysis by Categories

WHEBES (RERES) o 3%
7 "z Q% 5%}
51%
\

@ Soymilk T4 @ Dairy Milk 4}
‘ Tea 4% ‘ Distilled Water 2% 887K
‘ Tofu B8 ‘ Juice Drinks S5+ 8%

Lunch Box and Snacks ‘ Others EAth
TREEaM IR

Sales Analysis by Locations

SHEBED T (HE)

‘ Hong Kong and Macau &7 R

‘ Mainland China # B A

‘ North America 3£3EM

‘ Australia and New Zealand B K37 78 28
‘ Singapore FT AN
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Leveraging on our new
plant capacity in Foshan,
Southern China, we will
go deep and go wide to
expand our distribution
channels and widen our
territorial foothold in
Mainland China.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Despite a relatively difficult and volatile macroeconomic
environment, we were able fo strengthen our foothold and
delivered solid results for FY2011/2012. Economic slowdown
in major markets had a negafive impact on consumer spending
while competition among brands and across categories remained
intense. Inflationary pressure and rising wages posed strong
challenges to operating overheads. In spite of these challenges,
all of our business operations recorded growth in top line sales,
complemented by effective sales and marketing campaigns.
We strived fo protect margins through cautious and effective
pricing strafegy and conscienfious cost management. Our major
capacity enhancement projects in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Australia have been conducted smoothly. We expect our
substantial investment in enhancing capacity will help generate
higher return for our shareholders in the long run.

For the year under review, the Group registered a steady growth
of 12% in total turnover with profit from operations relatively
maintaining at last year level. Profit affributable to shareholders
was HK$281 million, a drop of 1% versus prior year mainly due
fo the increased finance costs associated with the investment in
enhancing production capacity.

The Board of Directors is recommending a final dividend of
HK15.1 cents per ordinary share at the Annual General Meeting
on 28th August, 2012. This, coupled with the interim dividend
of HK3.2 cents per ordinary share, brings the Company’s tofal
dividend for FY2011,/2012 to HK18.3 cents per ordinary share
[(2010/2011 tofal dividend: HK18.3 cents per ordinary share|.

BELRBEERIZRN NN S - BAIDEE
IREE R-T——/ - _FHFE
BSIREEE - AR T EMSNEEERR
R FEHEBERX  NLmERREERF
BEFHR MBREOLBGZ ERNTE
NRRERHRNERES - BAHEEL
B - BEEBARNEERT SRR -
BAEXRG D B GHEER - RARN
FERAMNEEREREZORANEE - &
NHEFRE - B - PEIRM SORM A AT
R BT IBFETT - RiEMF - A
BEHRREFTEERMENERRE - HABRR
HRE SRR

REEFEE NEBNREERBEER
12% & BMNABHEREFKYE - BRRIE
6% A B % 281,000,000 * |REFT
B1% TEHNRERTERBRBMSR
HIBRE A AIB INPTER

FEreEanN —_E——FENA -+ N\HET
MBREBAFARS ERERBRESR TR
1517381 - ERBIRZEN T RS TR
LB 3.2BMW > ARAIR —_E—— /=&
——HBEENEEREABESREER
1838 (ZF2—F/ 22— UHREER
B glRE®BR18.381) -







Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

We not only expanded our businesses in a sustainable manner,
but we also continued to contribute fo the environment by adopting
energy-saving measures and advanced wasfe treatments in our
operations. The recovery of Okara [soya bean residue] project
has been proven successful in our North American operation.
Our new plant in Foshan in Mainland China was designed with
a strong environmentally care concept. We continued to upgrode
our trucks and machineries with lower emission models and higher
efficiency. Our initiafives o support the communifies and protect
the environment are listed in the “"Corporate Responsibility Report”
section of this Annual Report.

During the year, we adopt a prudent approach on growing our
team. We run a company-wide staff caring program to promote
physical fitness so that our staff can maintain a healthy workdife
balance and deliver their best performance. VWe continue our
succession planning process fo ensure a steady stream of high-
calibre managers for sound corporate development.

L]

vitasoy PLIR
SOVAREAN r% RACT
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Outlook

In the year ahead, the present uncertain economic conditions
will continue and consumer spending may take time fo recover.
The operating environment will only be more challenging with
continuing cost inflation, a volatile employment environment and
increasingly competfitive market landscape. The Company will
persevere by continuing with our focused business strategy and
driving business growth through leveraging our capabilities in core

areas.

FY2012/2013 will be an important growth phase for the future
of the Company following the completion of our three major
capacity expansion projects. We believe our business will
continue to benefit from favourable global trends for healthy and
onthe-go lifestyles. Building on our years of technical know-how
and efforts in research, we are poised to benefit from the strong
consumer frends for natural ingredients and plant sourced nutrition.
We will adhere to our uncompromising philosophy in quality
standards. Our goal is to lead the growth in target categories and

RE

RERF - FFREBTHANLERRE S
R HBEERX O HRE o BEEKATE
Bk MERBRBRHIGHET AR
RERFBEGARRE - FIARMEROE
BOES - ARBGREF TR IHETEIEN
ERERAE MIEBRIFIEE -

BEE=EEXRERRATBREIKE  —F
— =/ TR CHBFEEREARAER
ARERMEZEE - BAEE - KREXER
REBEXENEIRERBRERRERINE
BIER AR R - BEZFREEMME L
MR AL ) - RS RERNHEES
HAAKODMREENEERBOKNBY -
BARRABESENRTES  RAFNEER
BIFEMMEBERASRTEHEFERED
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

fo strengthen our brand equity through product and promotional
innovation. Meanwhile, we will follow the channel development
frend to ensure that our brands are always available wherever our
consumers shop.

Vitasoy is committed to creafing shareholder value, as we have
always been. We achieve this by growing our shares in our key
markets, pursuing sustainable growth, and driving for continuous
improvement in efficiency and productivity. VWe remain optimistic
and confident about achieving a sustainable growth in the long
term, despite the challenges in protecting our shortterm profit
base.

Notes of Appreciation

Despite the various challenges in the FY2011/2012, we
delivered solid performance in our various businesses, for which
I would like to thank the Board of Directors for their counsel and
guidance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On reaching the refirement age, Mr. Eric Fat YU resigned from REREFABERAZE BHH-_T——F
the Board as Executive Director and from the Group as Senior MA-HRREEEFENATEZRAEHE
Director, Manufaciuring and Project Management with effect from VEMeE (EEBHEBEER) Big - AA
1st April, 2012. On behalf of the Board, | would like fo thank Mr. ERERESEARLERTIROHE - BH
YU for his loyalty and valuable contribution during an illustrious fEBE=T \FHEENRLRT - BB
tenure of 38 years and to wish him all the best. R%Z  HUEVREEZERHL

| also wish to thank our shareholders, customers and business PO - RABURORFSURE - BF K
pariners for their continued support. Last but not least, | must extend EBRHENRNZF - K& - AAHEER
my heartfelt appreciation to all my colleagues whose dedication, FRRHE - BURENRORE - 8IER
ingenuity and hard work have been and will remain crucial fo the HEBETE  HARRANKNERER -

Company’s continuing success.

Winston Yau-lai LO ERE
Executive Chairman HITEE
21stJune, 2012 —E2-——-FAXA=+—H
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Irreplaceable Taste

We will maximise
the return on the new
production capacity as
well as expand our
market presence by
growing the aseptic
category and
penetrating the
plastic bottled drinks
segment in Hong Kong.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report

RETHAERRE

We finished the year achieving a solid business result, with net
sales growth across all major operations, against a backdrop of
increased commodity prices, wages, fuel and other operational
costs. Despite having manufacturing capacity consfraints in almost
all markets, our goal of growing the top line and bottom line was
realised by focused marketing campaigns, proactive channel
promotions and new product and packaging development.

The year marked a new phase for Vitasoy's sustainable growth.
Our investment plans for significantly expanding production
capacity have progressed smoothly with a new plant in Foshan,
Southern China, and a new packaging line in Hong Kong, both
of which began operation in the third quarter of the year. The
expansion program for our Australian production capacity will be
completed in the first half of FY2012,/2013. These three projects
represent more than two years of planning and resourcing to bring
fo reality.

Financial Highlights
Net Sales Revenue

e The Group's net sales revenue was HK$3,717 million

(2010/2011: HK$3,329 million), up 12% yearonvyear.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

e Gross profit for the year was HK$1,760 million
(2010/2011: HK$1,601 million), up HK$159 million or
10%. Through effective pricing strategy fo counteract the
increasing cost pressure, we managed to sustain a healthy

gross profit margin at 47% (2010/2011: 48%).

HAREMER - TE - B REMEERAR
Bk FREMNEHRRRE  SETEX
BOHEFREEMER - BELTAE™
SARINEEERRINTE  BfEBE
TSRS - BIRHRE RN KL
BHEMMEFEE  EMERHEEKRF
BAMERHBRE -

NEEEFERMINEBMBASFEL RO
B2 - RMABBAEENKATSERIE
B DRIREREBLERIRE RN E SR
BENBREER  UWMBECEAFES=
THBIRE - BNOERELAZER-Z
—Z/ZE—CHRFEEEFREK - AL
—AEERLEBAMTES  KBAEH
BERMEER o

IRE
HEWAFEE

e AXAEBEHEBEUAFBEREEYK
3,717,000,000t (=& —F/ =%
——FE B%3,329,000,0007T)
BEEFH12%

EFNRERNZR

o AFEEMERNREEI,760,000,000
T(—F—F/-F-—EF B
#1,601,000,0007T) + k F+ & ¥
159,000,0007T3% 10% ° & BB M &
EEER UM ERA LROED - B
PIBE R S M5 704760 BERKF (=
T/ T —EE:48%)




Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report

RETHAERRE

Operating Expenses

e Total operating expenses increased 14% to HK$1,375
million (2010/2011: HK$ 1,208 million] as we continued
fo invest in brand building, improve management structure in
Mainland China, expand production capacity and upgrade

production lines.

®  Markefing, selling and distribution expenses were HK$878
million, up 13%.

e Administrative expenses increased 13% to HK$277 million.

e Other operating expenses were HK$220 million, an
increase of 20% primarily due to one-off pre-operating
expenses related to the new plant in Mainland China and
production line enhancement in Hong Kong.

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income,
Finance Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation, and Impairment Losses on
Property, Plant and Equipment)

° EBITDA for the year was HK$554 million (2010/2011:
HK$537 million), up 3%. EBITDA margin to net sales was
15%, versus 16% for the same period last year.

KEEH

o ARBEMSERENREEY =
RE R EERE - BAELEREA
HEERE BEEBRIEMIA%ER
#1,37500000T (& —F/
—T——FF B 1,208,000,000
JT) e

e HE HELIHERREY
878,000,000 7T * EF+13% °

o TTHERIEM13%ZEHE 277,000,000
7TE o

o HtEZEMKE® 220,000,000
JT EFH20%  E2RFEANMBEH
EMEMRABELEERGSMEL
B —RMERENFX -

RETREWA ~ BERA ~ 5
B TERBEERUNEEER
ERERZEF ([EBITDA])

o  ANEEMEBITDA A 554,000,000
T(ZE—T /T ——FE HBK
537,000,0007T) * £ F+3% ° EBITDA
1HEHEREE 5% HERBRIA16% -




Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report
RETTHARES

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the AR BRERFE ARGER
Company

. For the year ended 31st March, 2012, profit affributable o HE_ET——F=ZA=+—801#F

to equity shareholders of the Company dropped 1% to B RRBIREREE ARMLRAT %
HK$281 million (2010/2011: HK$284 million). The 1% ZE%1# 281,000,000 (ZE—F
decrease was mainly due fo the impact of higher financing /=T ——%FF : %% 284,000,000
costs associated with the Group's major capifal investments. TT) M TREBRAEEREEAKN

BARIEE MIB A E A

Financial Position B AR R

e As at 31st March, 2012, the Group had available e R-ETE—-—HF=ZFA=+—H &%
banking facilities of HK$ 1,099 million (31st March, EaHHANETEEREABEK
2011: HK$986 million) and a net borrowings of HK$ 191 1,099,000,000 (ZE——F = A
million (31st March, 201 1: a net cash balance of HK$89 =+—H8 : #%¥986,000,0007T) &
million] primarily for the planned investment in the Group's EEFREREE191,000,0007T (=
production capacifies. T-——F=-A=t—H:RLFEAR

A 89,000,0007T) - FBAERE
REEBIRFTERRT S -
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report

RETHAERRE

Total borrowings for the Group (including obligations under
finance lease) amounted to HK$398 million (3 1st March,
2011: HK$274 million).

The gearing ratio {fofal borrowings/fotal equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company) dropped from the
peak of 41% in the interim period to 27% at year end (3 1st
March, 2011: 19%) as the Group continued to repay the
bank loans through cash inflow from operations.

Capital expenditure incurred in the year totalled HK$426
million (2010/2011: HK$511 million), which was funded
by both cash inflow from operations and bank loans. The
various major capacity expansion projects are almost
complefed.

Assets with a carrying value of HK$15 million
(2010/2011: HK$21 million) were held under finance
leases.

AEEMNEEE(ERREMRE
B & %) &/ & %398,000,0007T
—E-—H=ZRA=+—RH: &%
274,000,0007T) °

HARAEBEEEEBEEBED AT
REeEERITER REELE (&
EERBEEARNBRERA ARMN
REBBLXRFE) AT MRS
4% TREFRN2/%(ZFE——F=
A=+—H:19%) -

REEHFENERETHAHARER
426,000,000t (Z T —ZF /=%
——FE HB¥S511,000,0007T)
X HAEBEB D BAERS LR
TEREN MEXTRETELER
ERBGERK

RIFREMENEE  RRE/ER
15,000,000 (= &2—%/ ZF——
FE - B 21,000,0007T) °



Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report
RETTHARES

Financial Risk Management

Our financial management focuses on controlling and
managing risks, with transactions being directly related
fo our underlying businesses. We operate a central cash
and treasury management system for all our subsidiaries.
Borrowings are normally faken out in local currencies by
operafing subsidiaries to fund and partially hedge their
investments.

The financial risks faced by the Group arise mainly from
the fluctuation of interest rafes and exchange rates. We use
financial instruments, where appropriate, fo manage those

risks. At the end of FY2011,/2012, we had no exposures

under foreign exchange contracts or financial derivatives.

I EREE

BT EREEEREREZE
% MERSWAERMHMERES
BEEBE BARMEMNBARE
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report
RETTHARES

Operation Review FTEIRE
Hong Kong and Macau BB REM
Growth in both sales and profit, out-performing local ~ #HER ZF1TZIER - ZHERK
industry bifETE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B--F —T——F —F--F T %
HKS$ million HKS$ million % Change Group Contribution %
EREERL B¥EST BonE HAKESHRES
Revenue from external REIEEFZ
customers WA 1,672 1,530 9 45 46
Profit from operations Fed=bagl 321 285 13 64 57

. The non-alcoholic beverage sector in Hong Kong showed o FRNEBRAEE F=LBER

moderate growth in value and in volume because of the Lo SIEERBERTEEHERE R
favourable weather with less rain and typhoons. HEN EHHSRMIER

®  The operation recorded 9% growth in sales, outperforming o  ERFOUHBIER  REENITE
the industry average. FIGIKF o

e Strong brand equity and effective marketing programs for o  RIYHWMMEE - 0 L HEME RN
flagship brands such as VITASOY and VLT [VITA Lemon Tea) il 373 & VLT (M ftb 12 1525 ) 5 2 dm P 1
have reinforced cusfomer loyalty. HevmsHEE 8T - HAMERE

BEFHEHE -




Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report

RETHAERRE

A number of new products in “low sugar” category such as
VITASOY Low-sugar Pure Soya Bean Extract and VITA Low-
sugar Lemon Tea were launched to meet consumer demand
for healthy lifestyle products.

Facility upgrade at Tuen Mun plant, including the operation
of high speed machines and installation of a new PET
[Polyethylene terephthalate) plastic bottled drinks production
line, to enhance manufacturing efficiency was finished and
commissioned.

Export sales grew 11% yearonyear and Macau recorded
an impressive sales growth of 15%.

School tuck shop business operated by Vitaland Services
limited achieved a net sales growth of 9% to HK$294
million and expanded its market share by growing the
portfolio of tuck shops to over 300.

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited, the Group’s central kitchen
for providing student lunch meals and catering services,
continued to gain recognition with increasing refention rafe.

RABHEEHERRELEEMD
TR RS ERE] FER - HlE0
MR WYENEAL S A S M R A -

LPIBEDEKRIERTHE - 21
ZRBBREERBLBRZHPET (R
HE_F®R B 2BRERS
EER WORIGERF RALEXN

HOEERFE ETT11% BPFINEE
TEREIER15% °

F A 1 K AR A B PR A RIS 2 A0 22 4R
NREPEIGERIG 0% IHE FRIEREE
#294,000,0007T ' NREE B B
# 300 - MSMBEIFAMEK

BEXRARAR  (ERAKEHE
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RETTHARES

Mainland China B A 3
Solid sales growth under a challenging environment, TEZHE T FEEHERER -
with enhanced brand awareness and new plant an ERFEFEH R FTIR 5 18
launched
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —T——F —F--F —T——F
HKS$ million HK$ million % Change Group Contribution %
AEREET BfEET Bot#E GEREESRE S
Revenue from external REINERERZ
customers WA 1,014 854 19 27 26
Profit from operations il 90 110 (18] 18 22

e Operating environment in Mainland China became more o FEHAMK-ZT——/T—_#K

challenging in FY2011/2012, and the country’s GDP FENKERFARNE  BRNEE
recorded a slower growth. For nutritious drinks, consumption BEEBRNE Z2B8RMBBERN
growth slowed significantly. RIEREE ©
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Gross margin was protected through a measured pricing
strategy to counteract the enormous pressure from escalating
raw material prices, higher labour, social welfare and fuel
cost.

The drop in operating profit was mainly due to one-off pre-
operating expenses for the new Foshan plant as well as
increased markefing investment for a Brand Repositioning
Campaign in Eastern China.

Strong brand building and innovative marketing efforts
helped fo sustain the leadership position in the soymilk
market and to compete strongly against nufritional
beverages such as milk.

Sales expansion in Southern China has been cautious
because of production capacity constraint at Shenzhen
plant. The new Foshan plant that started operation in late
2011 would enable us to have a better customer reach af
lower cost.

A large scale advertising campaign with the theme of “I am
who | am” focusing on the unique faste of VITASOY was
launched in March 2012 in Eastern China to drive sales
fowards achieving critical mass.

A new VITASOY soy drink in "Pleasant Goat and Big Big
Wolf" packaging received good response, while VITA Lime
Llemon Tea targeting young people has achieved strong
growth for the Llemon Tea brand.
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Australia and New Zealand BN # TS
Sales growth under capacity constraint, aided by FEREZELHA  #HZERRHE
positive foreign exchange B ERFIER
2012 2011 2012 2011
- —T——F —F--F —T——F
HKS$ million HKS$ million % Change ~ Group Contribution %
BEEET AKEET BolE EXEEERE S
Revenue from external REINEEFZ
customers WA 499 445 12 14 13
Profit from operation =Ygl 88 Q0 (2) 17 18

° The Australian and New Zealand retail sectors showed . BN AEEEENEREEFRK
sluggish growth versus the previous year with food prices in 35 BAERIBEES -
a deflationary trend.

e The market and financial performances were impacted o ITEITENEREEREBBIMNEE

by an industrial action and operational complexity amidst R - BB B ) T R0 A U
the plant capacity expansion project. This had disrupted K TEE="FNHEMEEMR -
production capability and impacted manufacturing efficiency KB METERIR -

which negatively affected sales and manufacturing costs
during the third quarter.

e The fourth quarter productivity had improved a lot with o BBEIMBHEIE RMEEBBE
concerted efforts towards employee engagement and B#aER - FUNERNEENE KR
project finalisation. H& o
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Recent entry into the liquid Breakfast segment with VITAGO
brand will top info the onthe-go market and provide a new
impetus for growth.

VITASOY CAFE FOR BARISTAS Soymilk confinued its growth
in the Specialty Coffee Channel.

Media and sampling campaign focusing on heart health
was launched to educate the consumers on the health
benefits of soy and o grow the category.

Net sales increased 12% to HK$499 million mainly due fo
the favourable foreign exchange rates.

Operating profit dropped by 2% to HK$88 million due to

increase in labour costs during the factory upgrade phase.

Capacity expansion project to double the existing

production capacity of our Wodonga plant will be

completed in the first half of FY2012,/2013.
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North America 1t M
Steady sales growth, operational efficiency affecting HERTIER  EENFZERF
profitability BEL
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B--F —T——F —F--F T %
HKS$ million HKS$ million % Change ~ Group Contribution %
EREERL B¥EST Aon#E HAKESHRESE
Revenue from external KENEEFZ
customers KA 455 434 5 12 13
Profit from operation il 1 12 (Q0) 0

e Despite the confinued soft economy in the US, the North o HAEERBRBEFEKS  ALENM

American operation recorded sales growth in core products BB HERR - ZK - M

including Tofu, Asian Pasta and Asian Imported Beverages, MR NIHE RS M5 E ORISR

attributable fo a favourable product mix. DERAEmMmESEABEMERSH
BER -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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Vitasoy USA's NASOYA Tofu, which is positioned as an
organic brand, largely outperformed industry growth in
terms of dollar sales and market share in the mainstream
market.

New products including NASOYA TOFUPLUS brand of
nutritionally-enriched Tofu and Vacuum-packed Tofu were
well received.

Profitability was severely hindered by operational
inefficiencies caused by machine breakdown, unexpected
downtime due to two instances of severe weather
conditions, higher labour costs because of weekend work
fo catch up production, and escalating transportation costs.
Various corrective steps were taken fo oddress these issues
and operational efficiencies are expected 1o be significantly
better in the coming year.
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ESIMIIE

KHREFE  ZRBEEERESE

Singapore
Stable performance, impacted by a tough operating

environment

2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-F —T—% —F--F —T——%
HKS$ million HKS$ million % Change ~ Group Contribution %

BEEERT AKE8T BoEH EXEEERE S

Revenue from external RKEIMNEEEZ
customers WA 76 66 16 2 2
Profit from operation HR A F 5 6 (20) 1 ]

Despite the slowdown in the Singaporean economy
in FY2011/2012, Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited
["Unicurd”) recorded strong sales growth in most of its
domestic channels, atiributed to channel expansion into
restaurants and wet markets, sampling promotion and
product innovation.

Sales growth in supermarkets and resfaurants were the key
growth driver.

TOFUPLUS, which is a new line of tofu product with added

nutrients, was well received.

Operating profit dropped mainly due fo the market
constraint on price adjustments, which was not able to
recoup the cost increase.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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Outlook and Strategy

In view of the economic uncertainty and market volatility,
FY2012/2013 will continue to be challenging. With the
completion of capacity expansion and upgrade projects in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Australia, the Group is well
positioned for further growing its business. We will capitalise on
our new production facilities in these markets and enhance our
sales and marketing efforts to capture new business opportunities.
It is also our goal to protect profit margin through driving
productivity and cautious price strafegy.

Hong Kong

e We will maximise the refurn on the new production capacity
as well as expand our market presence with a deeper
penetration info plastic bottled drinks segments.

e We will continue fo leverage our brand equity and creative
promotion around consumption occasions to improve market
share and consolidate market position.

Mainland China

e Our new Foshan plant has provided impetus for growth.
We will further penetrate the market by expanding our
distribution channels and widening our ferritorial foothold.

e Our primary focus in Southern China is to expand the
soymilk category while in Eastern China we will strive to
reach a crifical mass by sfrong brand building efforts.

Australia and New Zealand

e The focus will be to lead the category growth with
enhanced product range.

e We are well positioned for further our market leadership
following the completion of the Wodonga plant capacity
expansion program.

e We expect growth from VITAGO in the liquid Breakfast
market.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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North America

e We will focus on addressing the business challenges while
infensifying the drive on core products.

e leveraging our market leadership, we will develop new
offerings and adopt innovative marketing communication
initiatives fo reach a broader array of consumers.

Singapore

e The operating environment remains difficult with a slowing
economy and rising labour cosfs.

e We successfully adjusted our sales price in March 2012. It
is expected that Unicurd will continue its growth momentum
shown foward the fourth quarter of last year and focus on
product innovation, sampling and sales execution.

Conclusion

The Group achieved strong results in FY2011,/2012 despite the
less than positive market environment, as well as the challenges of
capacity expansion while continuing operations. This year is the
culmination of two years of investment ensuring the ability for the
Group to grow in the coming years. Management will now turn its
aftention to further building brand strength, quality of our products
and profitable growth.

Our ability to provide this solid performance was a result of
constant focus to product quality, market leading innovation and
excellent customer and consumer dedication by the Vitasoy teams
in all our operations. | would like to thank and congratulate every
Vitasoy employee and our management for their energy and
support throughout the year, as well as the ongoing support from
our Board of Directors.

Laurence P. EISENTRAGER
Group Chief Executive Officer
21st June, 2012
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1. Employees and Development

Nurturing our People

Our human resources strategy aims at recruiting and
refaining the best people for business growth and
development. In building our workforce, an important part
of our focus is on fostering a pool of potential leaders
and managers, which can lead the Company to grow.
During the year, fo cope with business expansion and
development, our fotal workforce increased 9.9%, mainly
due fo the new recruitment for the new Foshan plant. As at
31st March, 2012, the total number of fulliime employees
was 3,641.

Training and Development

During the year, we designed and implemented training
and development programs fo foster the commitment and
development of our employees in our various operations
worldwide. The program focus ranged from developing
technical skills to realise the employee’s growth potential.
We launched a company-wide caring program to
promote the physical and psychological wellbeing for our
employees, and to help them maintain a good work-life
balance. It also aimed to promote harmony and respect
among feams such that everyone can deliver his/her
best performance. During the year, nearly 1,300 training
programs were conducted across the different operations
with over 10,000 attendances.

In Hong Kong, we continued a quality enhancement
platform known as "WIN Planet” for employees
at all levels in order to foster a corporate culture
for continuous improvement. One of our work
improvement projects also received the "Creating
Best Value” Award in an industry sharing platform —
"Quality Improvement & Experience Sharing Convention
201 1" where over 10 local organisations participated. This
is a festimony to our commitment on promoting workplace
improvement.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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Talent Management

We continued our Talent Management Scheme and
succession planning for high-quality managers to prepare
them for future corporate development. In Hong Kong,
we rolled out a management training program by which
university graduates were recruited fo undergo a three year
on-the-job training activities. The first batch of graduates
had complefed their training and had been assigned to
operational jobs and functions.

Promoting Safety and Health

It is our priority to provide and ensure a safe and healthy
working environment for our employees. The Occupational
Safety and Health Committees, which comprise senior
management and technical staffs from various operations,
are responsible for constantly reviewing and improving
safety and work condition in the workplace. The committees
carry out regular risk assessments at work sites, esfablishing
policies and guidelines for safety and health improvement,
taking corrective measures where necessary, and providing
regular and infensive staff training on work safety and

health.

Environmental Protection

For a few years, we have been reviewing our utility
consumption in our production facilities. Since then, we
have implemented a waste management scheme to record
wasfage levels. We have also launched a series of energy-
saving and environmental care programs whereby we
implemented measures on the conservation of water,
electricity, fuel, and packaging materials at our planfs.
The high speed packaging and processing machines we
purchased for the production capacity expansion programs
in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Australia have higher
energy efficiency.
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Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, we aimed af reducing the carbon footprint in
our production line. Aseptic cold filling equipment is used in
the new plastic bottled drinks packaging line so that we can
use lighter PET botfles for environmental friendly purposes.
We entered into a competition on “Fuel Save Challenge”
organised by an infernational fuel company. Among 350
contesfants from 55 local companies, we were one of the
top three performers with our fleet saving up to 20% of fuel
within 5 months. VWe also promoted energy saving culture
in the workplace by sefting up the “Energy Saving Unit" for
lightsaving in the offices. We also cultivated the awareness
on environmental profection fo school children by using
reusable utensils when serving them lunch boxes.

Mainland China

In Mainland China, our plants in Shenzhen and Shanghai
used natural gasfired boilers. By using natural gas, it helped
reduce the emission of niftric oxide and nitrogen dioxide.
We also installed LED lighting, high-performing boilers, and
enhanced central airconditioning system fo reduce energy
consumption at our plants.

In our new capital investment projects in Mainland
China and Australia, we have incorporated a number of
environmental care considerations and insfalled energy and
waste-reduction facilities into the design and construction of
these facilities. For example, “green” bricks and recyclable
structural steel were used in the consfruction of the new
Foshan plant in Southemn China. The outside fence of the
plant, as well as certain tables and chairs, are all made
from high density recycled Tetra Pak packaging paper.
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Inside the Foshan plant, fibre-reinforced plastic is used for
the plant ceilings to lef in natural light; natural ventilation is
used instead of mechanical ventilators to reduce electricity
usage and double glazed glass windows are installed fo
reduce heat gain and heat loss. The waste water treatment
facility is designed to reduce 40-50% per cubic meter of
energy consumption and 60% per cubic mefer of the sludge
generated from the wasfe treatment. We also installed a
cooling and hot water recovery system designed to reduce
100m?® of daily cooling water being wasted. A 30-ton
okara (soya bean residue| fank was installed at the Foshan
plant for farmers to collect the okara as animal feed for
livestock or pouliry.

North America

The US operation initiated the recovery of Okara freatment.
Following their success, the Group planned to apply this
project in other operations for both environmental and
economic benefits. In the addition, about 75% of the coast
fo coast shipments within the US were delivered through
rail carriers rather than frucks. Also, the completion of the
compressed air energy conversion project helped take heat
from the compressors and be re-used for warming the plant
in the winter, thus reducing energy usage.

Australia

In Australia, we have incorporated a number of energy
and waste-reduction considerations info the design and
construction for our Wodonga plant expansion program.
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3. FRERE

3. Care for Our Consumers

Promoting Health and Wellbeing

Promoting consumer health and wellbeing is our number
one priority and it is achieved through the manufacturing
and distribution of a variety of high quality nufritious foods
and beverages fo our consumers worldwide.

Last year, we infroduced a range of low-sugar and nutriious
products to the consumers. We also actively promoted
healthy lifestyle and soy benefits in our major markets.
In Vitaland, our subsidiary tuck shop business in Hong
Kong, organised health talks and promoted healthy snacks
fo young consumers af schools. In Mainland China, we
organised the 2nd lightYoga Party fo promote a light and
green lifestyle. In Australia, we launched a heart health
campaign, an online healthy recipe collection and a Good
Habit Apps for smartphones fo promote healthy eating.
In the US, the virtual campus "Tofu U" website launched
in 2010 received great support from consumers and the
operation launched an onthe-go guide "AlL Things Tofu
Mobile Apps” to impart knowledge about tofu to consumers.

Focusing on Product and Service Quality

We give top priority to product quality. We commit
ourselves to continuous improvement in product and
service quality fo meet our customers’ expectation. We
have a stringent quality management system to ensure
the quality of raw materials purchased and the finished
products sold all meet our infernal requirements as well as
infernational standards. All of our plants have the Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Points [HACCP) accredifation.
Cusfomer service hotline manned by wellrained customer
service representatives is put in place in all of our business
operations.
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#HEL M

4. Community Involvement 4,

The Group is committed to supporting the community
where it operates in key areas such as education, health
and culture. Last year, we made donations fo the Hong
Kong Community Chest and sponsored various large-
scale charity events such as the 30-Hour Famine and
Hong Kong Infernational Dragon Boat Carnival. Over
4,000 packs of VITASOY soymilk products were given tfo
candidates who sat for the first public examination under
the new Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education
[HKDSE) to show our support to them. Our employees once
again participated in Walk Up Jardine House and Oxfam
Trail Walker 2011 to help raise fund for the needy. The
Mainland China operation donated educational materials
and stationery to primary schools in Guangzhou and
Shanghai on Children’s Day. We proactively promoted
a "Healthier People for a Healthier Community” through
sponsoring a number of community activiies in the Albury-
Wodonga area in Australia. In the US, we donated our
tofu products to Boston Food Bank and Whole Planet
Foundation to alleviate poverty in third world countries.
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Awards and Recogpnitions
e

Major Awards of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited from 1st April,
2011 to the Date of this Annual Report

HMDMEIREERRABDN -F——FNA—BEXFHRBHILFRE
FRIEIR

CORPORATE {2

Vitasoy International
P2 GO WINNER

Vitasoy Group's 2010/2011 annual report won “Gold Award” in the “Annual Reports — EXCELLENCE I DEIIGH

Corporate — Traditional” category in the 2011 Asfrid Awards.
HMINERE2010/201 1 FHFEE 2011 FXE Astrid Awards F [ F3 - 2% -
BHER ] 2e® -

A J

Vitasoy Infernational Holdings Limited received TVB Weekly’s “Outstanding Corporate Image
Award 2011" in Hong Kong.

HHPHFEREEERQRNEEE (TVBETNMEHEEFRAE 2011 | #I5 -

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited was recognised as “Caring Company” in the
Consumer Caring Scheme 2011 organised by GS1 Hong Kong.

HHPBEREEBRARNEEEERRBHERAREE [BORE] -

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverages Company Limited was awarded
"Marketing Activities Award” and “Brand Value Award” in the 2nd China Beverage “Bev-
Model” Competition.

RIS ) R AR A RIESE R BESREHTHE "BevModel” M#5EE)
RNBEMEE -
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Awards and Recogpnitions
e

Singapore Unicurd

The Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary Unicurd Food Co. (Private] Limited was awarded
the Food Safety Excellence Awards “A” Grading from Singapore’s Agrifood & Veterinary
Autherity for fifteenth consecutive years.
HEDN2EMNBARR - REARAREETLFESHIKEZRREHERR
BRYLEEHAE -

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY # & &2 &

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited was awarded the “Honorable Award in the
Fundraising — Public Category” and the Champion in the Business Associate Men’s Section

of Walk Up Jardine House.

HPBEREEERARNREFEY [BELLRE] PES [BEERRERE —
REE] K EEBHEFAIEE -

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited received the Caring Company logo from the Hong
Kong Council of Social Services for the eighth times.

HRPDEREEGRARSE N\ FEEAHSRBHERE [MARMIE] R -

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited received the “Prime CSR Award 2012" from Metro
Publication.

M BIFR SR BB R AR (M R 783 [CSREFHAAE] -

Vitasoy Infernational Holdings Limited was awarded the “Corporate Social Responsibility
Awards 2012 from Capital Magazine and Capital VWeekly for the third consecutive years.

HEPBEBREEBERIREEE = FE (BAMD) R(BEA—R) BE etz
BEKRSE] #IF -

Vitasoy Infernational Holdings Limited received the “Prime Awards for Eco-Business
Award 2012" from Metro Publication.

MBI E AR AR CE A i) 83 [RRBEE] -
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Awards and Recogpnitions
e

BRAND & h#

VITASOY

VITASQY received “Yahoo! Emotive Brand Awards” for the ninth consecutive years in Hong
Kong.
MBS BN FEEE [Yohoo! RRIFmIEAHE] -

VITASOY's Usage Campaign (2nd wave] was awarded Gold Award of Kam Fan Awards
in "Craft — Design / Art Direction” and “Crafts — lllusfration” categories by HK4As.

MY [T~ SR BEREBRENERSE [T8H — Rt/ %)
RIT#E —mE| eNESKE -

VITASOY has achieved outstanding sales performance in past year and has won “Top
Brands Category Award” from 7-Eleven.
BBMNEFEINGRLOHERBRILRE 711 EHERS [HEALRRARE - K

iR e

VITASOY's Usage Campaign received the “Best Branding Award” in MARKies Awards
2012 by Marketing Magazine.

MY [ AR ED LT ~ BRAEMAD ] B R (Markeling) 37522789 2012 MARKies 218
REP AT [RERERTAE] -

- B (826 ]
| £qtia
VITASOY China was awarded one of the “2006-2011 Classic Beverages” from China ‘
(Shanghai] Beverages and Instant Drinks Carnival Committee, Shanghai Beverages % &
Association, Shanghai Yangpu Commercial Association and Shanghai Evening Post. R0
#MFEECBICHE (| LS| RBARBFEAZE - LEDRIEE - LB R mash
FEBE g R GAEBR) - BE % [2006 - 201 1 L HER R AH] -
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Awards and Recogpnitions
e

VITASOY China was on the list of Shenzhen Daily’s “Best low Carbon Beverages” and
rafed as the best beverages by Shenzhen consumers.

AP EEE CRINBR) RYREHREFDEEAREEE - K [RIIxELEE
[ GRI

VITASOY China was voted as one of “The Favourite Drinks of Million Car Owners in
Shenzhen" organised by Shenzhen Commercial Daily.

HHHFREEESR ORINEHR) TRV 2011 R BEEAZEHRMAE]

Vitasoy China was awarded “The Shenzhen Citizen’s Trusted Brand 2011" organised by
Shenzhen Evening Post.

HEAL T B NEE By ORYIBRR) £ 2011 FRYITMRREENRBAME ] -

Vitasoy China was voted as “Shenzhen Citizen’s Favourite Morning Milk Brand” organised
by Jing Daily.

HMDPEEEH(RR) PN 201 FEMKHFEOBREZRITREZEE
BEEYmAE] -

VITA Lemon Tea won the “TOUCH Brand” Award from East Touch Magazine.
HIEEIE CRTouchBT) 183 [TOUCH mA2 | 237 -

VITA lemon Tea was awarded the “FACE Brand” from Face Magazine.
it =150 (Face B T)) 73 [FACE mf# | 218 o
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Awards and Recognitions
R E S

VITA brand won the “Reader’s Digest Trusted Brands Gold Award” for the juice category in
Hong Kong.

B iR [FEEHEERES R — FERETRMRER -

SAN SUI was awarded “Top Favourite Brand” organised by
7-Eleven for the second consecutive years.

WWKEERFEER 71 REER M@ -

NASOYA

NASOYA “Wrappy Hour” was awarded “The Best Web-based Trial
Recruitment Campaign” in the Interactive Marketing Awards 2011.
NASOYA [ B2 | EEEHISHEAE 2011 F 5%
[REMESARBEIEE | #28 -

NASOYA “Super Hummus Radio Advertisement” was awarded the “Addy
Winner, National Radio 2011" organised by American Advertising Federation.
NASOYA [Super Hummus BEAEE | SREXBEEHHE [ @ -
2EHEF2011] K -

NASOVYA Black Soybean TofuPlus was awarded one of the top five new products at Expo
West.

NASOYA Black Soybean TofuPlus &% BB 4 T 5 Expo West A A& 5 $H3TE M@ ©
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Corporate Governance Practices

We are firmly committed to compliance of statutory and
regulatory corporate governance standards and adherence to the
principles of corporate governance emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairess. The
Board of Directors reviews the corporate governance practices
from time to time fo ensure alignment of inferests and expectations
from our shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March,
2012, complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

On 28th October, 2011, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”] published conclusions fo its
2010 Consuliation Paper on Review of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices ["New CG Code”) and Associated Listing
Rules. Every listed issuer should formulate a corporate governance
framework based on its own individual circumstances. The listed
issuer is also required fo disclose in ifs inferim or annual report
covering a period after 1st April, 2012 whether it has, for that
period, complied with the code provisions in the New CG Code
as well as those of the former CG Code. As part of our continuous
commitment fo high standards of corporate governance, we have
undertaken all the necessary steps to adopt and comply with the
code provisions and most of the recommended best practices sef

out in the New CG Code before 1st April, 2012,

Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees o
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the dayto-day management power of the
Company fo the Executive Directors and Senior Management of
the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is committed to the Company’s mission to creafing value
for our shareholders. The Board is responsible for developing the
strategic directions for the Company and confinuous moniforing
of the performance of the general management of the Company.
Therefore strategic planning has become a very crucial part of the
Board's function and a lot of focus and attention has been devoted
fo such a plan. Strategic planning horizons are generally three o
five years. The Board has adopted its latest Three Year Strategic
Plan for the fiscal years up fo 2014/2015 in Februory of 2012.
It is the practice of the Board to continue to review and update its
Strategic Plans for the Company on a regular basis in response
fo changes in the business environment. A Strategic Dialogue
was also held in October of 2011, during which Directors
had actively participated info the deliberation for more focused
strategic development areas of the Company.

A defined schedule of matters reserved for Board decision has
been adopted by the Board. Apart from the strategic planning,
cerfain important matfers involving finance and shareholders’
inferests are reserved for approval by the Board, including, for
example, annual budget, financial statements against budget,
dividend policy, material investments, material acquisitions and
disposals; major financing activities and appointment of Director(s)
following the recommendation(s] by the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Non-executive Directors and
two Execufive Directors. Four of the Non-executive Directors are
independent, from different business and professional fields.
The Independent Non-executive Directors represent over one-
third of the Board. The category, position and brief biographical
information of each Director, together with the relationship amongst
each other, are sef out in the “Direcfors and Senior Management”
section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company af
www.vitasoy.com. Directors, including the Independent Non-
execufive Directors and Non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for ifs efficient and effective delivery
of the Board functions.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Company has arranged Directors” and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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Changes in information of members of the Board and Board
Committee during the year ended 31st March, 2012 and up fo
the date of this Annual Report are set out below:

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ceased to be the member of Cornell
University Council on 30th June, 2011 and was appointed a life
member of Comell University Council on st June, 2012.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI resigned as a Director of
COSCO Pacific Limited.

Mr. lain F. BRUCE is a Director of China Medical Technologies,
Inc. which was delisted on 28th February, 2012

Mr. Eric Fat YU refired as an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Commitiee of the Company with effect from 1st

April, 2012.

Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

The roles of the Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Officer of the Company have been clearly defined. Mr. Winston
Yaulai LO serves as the Executive Chairman and is responsible for
providing leadership in the Board to set strategies to achieve the
Group's goals. With the support from the Executive Direcfors and
the Company Secretary, the Execufive Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly informed of issues arising at Board
meetings and provided with adequate and accurate information
in a fimely manner. The Executive Chairman promotes a culture
of openness and encourages Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs so as to contribute fo the Board's
functions and encourages Directors with different views to voice
their opinions. The Board, under the leadership of Mr. Winsfon
Yaulai LO, has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures and taken appropriate steps fo provide effective
communication with shareholders and other stakeholders.

Mr. laurence P. EISENTRAGER, the Group Chief Executive
Officer, is responsible for overall strategic planning, business
development and general management of the Group's operations.
He maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Executive Chairman
and all Directors and to keep them posted of the Company's
performance, posifion and prospects by providing to Directors a
momh|y management Updofe within a month of each month-end.

Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in fiscal year of 2011/2012 to discuss
and approve the overall business strategies, to review and monitor
the financial and operating performance of the Group and its
business units respectively, and to consider and approve the
annual budget for the Group.
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All Directors have full and timely access fo all relevant information
in relation to the Company. There are established procedures
for Directors fo seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at
the Company’s expenses.

EEFYR2HMEREESERARRZ
FIEHEBER - RAREARERFEES
RETBRENMEME (WEE) MAABLE
¥ER  BRAARFXN -

Individual attendance of each Board member at these meetings is EEgRNERZEERZLERRIIM
as follows: o

Attendance

HE=E

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUHHITES
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI THESE L+ 5/5
M. lain F. BRUCE meE L4t 4/5
M. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUND %4 5/5
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REREE 5/5
Non-executive Directors ERTEE
Ms. Myrma Mo-ching LO BREXLT 5/5
Ms. Yvonne Moling LO BRK L 4/5
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Chairman) BRESE (£FE) 5/5
Mtr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER RIZERE 5/5
Mr. Eric Fat YU (refired on 1st April, 2012) RERE (RZF——FPYH—HEME) 5/5

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
of the Company or by shareholders in a general meeting.
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as Director
in accordance with the Arficles of Association of the Company
and the Director Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures
by shareholders are published on the website of the Company.
Any Direcfor who is appointed by the Board shall refire at the next
Ceneral Meeting.

Under the letter of appointment of Non-executive Director, all the
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) of the Company are appointed for a specific term of
nof more than three years subject to re-election. Pursuant fo the
Company's current Articles of Association, all Directors are subject
fo retirement by rofation af least every three years and onethird
[or the number nearest to but not exceeding one-hird) of Directors
shall retire from office every year at the Company's Annual
General Meeting.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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Induction programs are arranged for the newly appointed
Direcfors on the general business of the Company. On
appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures, including the Terms of Reference of the Board
Committees. Directors are provided with “A Guide on Direcfors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and "Guidelines for
Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Directors as guidelines
on the general principles of duties of directors. The Company
also arranges continuous professional development program to
Directors at the expense of the Company so as to assist Direcfors
to be apprised of the lafest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory environment in which the Company conducts its
business. The training and development program would also
help refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in relation to their
performance of the roles, functions and duties of the directors of a
listed company.

Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to confinue as a
going concern. The Annual Financial Statements for 2011,/2012
are prepared on a goingconcern basis. All the new accounting
standards and policies adopted by the Company have been
thoroughly discussed and approved at the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee (formerly known as “Audit Committee”)
before adoption by the Board.

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code”] on terms no less exacting
than the required standards sef out in the Model Code for
Securifies Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies confained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. A similar code has also been
adopted by the Company for the specified group of employees
who may possess or have access fo price sensitive information.
Specific enquiries was made of all Directors and the specified
group of employees and all Directors and the specified group of
employees have confirmed compliance with the required standard
set out in the Code for the year ended 31st March, 2012.
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Evaluation of Board and Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of Board and Executive
Chairman is an essential requirement of good corporate
governance and has earlier adopted the Recommended Best
Practice of regular Board Evaluation under the New CG Code.
The obijective of the evaluation is to assess whether the Board and
Executive Chairman have adequately and effectively performed
its/his roles and fulfilled its/his responsibilities and o recommend
areas for improvement. Such evaluation is usually done once a
year.

During the year, a formal evaluation of Board and Executive
Chairman was made. All Directors had actively participated info
the whole evaluation process. The evaluation results demonstrated
that the Board performed well with a good sfructure, composition,
and mix of Directors’ knowledge and experience to deliver the
Company's objectives. The Executive Chairman has adequately
and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities
with particular strong leadership. No maijor areas of concern were
revealed in the evaluation. However, valuable recommendations
had been proposed by individual Director for continuous
improvement.

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit and Corporate Governance Commitiee and
an Executive Commitiee with specific ferms of reference.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Compensation Commitiee was established in February 1994
and was renamed as “Remuneration and Nomination Committee”
on 2nd February, 2005 with increased scope of authority. This
Remuneration and Nomination Committee now comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors and two Non-executive
Direcfors and its current members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (Chairman
M. lain F. BRUCE

M. Jan P. S. ERLUND

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO
Ms. Yvonne Moling LO

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was set up with
specific terms of reference which have been revised with reference
to the New CG Code and formally adopted by the Board on
Oth February, 2012. Terms of reference of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible fo consider and approve the remuneration packages
of Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Group,
including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses; bonus schemes
and other longterm incentive schemes, including share option and
other plans. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee also
reviews the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
recommends fo the Board on appointments of Directors.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee met twice in fiscal
year of 2011/2012. Individual attendance of each Commitiee
member at these meetings is as follows:
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Attendance
HEE

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUHHITES
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (Chairman) ZHEEL (£F) 2/2
Mr. lain F. BRUCE mELLE 2/2
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUND %4 2/2
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG REREE 2/2
Non-executive Directors FEHITES
Ms. Myrma Mo-ching LO BREXL 2/2
Ms. Yvonne Moring LO BRK L 1/2
Attendance By Invitation: PR
Executive Chairman BITER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREXE 2/2
Group Chief Executive Officer RETBAEH
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER RIEELE 2/2

Report of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has reviewed,
discussed and approved the remuneration policies, remuneration
of Senior Management including the Executive Directors and
key executives of the Group by reference to the individuals' job
responsibilities and performances, industry benchmarks and
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee has also approved the discretionary bonuses and the
grant of share options, having given due consideration fo both the
Group's financial performance and the individuals’ performances
during the year in accordance with the performance-based
compensation policy recommended by an independent consuliant.
No individual Executive Director has voted in deciding his own
remuneration.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee had reviewed
the structure, size and composition (including the mix of skills,
knowledge, professional qualification and experience of the
Directors) of the Board and considered that the existing structure,
size, composition are sufficient to complement the Company's
objectives. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee also
assessed and confirmed the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors according fo the criteria sef out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and was renamed
as "Audit and Corporate Governance Committiee” on 9th
February, 2012 with increased scope of corporate governance
duties set out in D.3.1 of the New CG Code. The Board has
delegated the corporate governance responsibilities to the Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee. lts current members
include four Independent Non-executive Direcfors, who are:

M. lain F. BRUCE (Chairman)

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND

Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG

The terms of reference have been revised with reference to the
New CG Code and have been formally adopted by the Board
on 9th February, 2012. Terms of reference of the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee are published on the websites
of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the External Auditors
and their audit fees; meetfing with the External Auditors fo discuss
the nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the interim financial
report and annual financial statements before they are submitted o
the Board; discussing problems and reservations arising from the
inferim review and final audit, and any other matters the External
Auditors may wish to discuss, and reviewing the External Auditors’
management letter and management’s response; reviewing the
internal audit programs and fo ensure co-ordination between
the Infernal and External Auditors, and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; conducting an annual review of
the adequacy of staffing of the financial reporting functions;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, fo raise concerns about the possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; ensuring
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of those matters and for appropriate follow up
action; and acting as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relations with the External Auditors.
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The Board discharges the corporate governance responsibilities
through delegation to the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee the responsibilities of developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring
the fraining and continuous professional development of Directors
and Senior Management; reviewing and monitoring the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to Directors
and employees; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the New CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee met three fimes BERRGEEARAZEEEN T —— /=%
in fiscal year of 2011/2012. Individual attendance of each ——HMBRFENLFE=X - REEEKE
Committee member af these meetings is as follows: REZEFEHZZHFEERIIMT

Attendance

HE=E

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFPITES
M. lain F. BRUCE (Chairman) mBELEE () 2/3
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI THESL 3/3
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERIUND 5t 4 3/3
Mr. Valiant Kin-piu CHEUNG RIBRESE 3/3
Attendance by Invitation: FEBHE
Executive Chairman BITERE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ERIEESE 3/3
Group Chief Executive Officer HETBAES
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER RIEEEFRE /3
Group Senior Director, Finance and Administration RESREE (MBRITH)
Ms. Kitty Kityi FUNG SR NE /3
Group Internal Audit Director REAIPEZEE
Mr. Eric Wai-hon KAN %L E 3/3
External Auditors HMIBEZ BT
KPMG S S /3

Report of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit and Corporate Governance Commitiee has reviewed
the revised accounting standards, the 2011/2012 interim
financial report and annual financial statements with management
and the Company's External Auditors, and recommended their
adoption by the Board. The Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee also reviewed with the Interal Auditor the Company’s
infernal control systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by

the Internal Auditor and approved the 2012,/2013 audit plan.
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The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has met with the
External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations prior to the commencement of the audit. The
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has also reviewed
and considered the ferms of engagement of the External Auditors,
including assessing their independence and obijectivity. The Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee reviewed and approved/
preapproved the audit and non-audit services provided by the
External Auditors, together with their respective fees.

In addition, the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of siaff of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
The review performed by the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee is summarised as follows:

e The Group's accounting and financial reporting function as
a whole is headed by the Group Senior Direcfor, Finance
and Administration, who is the Qualified Accountant of the
Group with over twenty years of experience in the fields of
finance, accounting and auditing.

. The Group Senior Director, Finance and Adminisfration, has
been supported by the heads of finance and accounting
funcfion in each of the operations in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Australia, North America and Singapore. All of them
have relevant professional qualifications and/or advanced
university degrees in finance and accounting.

e To ensure the proper running of the Group's accounting
and financial reporting functions, sufficient budget has
been provided fo enable internal and external training
programmes to update the knowledge and skills of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting staff.

e To review and make recommendation to the Board for
formal approval of the Group’s VWhistleblowing Policy.

The Group’s Whistleblowing Policy was adopted by the Board
on 27th March, 2012. With the introduction of the Group's
Whistleblowing Policy, employees are provided with a more
consistent reporfing channel and guidance to report any serious
misconduct or malpractice internally. The Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee has been delegated with the overall
responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the

Whistleblowing Policy.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and practices within
the Company and monitors compliance fulfillment on an ongoing
basis.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in 2001. Its current
members include two Executive Directors and two Group Senior
Directors, who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Winston Yaulai LO (Chairman)
M. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER

Group Senior Directors
Ms. Kitty Kityi FUNG = Finance and Adminisfration
Ms. Rosemary Pikling LI = Human Resources

The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to deal with
certain operational matters of the Group.

Company Secretary

The Company Secrefary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secrefary is responsible
for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board and the
Board Committees and good communication flow among the
Board members, shareholders and Senior Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretfary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
both the Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive
Officer. The Company Secretfary is accountable to the Board
for matters relating fo Directors’ duties, such as by giving advice
on corporafe governance developments and facilitating the
professional development program and induction program of
Directors. All members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secrefary.

System of Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective infernal control system of the Group. The Group's
system of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, is designed fo help the achievement of
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for infernal use or
for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.
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Directors, through the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, have conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department carries out annual risk
assessment on auditable areas in accordance with a Risk-based
Internal Audit Rolling Plan reviewed and pre-approved by the
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee. In addition fo its
scheduled reviews, the Group Infernal Audit Department also
conducts other ad hoc reviews whenever deemed necessary. The
results of significant infernal audit reviews (and as applicable,
agreed recfification plans) are reported to the Company’s senior
executfives and Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
periodically. The Group Infernal Audit Department also follows
up the rectification actions to ensure that satisfactory confrols are
maintained.

External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the
Company by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting.
An amount of HK$4.2 million (2010/2011: HK$4.1 million)
was charged for fiscal year of 2011,/2012 for statutory audits for
the Company and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit
services provided by KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HK$0.7 million (2010/2011: HK$0.9
million). The non-audit services mainly comprised tax advisory
services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
2011/2012 financial statements are set out in the section of
"Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 77 and 78.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant fo the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not
less than onetwentieth of the issued share capital of the Company
may call for an exfroordmor\/ general meetfing and put forward
agenda items by sending a written request to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office. Shareholders
representing not less than onefortieth of the tofal voting rights of
all shareholders or of not less than 50 in number holding shares
in the Company on which there has been paid up to an average
sum of not less than HK$2,000 per shareholder, may put forward
proposal for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secrefary at the
Company's registered office.

Under Article 107 of the Arficles of Association of the Company,
if a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring Director for election as a Direclor at a general meefing,
the shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination
which shall be given to the Company within the 7-day period
commencing the day after the despaich of the notice of the
meeting (or such other period as may be determined and
announced by the Directors from time fo time) and in no event
ending no later than seven days prior to the date appointed
for such meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director are also posted on the
Company's website.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders, including insfitutional
invesfors, is crucial. We manage invesfor relafions systematically
as a key part of our operafions.

On 9th February, 2012, the Board has adopted a formal
Shareholders Communication Policy to ensure that shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to the
Company’s information. The Shareholders Communication policy
is posted on the Company’s website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep
our shareholders and the investing public posted of our share
price information, latest business developments, final and inferim
results announcements, financial reports, public announcements,
corporate governance policies and practices, and other relevant
shareholder information. An up-to-date consolidated version of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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The Company's Annual General Meefing is one of the important
forums to communicate with its shareholders. During the 2011
Annual General Meeting, the Chairman of the Board briefed
shareholders the business review and the outlook of the Group
and answered questions raised by shareholders. The chairman of
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and the chairman
of the Audit Committee (now known as “Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee”] were also there to answer questions
raised by shareholders.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Direcfors were proposed by
the Chairman af the Annual General Meeting and were voted
on by poll. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll were
exp|oined b\/ the Chairman at the commencement of the Annual
General Meeting to ensure that shareholders were familiar with
such procedures. An independent scrutineer was appointed to
count the votes and the poll results were posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day following
the Annual General Meeting.

We maintain regular bilateral communications with existing and
potential investors fo ensure that the investment community has a
balonced and updated view of the performance of the Company
and relevant business development. As such, the Company
developed and adopted a formal Invesfor Relations Policy in May
2012 as the guidelines for conducting investor relations activities.
We aim at maintaining an open and regular dialogue with
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media through
different means, including shareholders’ group and one-on-one
meefings, presentafions, telephone conferences, correspondences,
media briefings and press releases fo distribute information on the
Croup’s latest developments and strategies. All bilateral contacts
are attended by at least two designated representatives of the
Company, while always taking reference of applicable regulatory
requirements and internal guidelines concerning fair disclosure of
information without offering advantage to any particular invesfor
or financial analyst. In addition, we are proactive in responding
fo general enquiries raised by the investing public, individual and
institutional investors and analysts. In order to keep updated with
the latest market practices on investor relations, the delegated
persons engaged in invesfor relations activities often attend
indusiry seminars or training sessions on various topics.
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Board of Directors

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (585, BSc, MSc), aged 71, is the Executive
Chairman of the Group. Mr. lo was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated from the University of lllinois
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and gained
his Master of Science degree in Food Science from Cornell
University. Mr. Lo is @ member of The National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Honorary
Court Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and life member of Cornell University Council. Mr. Lo
is a director of Ping Ping Investment Company Limited. He is also
a director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any direcforship in other listed public companies in the last
three years. He is the brother of Ms. Myma Mo-ching LO and Ms.
Yvonne Moling LO.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, MA Caniab.
[Economics & Law], Hon. DSc. (Imperiall, Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon.
D.Hum. Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. DSocSc (lingnan), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong, Hon. LD
(Warwick), Hon. LD (Cantab), Hon. Dlitt. (Macquarie), FCA, FCPA, FCPA [Aust.),
FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP. FCIArb, JP Officier de | ‘Ordre de la Couronne, Grand
Officer of the Order of the Star of ltalian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun,
Cold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la legion
d'Honneur), aged 73, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 1994. Sir David holds Honorary Doctorate Degrees in Law
from the University of Cambridge, University of Warwick and
The University of Hong Kong. He also holds Honorary Doctforate
Degrees from Llingnan University (Social Sciences), Trinity
College, Hartford (Humane Letters), Edinburgh Napier University
(Business Administration), Macquarie University (Lefters honoris
causa) and Imperial College london (Science). He is Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Australion Society of
Certified Practicing Accountants. Sir David is the chairman and
chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, limited, a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is the chairman
of The Chinese Banks' Association, Limited and The Hong Kong
Management Association. He is a member of the legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He
is also a member of the Banking Advisory Committee and the
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Council of the Treasury Markets Association. Sir David is a director
of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing limited and The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Llimited. He is also a director of China
Overseas land & Investment limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited, San
Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, SCMP Group Limited, AFFIN
Holdings Berhad and CaixaBank S.A. (formerly known as Criteria
CaixaCorp, S.A.), all being companies listed either in Hong Kong
or overseas. He was a director of COSCO Pacific Limited, a
company listed in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed, he has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years.

Mr. lain F. BRUCE (CA, FCPA, FHKIoD, MHKSI), aged 71, was
appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. Mr. Bruce joined
KPMG Hong Kong in 1964 and was ifs senior pariner from 1991
to 1996. Mr. Bruce is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scofland, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, and a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr.
Bruce is the chairman of KCS Limited and a director of Citibank
[Hong Kong] Limited. He is also a director of Paul Y Engineering
Group Llimited, Tencent Holdings Limited, Wing On Company
International Limited, Noble Group Limited, Sands China Lid.,
Goodbaby Infernational Holdings Limited, Yingli Green Energy
Holding Company Limited and China Medical Technologies, Inc.
(delisted on 28th February, 2012), all being companies listed
either in Hong Kong or overseas. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 73, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master degree in Law
from the University of Aarhus and studied at the Nordic Institute for
Maritime Law, the University of Oslo. Mr. Erlund was admitied to
the Danish Bar in 1968 and was admitted to the Supreme Court
in 1976. Mr. Erlund is now a partner in Copenhagen Chambers
focusing on Danish and infernational arbitration. He was a partner
of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, a law firm in Copenhagen,
Denmark. He was the president of the Danish Bar and law
Association, president of the Danish Maritime Law Association
and chairman of the Maritime and Transport Committee of the
International Bar Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the
board of directors of The East Asiatic Company lid. A/S and
Dansk Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International Pte. ltd., all
being companies listed overseas. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any diredorship in other listed pubhc companies in the last
three years.
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Mr. Valiant Kin-piv CHEUNG, aged 66, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2010. Mr. Cheung is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung was a partner at KPMG, a leading
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong, until his retirement
in March 2001. He has extensive experience in the fields of
assurance and corporafe finance, particularly in manufacturing,
trading, wholesale, distribution and retails in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Mr. Cheung is an independent non-executive
director of Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited, Dah
Chong Hong Holdings Limited and The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
all being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of unlisted Bank
of East Asia (China) limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Bank of East Asia, Llimited. Save as disclosed, Mr. Cheung has
not held any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, aged /3, was appointed a Director of
the Company in 1992. Ms. lo graduated from Oberlin College
in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Music.
Ms. Lo is a member of the Docent Commitiee and Bishop VWhite
Committee of the Royal Ontario Museum in Toronfo, Canada. She
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the last three years. She is the sister of

Mr. Winston Yaulai LO and Ms. Yvonne Merling LO.

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 64, was appointed a Direcfor of
the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Oberlin College, Ohio in the United States and undertook
graduate sfudies in Urban and Regional Planning at the University
of Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980 and
was the President of Vitasoy USA Group until 2001. Ms. Lo was
the president of the Soyfoods Association of North America which
represents 60 soyfoods companies covering the US and Canada.
She does not hold/has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies currently and in the past three years. She is the

sister of Ms. Myrma Mo-ching LO and Mr. Winston Yaulai LO.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER, aged 60, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2007. Mr. Eisentrager graduated
from the University of Queensland with a Bachelor degree
in Applied Science. He is the Group Chief Executive Officer
and is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of all the
Group's operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mainland Ching,
Australia and New Zealand, North America and Singapore.
Mr. Eisentrager joined the Group in 2002 and was the General
Manager of the Group's operation in Australia and New Zealand
uniil 2005. He then became the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group’s Hong Kong and Macau Operation and was promoted
to Group Chief Executive Officer in 2007. He has very extensive
experience in the food and beverage indusiry in Hong Kong,
Australia and infernationally. He does not hold/has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies currently and in the
last three years.

Senior Management

Group Senior Directors

Ms. Kitty Kit-yi FUNG, aged 48, Group Senior Direcfor, Finance
and Administration and also the Qualified Accountant of the
Group. Ms. Fung is responsible for the strategic planning, financial
management and control, accounting, corporate finance and
investor relations of the Group. She joined the Group in 2010.
She has over twenty years of diversified experience working
with leading multinational companies across consumer products,
manufacturing, publishing, banking and retail industries in the
United States, Greater China and Asia Pacific regions. Besides
being a Certified Public Accountant, she is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a Certified Management Accountant.

Ms. Rosemary Pik-ling LI, aged 55, Group Senior Director,
Human Resources. Ms. Li is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and development of human resources of the Group. Her
responsibilities include formulating and implementing strategies,
policies and pracfices for human resources management and
falent development. She joined the Group in 2000. She has
over twenty years of human resources experience gained from
multinational and local organisations before joining the Group.

Mr. Frank Changbo SI, aged 43, Group Senior Director,
Manufacturing and Project Management. Mr. Si is responsible for
the formulation of the Group's manufacturing policy and strategy
and the management of the Group's new joint venture project.
He joined the Group in 2012. He has extensive experience in
different multinational companies focus on quality, manufacturing
and project management.
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Hong Kong and Macau Operation

Mr. Charles Chung CHYI, aged 57, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong and Macau. Mr. Chyi is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group's operations in Hong
Kong, Macau and various export markets. He joined the Group in
2008 and had held senior management positions with a couple
of prominent multinational companies previously in the food and
beverage industry focusing on Greater China.

Mainland China Operation
Mr. Jack Jie YUAN, aged 43, Managing Director of Vitasoy

(China) Investments Company Limited. Mr. Yuan is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group's
operations in Mainland China. Mr. Yuan joined the Group
in 2004 and currently serves as the General Manager of the
Group's Shenzhen and Foshan joint venture operations. He has
extensive experience in the beverage indusiry and had previously
worked with @ number of multinational companies in Mainland

China.

Australian and New Zealand Operation

Mr. Neil Robert HINTON, aged 41, General Manager of
Vitasoy Ausfralia Products Pty. Lid. M. Hinfon is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group's operation
in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group in 2011.
He has extensive experience in the fast moving consumer goods
[FMCG] industry in the Asia/Oceania region having worked in
New Zealand, Australia and Mainland China. He has a strong
record frack in sales and markefing as well as broad management
experience having held roles across many functions including
strafegy and external relations.

North American Operation

Mr. Walter M. RIGLIAN, aged 58, President and Chief
Executive Officer of Vitasoy USA Inc.. Mr. Riglian is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group's
operation in North America. He joined the Group in 2005. He
has extensive experience in sales, markefing, and new product
development. Prior to joining Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Riglian held
numerous senior management positions with several renowned
multi-national companies in the grocery, dairy, produce and
natural products industries.

Singaporean Operation

Mr. Joe Chui-wah HO, aged 60, Chief Executive Officer of
Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Lid., the Group's tofu manufacturing
company in Singapore. Mr. Ho is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group's operation in
Singapore. He joined the Group in 1996 and was responsible
for overseeing the research and development and technical
knowhow of the Group. He had been seconded to the Group's
North American operation in 2000 and appointed as the
Executive Vice President of Technical Services of the operation.
Before joining the Group, he had worked in several wellknown
food and beverage companies.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
fogether with the audited financial statements for the year ended

31st March, 2012.

Principal place of business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin
Wong Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and ifs
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set out in
note 3 fo the financial statements.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
aftributable o the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

EEEMAREHE-_T——-F=A=1+—
BIEFE 2 FRMEEZI RS

FEEEME,

e PEREEARAR ([RRF]) B
STRES RN BB EMALY A - KM
PR B R BB R
FEAT— 9 -

FERH
ARTZEBEBARERHERRRK

o B AR Z EBERMEMFBHNM
BBmRMIFES ©

Apr R EMB AR ([AREE]) RAFER
FREANZEBD WO E N MRMES -

FEEFRMIERS

ATEAAMBEEEERP RERED
BMEARREHE R R RERZER

Percentages of the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
EARE EARE
HEgFEaS RBEEESL
The largest customer BARF 6%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREF A 20%
The largest supplier BRAFIER 23%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BOAHERSET 30%

Af no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any inferest in these major customers and suppliers.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2012 and
the sfate of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date
are sef out in the financial siatements on pages 79 fo 181.

Transfer to reserves

Profits for the year, before dividends, of HK$322,402,000 (201 1:
HK$331,379,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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Transfer to reserves (Confinved)

An interim dividend of HK3.2 cents per ordinary share (2011:
HK3.2 cents per ordinary share) was paid on 29th December,
2011. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK15.1 cents per ordinary share (2011: HK15.1
cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31st

March, 2012.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$660,000 (201 1: HK$265,000).

Fixed assets

Defails of the movements in fixed assets of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 12 1o the financial stafements.

Bank loans

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group, as
at 31st March, 2012 are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26|c) fo the financial statements.
Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securifies by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok—po LI and Mr. Jan P.
S. ERLUND refire from the board by rotation af the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re—election.

None of the Directors proposed for re—election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal sfatutory obligations.

Non—-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rofational refirement as other Directors, pursuant fo the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March,
2012 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance

["SFO")) at that date as recorded in the register of

directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept under

section 352

of the SFO:

(1) Interests in issued shares

EENRG - HEERR G R EE

-,
~ll

RS Z R R i

2R

BCEF LB BIS2GRERETFZ
EEERMNARECMEHME R2F
——FZA=+-BERBZARAEERNE
BRBEARARMBAR (EER(EFR
HIGRPI) ) 2 IRip s T

(1) REBRTRED 2ER

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SEEEES0.25 Tz EEREE

* % of

Trusts and Total total

Personal Family similar number of issued

Name Note interests interests interests shares held shares

=R Fite *1EE 31T G

i 24 k=3 [P Rk F R BipEY AHZESLH

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), {iv) 49,939,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 151,320,600 14.81%
BRERE

Dr the Hon Sir David Kwok—po LI 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.59%
FEHEHLT

Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND 100,000 = = 100,000 0.01%

Jan P. S. ERLUND &4

Ms. Myrna Mo—ching LO (i), (iv) - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 9.85%
ERAXT

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (iii), (iv) 28,037,990 - 78,806,760 101,844,750 Q.97%
BRI T

Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER 124,000 - - 124,000 0.01%
RizERE

Mr. Eric Fat YU [refired on 1st April, 2012) 1,895,000 = = 1,895,000 0.19%

RESE (RZT——_FMOA—HRE)

*

Notes:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The percentage has been compiled based on the
total number of shares of the Company in issue [i.e.

1,021,747 ,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st March, 2012.

Mr. Winston Yau—lai LO is deemed to be interested in
28,702,500 shares through interests of his wife.

Ms. Myma Mo—ching LO is inferested in 27,974,700
shares held by Swift Luck Development Limited which in furn
holds such shares in trust for Lo Myra Trust [formerly known
as Myma Lo Trust).

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is inferested in 6,128,460 shares
held by Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust. Ms.
Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of Yvonne Lo Charitable
Remainder Unitrust and is therefore deemed to be interested
in such shares.

Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Myma Mo—ching LO
and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 72,678,300
shares held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited
which holds such shares as a nominee for the K.S. Lo
Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee
of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such shares.

LA DL IREARRIR T ——4F
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27,974,700 B fn 2 # 2k - %A A

LASEE AF 19 & Lo Myma Trust (ATHE
Myrna Lo Trust) FEB % E /R °

RIS WA A Yvonne Lo Charitable
Remainder Unifrust3®% B 2 6,128,460 f%
f&th 2 #w= o &R IR X T A Yvonne
Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust Z & 25
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(iii)

(iv)
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and
debentures (Coninved)

(2) Interests in underlying shares

Cerfain Directors of the Company have been granted
options under the Company’s share option scheme, details
of which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”
below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by the Directors in frust for the Company, none
of the Directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age has inferests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in
the register required fo be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise nofified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code
for Securifies Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share option scheme

On 4th September, 2002, the Company adopted a share opfion
scheme under which the Directors might, at their discretion, grant
opfions to employees and Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries fo subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
in the Company. This scheme was valid for 10 years ending 3rd
September, 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. The
purpose of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards o
employees for their contribution o the Group. The principal ferms
of this scheme were as follows:

-~ The exercise price of the options is the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange’) on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

—  The opfions were exercisable for a period to be nofified

by the Directors to each option holder, such period nof to
exceed 10 years from the date of grant.
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EFEHRE

Share option scheme (Coniinved|

- There was no minimum period which an opfion must be
held before it could be exercised, but the Directors were
empowered fo impose at their discrefion any such minimum
period af the date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption
of the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when
added to the number of shares issued or issuable fo that
participant under the share option scheme must not exceed
25% of the maximum aggregate number of shares for the
time being issued and issuable under the share option
scheme.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a
period of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer
or shorter period as the Directors might in their discrefion
defermine. An eligible Director or employee had to pay
HK$ 10 on acceptance of the option as a consideration.

-~ Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) fo any one participant in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue as at the date of grant.

The fotal number of ordinary shares available for issue under the
share opfion scheme as af 31st March, 2012 was 63,563,550
shares (including options for 30,042,000 ordinary shares that
have been granted but not yet exercised), which represented
6.22% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31sf March,
2012.
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EFEHRE

Share option scheme (Coniinued) BB tEsTEl o)

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees MARFE N FHER - JRIRAARERENAE
of the Group in aggregate had the following personal inferests in Bz K iE B R RB AR A LB B
options fo subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company during BHEHERZEARINOT -

the year and af the end of the year:

Number of

options

forfeited on

Number of fermination of
opfions Number of Number of ~ employment Number of * Market * Market
Price per  outstanding opfions opfions of eﬁgible opfions value value
Period during ~ share on at the granted exercised  porficiponts  oufstanding  pershoreat  per share on
Date of which options ~ exercise ~ beginning of during the during the during the attheend  date of grant exercise
Parficipants grant are exercisable  of options ~ the year year year Wﬁ);ur of the year of options of options

AENE
frigfeiie F8 SEpaaE Fah * Rt HfifE
BEfz EAfRe  FRREZ ARz BEWREZ  HAGEZ  BREZEZ BREEZ
£ RtEH BTy §l‘1‘1§1’g BREME  RREME  RREXE  BRERE  BRERA ﬁﬂﬁfﬁ% ﬁlﬁﬁifi

HK HK HK
B it i)
Directors

Mr. Winston You-lei LO 1/4/2003  1/4/2004 10 % 31/3/2013 1.688 2,220,000 - - - 2,220,000 1.660 -
ERert 1/4/2004  1/4/200510 F 31/3/2014 1904 1,700,000 = = = 1,700,000 1.920 =
1/6/2005  1/6/200610 Z 31/5/2015 2375 1,472,000 = = = 1,472,000 2425 =
5/6/2006  5/6/2007 o  4/6/2016 2900 976,000 - - - 976,000 2850 =
18/7/2007  18/7/2008 10 2 17/7/2017 3600 712,000 = = = 712,000 3.630 =
21/7/2008  21/7/2009 1o & 20/7/2018 3820 936,000 = = = 936,000 3.820 =
21/7/2009  21/7/201010 E 20/7/2019 4.580 928,000 = = = 928,000 4510 =
7/9/2010  7/9/2011 o E 6/9/2020 3942 2,120,000 = = = 2,120,000 3970 =
8/9/2011  8/9/201210 £7/9/2021 6.358 = 2,320,000 = = 2,320,000 5470 =
Mr. Lourence P 5/6/2006  5/6/2007 1o E 4/6/2016 2900 224,000 = = = 224,000 2.850 =
FISENTRAGER 18/7/2007  18/7/2008 10 E 17/7/2017 3600 592,000 = = = 592,000 3.630 =
Riegrt 21/7/2008  21/7/2009 o E 20/7/2018 3820 792,000 = = = 792,000 3.820 =
21/7/2009  21/7/201010 E 20/7/2019 4.580 864,000 = = = 864,000 4310 =
9/6/2010  9/6/201110 % 8/6/2020 6022 2,272,000 = = = 2,272,000 5870 =
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 10 2 14/6/2021 60.424 - 2,576,000 - - 2,576,000 6.180 =
Mr. Eric Fat YU 1/4/2003  1/4/2004 10 & 31/3/2013 1.688 188,000 = 188,000) = = 1.660 5.900
[refired on 1/4/2004  1/4/200510 & 31/3/2014 1.904 450,000 - 450,000) - - 1.920 5.900
st Apil, 2012 1/6/2005  1/6/2006 10 F 31/5/2015 2.375 392,000 = 392,000) = = 2425 3.900
RERE 5/6/2006  5/6/2007 10 E 4/6/2016 2900 316,000 = [316,000) = = 2850 5130
it 3 18/7/2007  18/7/2008 10 % 17/7/2017 3600 304,000 = = = 304,000 3.630 =
BA-BRE) 21/7/2008  21/7/2009 o E 20/7/2018 3820 312,000 = = = 312,000 3.820 =
21/7/2009  21/7/201010 & 20/7/2019 4580 312,000 = = = 312,000 4510 =
9/6/2010  9/6/2011 to % 8/6/2020 6.022 280,000 = = = 280,000 5870 =
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 10 E 14/6/2021 6.424 = 224,000 = = 224,000 6.180 =
Eligible employees 1/4/2003  1/4/2004 1o % 31/3/2013 1488 162,000 - - - 162,000 1.660 -
working unZer 1/4/2004  1/4/200510 F 31/3/2014 1.904 86,000 = (8,000) = 78,000 1920 3.030
employment contracts 1/6/2005  1/6/200610 Z 31/5/2015 2.375 190,000 = (96,000] = 94,000 2425 5.525
REEREHIREL 5/6/2006  5/6/2007 o E 4/6/2016 2900 254,000 = (36,000 (8,000) 210,000 2850 5113
B#ikEE 18/7/2007  18/7/2008 10 2 17/7/2017 3600 800,000 = 112,000) [36,000] 652,000 3.630 5724
21/7/2008  21/7/2009 o E 20/7/2018 3820 936,000 = 134,000) 56,000] 746,000 3.820 5715
21/7/2009  21/7/201010 E 20/7/2019 4.580 1,920,000 = (164,000] (84,000) 1,672,000 4510 5.525
9/6/2010  9/6/2011 1o E 8/6/2020 6022 2,172,000 = = 96,000] 2,076,000 3.870 =
15/6/2011 15/6/201210 F 14/6/2021 6.424 = 2,216,000 = = 2,216,000 6.180 =

24,882,000 7,336,000 (1,896,000] 280,000 30,042,000
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EFEHRE

Share option scheme (Coniinved|

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on
which the opfions were granted or exercised, as applicable.

All options are exercisable progressively and the maximum
percenfage of the options which may be exercised is determined
in stages as follows:

EBRR#ERTEl (o)

RYEE2BREUNRREREAAZES
ZHREER °

* BN 7% B) 8 5 e B2 5 U PO 450 1 s 7T
6 B EIRT — BB A 2 Wi E S Fia U
Mg -

Al AT PRABAERE JYEFE M - M
EREEAITTERBEE 2B BRI

Percentage of
options granted

HEEBREZE S
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant K B ERs—EF % 25%
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant BB s B s g another 5 25%
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant i B s = B H ik another 5 25%
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant X B BT A F ek A% another 5 25%

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the value per option is provided in note 1(pl(iv] and note 24
to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arangement fo
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

BRORLBREZ @R LS RBRE
ZEBEZERD BN B IREMEE 1 (p)(iv)
K E 24 -

B EXPIEEE SN - EAFE ZALARRE
AR A S EAT AP B A A 2 A R
BE BURARBERAEBARR R KM
Hip ARz Ity sk fEreg s

HRPMERRERRASE —T——/ ——FFRH




Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

FEBRREEMA TR R
A B 15 < A R % ik

Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares
R-E——F=A=+—H ARFADEHN
S TFAEAR A BT BB Z 5% -
ZARRFEEITRMOEE - ZFERTERE
EXFRBE E SR -

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

The Company has been nofified of the following interests in the
Company's issued shares at 31st March, 2012 amounting to
5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors.

SEEEE0.25 T2 EREE
Trusts and Total  * % of total
Personal Family Corporate similar number of issued
Substantial shareholders Note interests inferests interests interests  shares held shares
EE T
EE R ik gy it 4
FERR Bt & B AfERS RiktERS AT)HERS B i35t ZEE
Ms. Irene CHAN (i, (i 23,514,700 750,000 — 72,678,300 96,943,000 9.49%
fREEFE L+
Mr. Kai-tun LO (i) 18,508,950 - - 72,678,300 91,187,250 8.92%
BABSEE
Mr. Pefer Tak=shing LO (i) 7,548,000 - - 72,678,300 80,226,300 7.85%
BIEREE
Commonwealth Bank of Australia (iii) - - 71,257,000 - 71,257,000 6.97%
RN B FBERAT
Matthews International Capital (iv) - - 61,009,000 - 61,009,000 5.97%
Management LLC
Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund (v) 60,600,000 - - - 60,600,000 5.93%
Limited (“Arisaig”)
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) (vi) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.93%
Limited ("Arisaig Mauritius”)
M. Lindsay William Ernest (vii) - - 60,600,000 - 60,600,000 5.93%

COOPER (“Cooper”)
COOPER %4 ( [Cooper] )

This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of * WEDLETDREARRAR T ——F
shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,021,747,500 ordinary ZA=Z+—HEETZERMHDAE (/A
shares) as at 31st March, 2012. 1,021,747,500 B &A% ) 18 -

)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Ms. Irene CHAN s interested in 750,000 shares held for her
daughter Alexandra CHAN who is under the age of 18.

Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Mr. Kai~tun LO and Mr. Pefer Tak—shing
LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of East
Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee for
the K.S. Lo Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee
of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested
in such shares.

Commonwealth Bank of Australia was taken to be interested in
these 71,257,000 shares which were held by its wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

These interests are held by Matthews International Capital

Management LLC in the capacity of investment manager.

These interests are held by Arisaig in the capacity of beneficial
owner.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares (coniinued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vi)  These interests are held by Arisaig Mauritius in the capacity of
invesiment manager of Arisaig. These inferests are duplicated by
the interests disclosed in note (v) above.

(vi]  These interests represent Cooper's interests through his indirect 33%
inferest in Arisaig Mauritius. These interests are duplicated by the
interests disclosed in notes (v) and (vi) above.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required fo be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been nofified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available fo the Company
and within the knowledge of the Direcfors of the Company as af
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, subsisted af the end of the year or af any
time during the year.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during
the year.
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Connected transactions

(1)

On 10th February, 2009, the Company entered into a
Milk Supply Agreement with Shenzhen GuangMing Group
Co., ld. ("Guangming”), a subsfantial shareholder holding
15% of the registered capifal of the Company’s subsidiary,
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage
Company Llimited ("Shenzhen Vitasoy”), under which
Guangming would supply milk products to the Company for
a period of 3 years commencing Tst April, 2009. During
the year, HK$ 1,284,000 (2011: HK$2,081,000) was
charged by Guangming.

The transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing Rules,
which are only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders” approval requirement. An announcement was
made by the Company on 10th February, 2009 in this
respect.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, considered that the fransactions during the year

ended 3 1st March, 2012:

() were entered info the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company;

(i) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than terms available from
independent third parties; and

(i)  were conducted in accordance with the Milk Supply
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interesfs of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

In addition, the independent auditors of the Company,
KPMG, confirmed in a letter to the board of directors that
nothing has come to their affention that caused them fo
believe that the continuing connected transactions (i) had
not been approved by the Board of the Company, (i} were
not entered into in all material respects in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing such transactions, and
(iii) had exceeded the cap amount of HK$2,770,000
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10th

February, 2009.
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Connected transactions (Continved)

(2)

On 25th March, 2010, the Company's subsidiary,
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Lid. ("VAP"), entered into
a Supplementary Services and Distribution Agreement
to renew the original and the subsequent Services and
Distribution Agreements with LD&D Milk Pty Lid. (formerly
known as National Foods Milk Limited) (‘UON"), a fellow
subsidiary of National Foods Holding Limited, a substantial
shareholder holding 49% of the issued share capital of
VAP. LION would provide services to VAP in relafion to soy
food and beverage products manufactured, imported and/
or distributed by VAP targeted for mainstream market ("VAP
Products”). As part of the services provided, LION would
be the exclusive distributor in Australia of the VAP Products.
In return, VAP would pay a management fee equal to 5% of

gross sales of VAP Products disfributed by LION in Australia.

During the year, HK$26,036,000 (201 1: HK$23,805,000)
was charged by LON.

The transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing Rules,
which are only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders' approval requirement. Announcement was
made by the Company on 25th March, 2010 in this

respect.

The Directors, including the Independent Non—executive
Directors, considered that the fransactions during the year

ended 3 1st March, 2012:

[ were entered info in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company;

li)  were conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than terms available from
independent third parfies; and

lii) were conducted in accordance with the
Supplementary Services and Distribution Agreement
on ferms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders as a whole.

RAERE 5 )
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Connected transactions (Continved)
(2)  (Continued)

In addition, the independent auditors of the Company,
KPMG, confirmed in a letter to the board of directors that
nothing has come to their attention that caused them to
believe that the confinuing connected transactions (i) had
not been approved by the Board of the Company, (i) were
not entered info in all material respects in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing such transactions, and
(ii) had exceeded the cap amount of AUD4,900,000
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4th
May, 2011.

Employee retirement plans

Particulars of emp|oyee refirement p|ons of the Company and the
Croup are sef out in note 23 fo the financial stafements.

Five year summary

A summary of the results and of the assefs and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 182 of
the annual report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is fo be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st June, 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R AR &

e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) sef out on pages 79 to 181,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31st March, 2012, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ res?onsibiliry for the

consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Insitute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the Directors defermine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
fo you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B FEETER &

Auditor’s responsibility (Coninved)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant 1o the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but nof for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statfements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st March, 2012 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21st June, 2012

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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Consolidated Income Statement

R EIREMR

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T——F=ZA=+—HLFE OABHHE)

2012 2011
—T——F —T——F
Note iz $’000F 7T $'000F T
Turnover <) 3 3,716,539 3,329,336
Cost of sales $HE KA (1,956,695) (1,728,581)
Gross profit EH 1,759,844 1,600,755
Other revenue E A 4 40,838 33,875
Marketing, selling HE - HE
and distribution expenses RoiE R (878,301) (779,234)
Administrative expenses 1THER (276,717) (245,182)
Other operating expenses Hinge=EMH (220,328) (183,674)
Profit from operations EEEF 425,336 426,540
Finance costs [EE=D %N 5(a) (17,243) (7,279)
Profit before taxation B Btk 5 408,093 419,261
Income tax FTiS#t 6(a) (85,691) (87,882)
Profit for the year AEERF 322,402 331,379
Atiributable to: FE{L :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR EIIRIERE A Q 281,003 284,314
Non-controlling inferesfs ElS il 41,399 47,065
Profit for the year REERR 322,402 331,379
Earnings per share BREF 11
Basic YN 27.5 cents 1lli 27.9 cenfs 1l
Diluted i 27.3 cents 1lli 27.6 cenfs 1l

The notes on pages 86 to 181 form part of these financial E8OE 181 AZMEIAMBHEK 2 — &

statements. e

BRAFERND RN TARBBRERSEA

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Z BB FHIFER R 20(b) ©

Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note

261b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GEEEWmBRR

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHEZ——F=A=+—RHIFE (ABEHE)

2012 2011
—%F-=F —E——4
Note it &+ $'000 T3¢ $'000F7t
Profit for the year KREEEF 322,402 331,379
Other comprehensive income AEEHBEE
for the year (after tax) ez (BrBiiE) 10
Exchange differences on translation MERBAINDE
of the financial statements of YNGR S
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong PRES 7 ERZRE 18,884 47,186
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the IREREBEH - EHRE
hedging reserve FEEE (1,739) 1,758
Total comprehensive income for the year Z<%F 2 E #4858 339,547 380,323
Attributable to: &S :
Equity shareholders of the Company RABIRIEREE A 295,405 318,677
Non-controlling interests FEFE PR M R 44,142 61,646
Total comprehensive income for the year Z<:F 2 Hly 2484 339,547 380,323

The notes on pages 86 to 181 form part of these financial F8OE 181 HEZ WX Ty AB Bk 2 — &b
statemens. 7 e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
GeEEBREER

At 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RIB——F=A=+—H (AB%HE)

Non-current assets

Fixed assefs

— Property, plant and equipment

- Investment properties

— Interests in leasehold land held
for own use under operating
leases

Deposits for the acquisition of
fixed assefs

Infangible assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Obligations under finance leases
Current fax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans

Obligations under finance leases
Employee retirement benefit liabilifies
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling inferests

TOTAL EQUITY

knBEE

BT AE

-WE BB R&

- RAYZE

- RIEGEHE
HAEEER
ZHEEL iR

BERTEE
Zi®
EWAE

BE
ERFRAE

RBAE
T

FE
REREE S A i
KT R
B

EEYE Pl

nEBaR

JE A BR 0 T K A B A R
RITEH

MARE BB
FERRAHE

FRBEE
BEERRHER
EREBAR
RITEH

MARE 2B
EERKBHAR
EXFEAR

FAE

AXRGE

AR

i

FAEREHAA
FEHE EET

iR R

i

2012
Nofe i3 §000F%
12(al
120h)
13
14
25(b)
16 423,339
17 668,528
25(a) 430
18(al 438
18(al 205,856
1,298,591
20 771,918
2] 305,358
22(a) 3,784
25(al 26,256
1,107,316
21 79,824
22(a) 8,750
23(b) 2,228
25(b) 59,084
26(c)

$'000F 3T

1,524,520
7,246

35,244
1,567,010

1,156
11,622
39,206
17,957

1,636,951

191,275
1,828,226

149,886
1,678,340

255,437
1,238,918

1,494,355
183,985

1,678,340

2011

$000F 7% $000F 7

1,214,979

7772

32,992

1,255,743

14,011

13,737

39,194

11,805

1,334,490
372,467
579,101
5438
10412
352,311
1,319,729
720,064
141,037
5225
18,675
885,001

434,728

1,769,218
114,000
13,239
2,177
50,081

179,497

1,589,721

254,963

1,160,881

1,415,844

173,877

1,589,721

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on RZB-——FRAZ+—BEESSHETRE

21stJune, 2012

Winston Yau-lai LO
BRE

Director

EF

The notes on pages 86 to 181 form part of these financial

statements.

i
Laurence P. EISENTRAGER
REE
Director
EZE

,T/\ °
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Balance Sheet

EEBER

At 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZB——F=A=+—B UABKE)

2012 2011
Note i3 §000F%  §000FE  $000Fm  $000F%
Non-current assets FnEEE
Fixed assefs EEEE 12(b)
- Property, plant and equipment S EN S 452,812 385,044
— Investment properties - REYE 7,246 7,772
460,058 392,816
Inferest in subsidiaries KB A AR 15 504,795 457 741
Deposits for the acquisition of BEETEE
fixed assets il 12(h) 610 1,223
965,463 851,780
Current assets REEE
Inventories lE3 = 16 150,774 123,636
Trade and other receivables JE M AR SR e E At P IR 17 339,036 286,933
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMR BB A RIFRIB 19 295,867 238,679
Current fax recoverable FEMR F R 25(a) - 4,907
Bank deposits RITER 18(a) - 9,992
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 18(a) 25,211 113,164
810,888 777,311
Current liabilities wEaE
Trade and other payables R REMEMR 20 345,374 267,421
Bank loans RITER 21 50,000 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B B A R FUE 19 64,850 67,276
Obligations under finance leases BERE &R 22(b) - 1,363
Current fax payable ERRETHE 25al 16,114 -
476,338 336,060
Net current assets FRBEE 334,550 441,251
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHER 1,300,013 1,293,031
Non-current liabilities FREAaR
Bank loans RITER 21 - 114,000
Obligations under finance leases MEHE 2B 22(b) - 733
Employee retirement benefit liabilifies EERKBHEE 23(b) 1,265 1,179
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEERE 25(b) 51,854 41,661
53,119 157,573
NET ASSETS BEE 1,246,894 1,135,458
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BE R
Share capital A 26(a) 255,437 254,963
Reserves @ 991,457 880,495
TOTAL EQUITY dntors] 1,246,894 1,135,458

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

21st June, 2012

Winston Yau-lai LO
BRE

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 86 to 181 form part of these financial

statements.

g i
Laurence P. EISENTRAGER
REE
Director
EE

,f/'\ °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERERmBHR

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-T-—F=A=t+-ALTE (XE%HE)

Aribuiabl to equiy shoreholders of the Company

FRAREREARR
Capial Sharebased Nor-
Shore Shre redemplion~ Copil ~ Swplis Generol  Hedging  Exchonge compensafion Refoined confoling Toto
copiol  pemum esene  reseve  reseve  esene  resene  resene  feseve ool Tool  ineress  equily

Bf m‘
RE ROEE REEE ARERE BRER  HBE  BhEE  ERRE REBE  REED Aif FEREE  EGER
NoelfiE $000F7L $000TZ $000FT $000F7 $O00FR $O00FE $000FT $000Fm $000Fr $000Fr $000Fx $000FT $000F7

Balonce ot 1st Apri, N-§-%%
2010 mA-B4k 24420 331778 1100 71480 18112 2261 - 20508 7104 651730 1358497 140,381 1498878

Changes in equityfor the year: AEEZ LS :

Profitfor the year FEERR - - - - - - - - - 284314 284314 47065 331379
Oter comprehensive income b2l 10 - - - - - - 1758 32,605 - - 3363 14581 48944
Tolol comprehensive ncome ~ 2EHBLE - - - - - - 1758 32,605 - 84314 318677 61646 380323

Taansfet from refained profs

fo surplus reserve - - - - 7470 - - - - 7470 - - -
Taansfer from captal reserve

fo efained profis 260 - - - (4087) - - - - - 4087 - - -
Shores issued on eercise

of share opfions 26{d]i S 5908 - - - - - - - - b4 - 649
Transfer from sharerbased

compensation reserve fo

shore premiu on exercise [

of share opfons ZROEE 26lc]i) - 1087 - - - - - - (1,087) - - - -
Equly seffed shorebosed ~—— HRDBRFER

fransactions 35 5{b) - - - - - - - - 3200 - 320 - 3200
Finol dividend approved JEBR-5F

infespectof he previous year  ZKERE 200l - - - - - - - - - (136,508 (136,508 - [136,506]
Speciol dividend opproved ~ HEBR L5

inrespect o the previous year 2RI 26b)jil - - - - - - - - - (101,870 (101870 - {101,870]
Interim dividend declored SRR

nrespect of he curentyeor PR 2600l - - - - - - - - - (32,603 (32,603 - (32,603
Dividends poid fo miERiEs

nonconiroling inferesls RERS - - - - - - - - - - - (281500 (28,150)
Bolance of 315t March, R-§--%

0 ZREt-RER 254963 338773 1101 67,394 25582 2,261 1758 53113 9217 661682 1415844 173877 1589721
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERERmBHR

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T——F=ZA=+—HLFE OABHHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATREFAAES
Captal Share-based Non-
Share  Share redemption  Copital  Surplus  Other  Generol  Hedging Exchange compensation ~ Retained controllng ~~ Total
copiol  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  profis  Tolol inferests  equily
&% RS

B ROEE REER 2406 EGRE AAEE -REE HoRR ERGE BRERE REEN O FORER RR4E
NoteHit S000FT SO00FT S000FT SO0FT S00FRL SN0FT S000FT S000FT S000FT SO0FT S00FT S000FT SO0FT S00FT

Bolance at 15t Apr, Rog--£
01 BR-B%k% 254963 338773 1101 67,394 25582 -2l 1758 53113 9217 661,682 1415844 173877 1,589,721

Changes in equiy for the year: A2 HEHEE

Profifor he year FEERR - - - - - - - - - - 281,003 281,003 41399 322402
Oteer comprehensive income ~ Efr2EHi 10 - - - - - - - (1739 18141 - - 14400 2783 1745
Tolol comprehensive ncome ~~ 2EH&BEE - - - - - - - (1739 18141 - 81003 205405 44042 339547

Tansterfom retained proffs ~ ERERFIEER

fo surplus reserve FRBEE - - - - T30 - - - - - 130 - - -
Tansle fom copicl ieserne ~ BAAGERR

fo efained profs ERGAN 26(dlji - - - (4087) - - - - - - 40 - - -
Shares isved onexercise SiTEEIRIE

of share opfions %Ik 261c]i 474 455 - - - - - - - - - 5000 - 500

Transferfrom sharebased STEERE

compensafion reserve fo

shore premivm on exercise BERERER

of share optons Ehihag 26/c]i - 937 - - - - - - - 937) - - - -
Equly seffed shorebosed ~— HRDBRFER

fransacions I35 5ol - - - - - - - - - 44 - 44 -4
Finol dividend approved HEBR 55

infespectof he previous year  ZRERE 26{blji - - - - - - - - - - (154,267) (154,267) - (154,267)
Interim dividend declored SRR

in respect of the curentyeor 2 FHRE 26(blli - - - - - - - - - - (32,695 (32,695 - (32,69
Dividends paid fo REREE

nor-confoling ineress Ve - - - - - - - - - - - - (38970)  (38,970)
Aequistion of nonconfollng  WEFF R ER

inferests 3o - - - - - (45,258 - - - - - (45,258 (29794 (75,052)
Partil disposal of equity miARER

inerestin @ subsdiory fo HE-RHBAT

nor-confoling inferesls LR RER 31l - - - - - 5875 - - - - - 5875 730 40,405
Bolance ot 31st March, RZ%-Z%

2012 SR=t+-B4H 255437 426 101 63307 392 (30383 2,21 1969254 12701 752480 1494355 183,985 1,678,340

The notes on pages 86 to 181 form part of these financial F8OE 181 HEZ WX Ty AR B &k 2 — &b

statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
%’%fﬁﬁbluiﬂ%

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BHEZ——F=A=+—RHIFE (ABEHE)

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
- Tax paid outside Hong Kong

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Placement of bank deposits
maturing after three months
but within one year when placed
Maturity of bank deposits maturing
after three months but within
one year when placed
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Capital element of finance
lease rentals paid
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Interest element of finance
lease renfals paid
Interest paid
Proceeds from shares issued
on exercise of share opfions
Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests
Proceeds from partial disposal
of equity interest in a subsidiary
Dividends paid fo equity
shareholders of the Company
Dividends paid fo
non-controlling interests

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1st April

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31st March

The notes on pages 86 to 181 form part of these financial

statements.
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HEFREA=EA
BR—FAZRITER

N Ee=1A
BR—FR2IH
ZIRITER

BYFIE

REZTDHFARLFH

MEEH

EREEHEES
ZERE

ERITEHAEIR

BRBITER

ENBERERES
Z 8k

EIHE

RATEBBREITRD
SR

BB FE R o5 2 FOR

HE R BRRZHH
AR SR

AR EBEREA
RS

BEEZG Faiss s

MEEHRARLFH

RERBEFEEE
BOFE

RUA—BZHE
RE&%EER

Exg@one

R=ZA=Z+—-HZ
RERBEFEEE

Note Ff&E

18(b)

31{a)

31(b)

18(a)

$'000F 5T

2012
%%
$'000F %
478,695

(10,532)
(59,180)

408,983

(414,213)

1,778

(438)

10,412
1,806

(400,655)

(6,121)
293,381
(166,558)

(1,270)
(22,584)

5,030
(75,052)
40,605
(186,962)
(38,970)

(158,501)

(150,173)

352,311

3,718

205,856

2011
—T——F
$'000F T $'000F T
540,005
(37,855)
47,759)

454,391
[466,652)
2,007
(10,412
17,146
1,949

(455,962
(6,030
326,982
(143,306)
(1,628)
(5,651
6,449
(270,979)
(28,150

(122,313

(123,884)

463,245

12,950

352,311

#8675 181 B2 MR NARBEEEZ — 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
ouf below.

The HKICPA has issued cerfain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2012 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred 1o as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assefs and liabiliies that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(b)

(c)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The esfimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the esfimate is revised if
the revision affects on|\/ that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statfements and major sources of esfimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group's financial stafements:

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures
° Improvements to HKFRSs {2010)

o HK (IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equily instruments

° Amendments to HK (IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The
limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction — Prepoymenfs of a
minimum fundling requirement

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(c)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continved)

The amendments to HK (IFRIC) 14 have no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as they were consistent
with policies already adopted by the Group. HK (IFRIC) 19
has not yet had a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as these changes will first be effective as and
when the Group enfers a relevant fransaction (for example,
a debt for equity swap).

The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed
the identification of related parties and concluded
that the revised definition does not have any material
impact on the Group'’s related party disclosures
in the current and previous periods. HKAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure
requirements for governmentrelated entities. This does
not impact the Group because the Group is not o
govermnmentrelated entity.

o Improvements to HKFRSs {2010) omnibus standard
infroduces a number of amendments fo the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the Group's
financial insfruments in note 27 are consistent with the
amended disclosure requirements. These amendments
do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current
and previous periods.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are enfifies controlled by the Group. Confrol
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are faken info account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that confrol
commences until the date that control ceases. Infra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from infra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from infra-group fransactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12

(c)

FEZHBER @

SETHERZEE (2

BB (AR BHRERELZES) 28
145 2 BRI W R B AR B HwE
EREBEATE  RARZFEITERN
SEHORBZEE % - &8 (BR
MHmERERES) 2EF 100
BUAKEYHRRENEATE
REARZEZ N AN KB LHEH
RS (MABREEBRER) BERE
R o

Hip Sz g E85mT

o (FABEERN) FE245 (K=
TTNFER]) HHEBEALZTE
EIEHER] - Bt - AEECDE
M EEEA LT ZEBRE X
RRABE]ERHAEERE
Al B E R 2 RS A TR
BEMEAZE - I (BE
SEHERD B 245 (R _FT N
FIER]) MEBRAFHEBE R 2
BREEHER - AR ANEEY
FETHAER - SULIERTH A
SEWEZE -

o (FEMBMERER) 2HGE (=
T-ZF) RARAH(EEYH
BHRELR)F7R (2@ T A -
RKE | 2 WRREERZRIERT ©
27 Rl AR AN KB & B T
R WBEBEZEETRERTE —
B o AHERTHE A KBTI
R BHREANERERB 208

AL ELEBERNEATE -

(d) FHED B RIEEAAEL

MEBAR RN REMZEN  EE - B
AEEBRREZERZM B LGS
BN e HRS &Rz - RAIARE
BERBRER 6% - NG E
B BEATEZEEREECDE
HEA -

KRB ARZIRERZIZEFEMGE
MEHIR = AR A IR R R A B
BHRREGEAAR - SEAQRFZHEZ
EHRNR S  URRFAEL 2 EM
REFRGHN  GRRHEGEAVHRE
R 2 - mERERE  SERA
RBIZBZRPEEZAREREBERIZ
B WA R 2 T3 A o



Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(d)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-confrolling inferests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not affributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those inferests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meefs the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling inferests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling inferests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
affributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of nonontrolling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes
1{m) or (n) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
nof result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
fransactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling inferests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relafive inferests,
but no adjusiments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulfing gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or jointly confrolled entfity.

In the Company’s balance sheetf, an investment in a
subsidiary is stafed af cost less impairment losses [see note

).

(d)
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AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(e)

(f

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non»confro”ing interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(il the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When {ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is sfated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generatfing units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
affributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold inferest (see note 1(i)) to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties held under operating leases are
accounted for as if they were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(i)). Investment properties are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1{j)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of invesiment
properties using the straightline method over the shorter of
the unexpired ferm of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1{iliii.
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(BB - LUBHERE)

(9)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Other property, p|cmt and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1{j[ii)):

- Freehold land and buildings;

- land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold interest
in the land and buildings cannot be measured
separately at the inception of the lease and the
building is not clearly held under an operating lease
(see note 1(i));

- Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land af the inception of the lease (see
note 11i)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and resforing the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs [see note 1(v)).

Cains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are defermined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
esfimated useful lives as follows:

[ leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

Freehold land is not depreciated.
(i) Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated

over their estimated useful lives, being no more than

25 years.
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(9)

(h)

(i)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Other property, p|cmt and equipment
(Continued)

(i) Estimated useful lives of other plant and equipment
are as follows:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 15 years

Fixtures, furniture 3 =12 years
and office equipment

Motor vehicles 4 - 6 years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in
progress unfil such time when the assets are substantially
completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Infangible assets that are acquired by the Group are sfated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (note 1{jllii)).

Amortisation of infangible assefs with finite useful lives is
charged fo profit or loss on a straightline basis over the
assets’ esfimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Brand name
- Customer list

20 years
/7 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a fransaction or a series of
fransactions, is or confains a lease if the Group defermines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
assef or assefs for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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(i)
(i

(ii)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leased assets (Confinued)
Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer o the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership fo the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(f]); and

-~ land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered info by the Group, or faken
over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assefs under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
assefs, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assefs are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided af rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, over the shorter of
the unexpired ferm of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years, or where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
sef ouf in nofe 1{f) and note 1(g).

Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as sef out in nofe 1{j)(ii). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as o produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period.
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(i
(i

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leased assets (Confinued)
Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
paftern of benefits to be derived from the leased assef.
lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an infegral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straightline basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(f)). Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in nofe T(j)fii).

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries that are stated at cost in the
Company's balance sheet and financial assets that are
stated af cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to defermine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Obijective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes fo the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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(i
(i

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Confinued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For invesiments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1{j)lii). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(j)lii).

For financial assets carried af cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the assef's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial assef’s original effective interest rate [i.e. the
effective interest rafe computed at initial recognition
of the assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assefs which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assefs with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

IFin a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively fo an event occurring affer the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(i
(i

(ii)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Confinued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of frade debtors and bills receivable included within
frade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against frade debtors and bills receivable direcily and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating fo that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assefs may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- investment properties;

- interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

- infangible assefs; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount
is estimafed. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable

amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(i
(i

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Confinued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs fo sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
discount rafe that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to
the assef. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating uni).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit fo which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit {or group of units) and then, fo
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit [or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to defermine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(k)

l)

(m)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the firstin, firstout method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
complefion and the estimated cosfs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any writedown of invenfories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any writedown of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective inferest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(jlli)), except where the receivables are interestfree
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated atf cost less allowance
for impairment of doubiful debis.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Inferestbearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less affributable fransaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any inferest and fees payable, using the effective
inferest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(ii)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and shortterm, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution refirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. VWhere
payment or sefflement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit refirement plan obligation

The Group's nef obligation in respect of a defined benefit
refirement plan is calculated by esfimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have eamed in refurn for their
services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted fo defermine the present value and the fair value
of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dafes approximating the ferms of
the Group’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of a p|o1n are improved, the portion of
the increased benefit relating to past service by employees
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a sfraight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. If the benefits vest immediately, the expense is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(p)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued|
Defined benefit retirement plan obligation (Continued)

In calculating the Group's obligation in respect of a plan,
if any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss
exceeds fen percent of the greater of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets, that portion is recognised in profit or loss over the
expected average remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the plan. Otherwise, the actuarial gain or
loss is not recognised.

Where the calculation of the Group's net obligation results
in a negative amount, the asset recognised is limited fo the
fofal of any cumulative unrecognised net actuarial losses
and past service costs and the present value of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future confributions to
the plan.

Long service payments obligation

The Group's net obligation in respect of lump sum long
service amounts payable on cessation of employment in
cerfain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to defermine
the present value and reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s refirement plans that are affributable to
confributions made by the Group. The discount rate is the
yield af the balance sheet date on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dafes approximating the ferms of
the Group's obligation. The obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in the share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking info account the ferms and
condifions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entifled to the opfions, the tfotal
esfimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking info account the probobihty that the options
will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(p)
(iv)

(q)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued|
Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected fo vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an assef, with a corresponding adjustment
fo the share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted fo reflect
the actual number of options that vest [with a corresponding
adjustment fo the share-based compensation reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due fo not achieving vesting
conditions that relate fo the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-based
compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
[when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the opfion expires (when it is released directly fo retained
profifs).

Income tax

[l Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current fax and movements in deferred fax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to ifems recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment fo tax payable in respect of
previous years.

liii)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assefs and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their fax bases. Deferred tax assefs also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax credifs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assefs arising
from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relafe fo the same taxation authority and the same
foxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assef
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions fo recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabiliies that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
sefflement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rafes enacted or substantively
enacted af the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed af each balance sheet date and is reduced
fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed fo the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.

Current fax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabiliies, and deferred fax
assefs against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assefs against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
setfle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
sefile the liability simulianeously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same faxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assefs and
setfle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and seftle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(ii)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are confracts that require the issuer [i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”] for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on inifial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(r)(ii) if and when [i) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group or the
Company under the guarantee, and [ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group or the Company is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
fiming or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable
esfimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated af the present value of the
expenditure expected to seftle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(ii)

(s)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continved)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of oufflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future fransaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on re-measurement of
the derivative financial insfrument to fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument is a non-derivative monetary item,
which is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the
effective portion of the foreign currency gains or losses
on the hedging instrument also are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any
foreign currency gains or losses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

If o hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a nonfinancial asset or nonfinancial
liability, the associafted gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity o profit or
loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss [such as
when inferest income or expense is recognised).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(s)

(t)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash flow hedges (Continued)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period
or periods during which the hedged forecast fransaction
affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, ferminated
or exercised, or the enfity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take ploce, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity
fo profit or loss immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or picked up by customers for domestic
sales and when goods are shipped on board for export
sales which are taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is affer deduction of returns, rebates
and discounts.

Service fees

Service fees are recognised when the related services are
provided.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(v)

(v)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
inferest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
esfablished as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency fransactions during the year are franslated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetfary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated af the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet dafe. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those non-derivative
monefary items used fo hedge foreign currency risk which
are recognised in other comprehensive income (see note

1(s)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rafes ruling at the fransaction
dates.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are
translated info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates af the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
fo that subsidiary outside Hong Kong is reclassified from
equity fo profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary
items that in substance form part of the net investment in an
operation outside Hong Kong, together with any related
tax, are reclassified to equity on consolidation.
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AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HBI

(v}

(w)

(x)

F OBEEE)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are direcﬂy attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily fakes a substantial period of time fo get ready
for its infended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost, as part of the cost of
a qualifying assef commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing cosfs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its infended use or sale are inferrupted or complete.

Repair and maintenance expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of
overhaul, is expensed as incurred.

Related parties

[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is relafed fo the Group if that person:

[i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is o member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b]  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

[l The enfity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related fo
the others).

(il  One enfity is an associate or joint venture of
the entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

[ii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

[iv  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(x)

(y)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
b)  (Continued)

[v]  The enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vil  The enfity is confrolled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(viij A person identified in [a](i] has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or a
parent of the enfity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entfity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources o, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a maijority of these criteria.
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AR FRBIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(a)

(b)

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 14, 23 and 24 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment assessment, defined benefit refirement liabilifies
and the fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of esfimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of fixed assets and intangible
assets

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of
these assets may nof be recoverable, the assets may be
considered "impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less cosfs
to sell and the value in use. In defermining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounfed
fo their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in defermining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount. However, actual
sales volumes, selling prices and operating costs may be
different from assumptions which may require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assefs affected.
Details of the nature and carrying amounts of fixed assefs
and intangible assets are disclosed in notes 12 and 13,
respectively.

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets (see nofe 12) are depreciated on a sfraight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, affer taking
info account the estimated residual values, if any. The
Croup reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated
residual values, if any, of the assets af least annually in
order fo defermine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
and residual values are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets

Infangible assets (see note 13) are amortised on a sfraight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of amortisation charge to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group'’s experience with similar assefs. The
amortisation charge for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous esfimates.

Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of the debtors
fo make required payments. The Group esfimates the future
cash flows based on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance as disclosed in note 17, debtors’ creditworthiness,
and hisforical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of the debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to
aged inventories analysis, expected future consumption and
management judgement. Based on these reviews, write
down of inventories will be made when the estimated nef
realisable value of inventories decline below the carrying
amount. However, actual consumption may be different
from estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
fax assefs can only be recognised fo the exfent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax benefits can be utilised, management's
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management's assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future faxable profits will allow
the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Defails of the nature
and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed
in nofe 25.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(a)

(b)

Turnover and segment reporting

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, nef
of returns, rebates and discounts.

Segment reporting

The Group manages ifs businesses by entities, which are
organised by geography. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported infernally to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following five reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- The Hong Kong and Macau business mainly
represents the manufacture and sale of soymilk,
fea, water, juice, tofu, efc. in Hong Kong, sale of
beverages in Macau and overseas and the operating
of tuck shops and catering businesses;

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soymilk, tea, juice, etc. in

Mainland China;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly
represents the manufacture and sale of soymilk and
rice milk in Australia and sale of beverages in New
Zealand;

- The North America business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of tofu and pasta; and sale of
imported soymilk, imported juice, imported tea, efc.
in North America; and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soy related products in
Singapore and overseas.

All of the Group’s turnover is generated from the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages.
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(BB - LUBHERE)

Turnover and segment reporting
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's senior
executive management monitors the results, assefs and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assefs with the exception of deferred tax
assets, current tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include frade creditors and bills payable
affributable to the manufacture and sales activities of the
individual segments, bank loans and obligafions under
finance leases managed directly by the segments and
current liabilities with the exception of employee refirement
benefit liabilities, current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit
from operations”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the
Group's profit is further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs. Income tfax is not allocated
fo reporting segments. Intersegment sales are priced at cost
plus a profit margin.

The accounting policies of the reporting segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA TR MiEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAERBI - ABETE)

3 Turnover and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Confinued|
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided fo the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31st March,

2012 and 2011 is set out below:

(b)
()

I

SEBERDERE @)

DEERE (®)

DEELE - BEREBE (B)
@E:%*:E&:%**EEH
BIKEEABRMYEREERS

BRBF 2 A EEAREH AR
mT -

Hong Kong & Macau Mainland China Australia & New Zealand North America Singapore Total
FERAM HERR RNRHEN EES ] s a5t
2012 2001 2012 2011 2012 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
Z§-2f F-F C¥-IF T C¥-If Z§-2f FF C¥-IF CTF ¥ TF
§O00FE  S000FT  SO00FE POOOFT  §000FR Y000FE SOO0TE  SO0FR SO00FE  SO0FE 000 T
Revenue from extemal RENEEEZHA
customers 1,671,834 1530131 1014070 854,183 499343 445480 485185 433875 76,107 65,607 3,716,539 3329336
Inferseqment revenve GETN 75,860 63,874 64115 129,108 443 485 25 257 - - 40643 193724
Reportable segment revenue EREMBZBA 1,747,694 1504005 1,078,185 983291 499786 445965 55410 434132 76,107 65,067 3,857,182 3,523,060
Reportable segment profit ARERBL
from operations o 321,005 284857 89,564 109,756 87,509 89703 1,262 12451 5n8 6,421 504,545 503,188
Inferest income from bark deposits ~ FATFRZFIERA n 497 1,026 848 675 582 - - 2 2 1,782 1929
Finance cosls BARK (1431) (254) (6,108) 2,909 (9,702) 4,048) (2) 68) - - (17,43) (7.279)
Depreciafion and amorfisafion TERZAER
for the year B (61,070)  [54,621) (32,254 (19,852 (19722)  [21461) (12,595 (13,881 (4,594 (4213 (130,235 (114,028)
Other material noncash ffems EhEAFRERE
- Recognifion]/reversol of - ERER R
impairment losses on frade
and ofher receivables ] 18) 45) 157) 90 420 - - - 18] (51) 337
- Reversal of impoirment losses
on properly, plant and equipment - - - - 132 475 - - - - 132 1475
- Eouiy sefled sharebased RLUUEGES
poyment expenses R EA (657) 1523 (225) (155 - - - - - - (882) (678
Reportable segment assets ARENDLER 172920 1642529 1024575 868655 471875 380,158 188,980 103343 101,864 103602 3,516,524 31882687
Reportable segment labilifies ARENBER 7401 435475 590,631 639,673 0170 154207 202,391 205,873 7914 6758 1478507 1441986
Additons o non-current REEFRZERDA
segment assets during the year A& 125029 169735 167818 261219 104,769 73,286 9,486 2906 6,033 1004 413135 508,250
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3 Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXFERSBHRE @

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting [Continved| (b) 2EFHE )
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit (i) BARMESIIBLA B EERE
or loss, assets and liabilities BZHiR
2012 2011
—B-CF T
$’000 FT $'000 F7t

Revenue [ 9N
Reportable segment revenue BREDEBZ WA 3,857,182 3,523,060
Elimination of infersegment revenue 7 BRI Z 55 (140,643) (193,724)
Consolidated turnover REEER 3,716,539 3,329,336
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit BREDH

from operations Fg=yingl 504,545 503,188
Finance costs BE A (17,243) (7,279)
Unallocated head office RO BT

and corporafe expenses LEER (79,209) (76,648)
Consolidated profit before taxation FABRTADER] 408,093 419,261
Interest income FIBBA
Reportable segment inferest income IREBE D2 A BWA 1,782 1,929
Unallocated head office b i cYNG|

and corporate interest income R EFBUA 24 20
Consolidated interest income RE T B U A 1,806 1,949
Equity settled share-based URBBARERER

payment expenses
Reportable segment expenses AMEDE 2 ER 882 678
Unallocated head office RO 2 BT

and corporate expenses RikER 3,539 2,522
Consolidated equity seftled LARRAR A~ R LB

share-based payment expenses ZEREaER 4,421 3,200
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3 Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXFERSBHRE @
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting [Continved| (b) 2EFHE )
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit (ii) Li&%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&zk BE - EERA
or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) B2EER (@)
2012 2011
—E—-f —T——%F
$'000 ¥t $'000 Fit
Assets &E
Reportable segment assets BRED 2 EE 3,516,524 3,188,287
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 73 & FEHA 2 L 55 (601,501) (570,717)
2,915,023 2,617,570
Deferred tax assets FERERIEE E 17,957 11,805
Current tax recoverable JE R BARL TR 430 5,438
Unallocated head office KA BAT
and corporate assets LiEEE 2,132 19,406
Consolidated total assets REWBEE 2,935,542 2,654,219
Liabilities =15
Reportable segment liabilities BERES B EE 1,478,507 1,441,986
Elimination of infersegment payables 73 R FE A 512 88 (310,145) (465,678)
1,168,362 976,308
Employee refirement benefit liabilities EERKBRNAR 2,228 2,177
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIBEE 59,084 50,081
Current tax payable JEA IR BAR IR 26,256 18,675
Unallocated head office PN M YN
and corporate liabilities Ei¥aE 1,272 17,257
Consolidated total liabilities meras 1,257,202 1,064,498
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

(b)
(iii)

(iv)

Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXFERSBHRE @
(Continued)
Segment reporting (Confinued) (b) 2EFHE )
Geographic information (i) HERER
The following table sets out information about the TREJNEAASEEEEE  BE
geographic location of the Group’s fixed assets, deposits for ME BMEMREZITE  BEEE
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible EEE([HRTEHERDEE]) 2
assefs and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The BUBZEMN RETERDEEM
geographic location of the specified non-current assefs is o WMREETEEMBERTEEEL
based on the physical location of the asset, in the case Ale BB EREZEEZE
of fixed assets and deposits for the acquisition of fixed BOWMWEBUERTE MUBEEEER
assets, and the location of the operation to which they are BEM S B R REME o
allocated, in the case of infangible assets and goodwill.
Specified non-current assets
BEERDEE
2012 2011
—B-C=F .
$'000 it $'000 7t
Hong Kong and Macav = &BFR®M 579,210 517,367
Mainland China B A 585,881 434,182
Australia and New Zealand SN & FT PR R 285,564 200,894
North America 13N 93,538 Q6,867
Singapore EAIDIIEE 74,801 73,375
... Mo39784 805318
1,618,994 1,322,685
The revenue from external customers and specified non- EE(XEEMAEM) 6K EE K
current assefs of the Group atfributed to Hong Kong, the BANEE R 2 WA R AR B E JE
Group's place of domicile, amounted to $1,542,629,000 mEEE D B A1,542,629,000 7T
(2011: $1,417,860,000) and $571,956,000 (2011: (ZZ ——4%:1,417,860,0007T)
$510,452,000] respectively. & 571,056,000 ( =& — — F:
510,452,0007%) °
Major customers (iv) EEEF

In 2012, the revenue from the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers amount to 6% (2011: 7%) and 20%
(2011: 22%) of the Group's fotal revenue respectively.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
cusfomers are set out in note 2//(al.

R-ZE——%F RELAKEZAEP
MRAEREP WA D RE AR B 2K
AZ6%(ZF——5F : 7%) }20% (=
T——5 1 22%) -

RERBES 2 SEEHRGR
SRHEE 27(0) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(% BHHBI - LB )

4 FHBUWA

4 Other revenue

2012 2011
s —E—F
$'000 F3¢ $'000 F7T
Interest income F B WA 1,806 1,049
Service fee income R ERA 32,240 23,852
Rental income AL UA 2,310 2,530
Sundry income HIBIA 4,482 5,544
40,838 33,875

5 Profit before taxation 5 BK¥iann

Profit before taxation is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

%JEEEEEU MBI (G

2012 2011
—F—= —E——5F
$'000 FiT $000 F7t
(a)  Finance costs: (a) RHERE :
Interest on bank loans RITERZF B 22,584 6,815
Finance charges on obligations MEREEKZ

under finance leases B & R 1,270 1,628
23,854 8,443

less: interest expense capitalised R BB K&

into property, plant BEERZ
and equipment * w8 > (6,611) (1,164)
17,243 7,279

* WERNMEZ EERAAFE1.43% -
732%BEAE (2T ——F : §F
1.39% — 6.44%) °

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rafe of
1.43% — 7.32% per annum (2011: 1.39% — 6.44% per

annum).
2012 2011
—E——f —T——%F
$’000 FiTt $'000 F7T
(b)  Staff costs: (b) EBEImAE:
Contributions to defined AEHRFENRFTEIZ
contribution refirement plans R 36,357 27,295
Net expenses/(income) NATIEEB 2 EH#R
recognised in respect of: BR,/ (WA F5:
— refirement gratuites [note 23(c)(v)) - RIRE (BI5E23(c)v) 1,365 591
— long service payments - KRB S (81) (138)
Retirement costs RIRAAR 37,641 27,748
Equity settled share-based VARR 19 R SR ETE 2
payment expenses & 4,421 3,200
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMEFR 759,868 667,134
801,930 698,082
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AA TR MiEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

. . bl ©,
5 Profit before taxation (Coniinued) 5 BRBian&F
Profit before taxation is arrived at after BRELADERIC MBR 7 (5T
charging/(crediting): (Continued) A) L)
2012 2011
—F-CF T
$'000 T3t $'000 F7t
()  Other items: HMIEH :
Amortisation of inferests REKEHERF
in leasehold land held for fEERAZEELTH
own use under operating leases W2 i 891 869
Amortisation of intangible assets I A E 7 B 2,136 2,014
Depreciation e
- Investment properties - REME 526 527
— Assets acquired -UREHEEBA
under finance leases ZEE 4,439 4,845
— Other assets - Hih&EE 122,243 105,773
Recognition/(reversal) FEURBR R K H At
of impairment losses on frade JE YRR (B 5 1R
and other receivables R, (BE)
(note 17(b)) (BFZET7(b) 51 (337)
Reversal of impairment losses M BELREZ
on property, plant A E RO
and equipment (note 12(al) (BtsE 12(a) (132) (1,475)
Auditors’ remuneration ZERTEN
— Audit services - BRI
— Provision for the current year - RFE 7 B 4,239 4,081
— Under-provision in respect - NEFRE 2B
of prior year T~ 238 457
— Tax services - MBS 281 541
— Other services - H AR5 430 354
Operating lease charges: KEHEER
minimum lease payments REBERK
— Hire of properties - HAm*E 52,872 48,033
— Hire of factory machinery - TR TR s
and equipment P& 1,653 2,245
— Contingent rent - REE 1,029 767
Net loss on disposal HEWE - BB MK
of property, plant and equipment Z 1R 1,715 739
Net foreign exchange gain SN U 5 R (674) (787]
Net gain on forward exchange EIEREITIAZ
confracts not designated EHINEEH Z
as hedging instruments F - (265]
Cost of inventories (note 16(b)) FEEA (i 16(b) 1,995,203 1,784,290
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AA TR MiEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

. . p
6 Income tax in the consolidated 6 FEEBDBRZAEHR
income statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (o) FmEBERBRZBENT :
statement represents:
2012 2011
—B——% —T——%F
$'000 FiT $'000 Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ AHIHIE - FEFIEH
Provision for the year FAEE 32,190 19,224
Under-provision in respect of prior years  LAE G E 2 BHET 2 525 1,071
L 27215 20,295
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong FHIBIE - FELIMLE
Provision for the year FAEE 50,525 54,240
[Over)/underprovision WAEFEr GBERE)
in respect of prior years BEIT R (1,210) 1,190
L 49315 . 95,430
Deferred tax IBIEFIE
Origination and reversal of RERBRERER
temporary differences [noe 25(bl)  (MfE250) %66l 12,157
85,691 87,882
Notes: B 5T -

R FEBNEGHBEIES
M2t EERBEMIA16.5% (= F
——F :16.5%) ZTEHE -

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is (i)
calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at BELAIME R 2 A R 2 BIEAIR
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant ERABIAREEER ZBITHES
tax jurisdictions. o

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

HERmBRZMEH

6 Income tax in the consolidated 6

income statement (Continued)

(a) Toxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

In accordance with the relevant People’s Republic of
China ["PRC") corporate income tax laws, regulations and
implementation guidance notes, the stafutory income fax
rate applicable fo the Company’s subsidiary in Shenzhen
will change from 15% to 25% progressively within five years
from 1st January, 2008 (2008: 18%; 2009: 20%; 2010:
22%; 2011: 24%; 2012: 25%). For the subsidiary located
in Shanghai, the applicable statutory tox rate is 25% from
Ist January, 2008 and that subsidiary starts its two years’
tax holiday from 1st January, 2008 and theredfter enjoys
a tax relief of 50% reduction in the income tax rate for a
period of three years commencing 1st January, 2010. For
the subsidiary located in Foshan, the applicable statutory tax
rate is 25%

In addition, the Group is subject o withholding tax at the
rate of 10% [unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31st December, 2007 from the
Group's foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As more
than 25% of the capital of all the Group’s PRC enterprises is
owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a rate of
5% is applicable in the calculation of this withholding fax.
Deferred fax liabilities have been provided for in this regard
based on the expected dividends to be distributed from the
Group's foreign-invested enterprises in the foreseeable future
in respect of the profits generated after 31st December,

2007.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(a)

(b)

(%)

HREBElRRZBIENT ¢

(%)
BraE
(i)

C(#)

BIEREREARLFE ([HE])
EMRBSREZERLERIES T
B EBRRARRZRIINE QR
ZEEBEREA TS N\F—A
—B® RAFABISUELEE
B25U(ZZETNE: 18%: —TF
NE:20%: —F —FF:22%:
T —F % B ——F:
25%) - MR EBZHB AR - A
T N\F—F—BE  EREAEHR
RE25%  MZMBATE _ZZN
F—A—HERABEMFRBR 2%
BE THR-ZZ—ZTF—F—HEE
BAR=ZFE250%IEHEHRBEE
e A RBILZHMBARME B
AEERER25% -

BESN - BRIFERATR R - BAIAREE
ARAKETRBEINELEUAR —FE
tHEF A=+ —BREEZEFIE
H oz 0 ki 10% 15 R ER IR ©
BHRAEEAETECEPER25%
ERB—HREBEMAZZHE L
AR - A EWEHRER 2B
ER5%  REBCHRIEREAEER
SVE RN AT R ARRIAFT AR = F
TEFET A=+ RRELZHEN
Dk B EEFHREERARAILE

MIE 37 H B e g A LAE A

BRGTE 2SR

2012 2011
—EB—F —T——fF
$'000 Fit $'000 F7t

Profit before taxation BB A A 408,093 419,261
Notional tax on profit before taxation, REBREREEER

calculated at the rates applicable A2 FISTHBE

to profits in the tax jurisdictions SHERBATNER 2

concerned HEMIE 81,672 86,328
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PR S B2 B 2 2,993 1,051
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERBRA 2 G E (534) [716)
Withholding tax of PRC subsidiary H BB B N B 2 TEIE 3,849 2,975
Tax effect of unused tax losses RELRIET IR

not recognised for deferred AERREEERLZ

tax purposes D% 1,906 1,536
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax B ERSIELERIE

losses not previously recognised RZANERHRBEERZ

for deferred tax purposes migF & - (4,464)
[Over)/underprovision in respect NAFEr (BERE)

of prior years BETe (685) 2,261
Others HAth (3,510) (1,989
Actual tax expense G 85,691 87,882
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(BB - LUBHERE)

7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEiE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section RIBEEFE CRRMEDI) £ 161 &M £
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the RAZHERBZEETMEWT ¢
requirements of the Listing Rules is as follows:
2012
—E-Zf
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discrefionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Subotll  payments Total
e B2 B HihE

ESNe  REVEN  BRR RHTEER NGt BHEZHE @t
§000FT  S000FT  $000FT  Y000FT  §000FT  S000FT  §'000 Fi

Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Winston Yauloi LO ERERE 185 3,882 2,940 225 7232 1,341 8,573
Mr. laurence P. EISENTRAGER PEERE 92 4,355 3,423 272 8,142 1,784 9,926
Mr. Eric Fat YU RELE 92 2,042 563 160 2,857 21 3,078
[retired on (R=%-z%
15t April, 2012) mE—BET)
Non-executive Directors FurEE
Ms. Myma Mo-ching LO BRANT 102 - - - 102 - 102
Ms. Yvonne Mofing 1O ERILL 102 - - - 102 - 102

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFH{TEE

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwokpo Il ZEEEL 309 - - - 309 - 309
Mr. loin F. BRUCE (il 309 - - - 309 - 309
M. Jan P.S. ERLUND Jan PS. ERUND %4 302 - - - 302 - 302
Mr. Valiont Kin-piv CHEUNG FRETE 302 - - - 302 - 302

1,795 10,279 6,926 657 19,657 3,346 23,003
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(BB - LUBHERE)

7 Directors’ remuneration (Confinved| 7 EENE W
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section REBEEB (BRI £161HR E
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the MRAZHAERBEZ2EEHMENT :
requirements of the Listing Rules is as follows: [confinued) (%&)
2011
“F——F
Salaries,
allowances Refirement Share-
Directors'  and benefils ~ Discrefionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  confribufions Subrfotal payments Total
g4 2% Bl WA
EShe  REMEN  BRZEL RAGEIER et ERZAR st
$000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  §000Fm  $000Fx - $000Fm  $000 i
Executive Directors HiTEs
Mr. Winston Yaudai 1O EREfH 176 3783 2,909 220 7,088 840 7928
Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER BEERAE 88 4,044 3,035 202 7,369 1,105 8,474
Mr. Eric Fat YU RERE 88 1,977 588 153 2,806 214 3,020
Non-executive Directors FUES
Ms. Myma Mo-ching LO BRART 97 - - - 97 - 97
Ms. Yvonne Moring LO BRRLL 97 - - - 97 - 97

Independent Non-execufive Directors BIFH{TEE

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwokpo ll - ZEIEE+ 294 - - - 294 - 294
Mr. lain F. BRUCE LY k3 294 - - - 204 - 204
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND Jon PS. ERIUND %4 288 - - - 288 - 288
M. Valiant Kin-piv CHEUNG REELE 167 - - - 167 - 167
1,589 9,804 6,532 575 18,500 2,159 20,659
Share-based payments represent the estimated value of AR BER 2 MRERBEARRZ
share options granted o the Directors under the Company’s BREGERTER 2 BRE 2 hEh
share option scheme. The value of these share options is BE - WwEBREZEEDREMZE
measured according fo the Group’s accounting policies for 1(pliv) BT &1 25 & B L LARR 19 B 1T 5 E
sharebased payment transactions as sef out in nofe 1(p)(iv). MR BHEAZGTBERMATE ©
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal EBEYEMNFS (BREREZ
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note Bl T2ERRBE) KRR 24
24. HIRER
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(BB - LUBHERE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2011: two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in nofe 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other three (201 1: three) individuals are as follows:

mEMEAT

EREREHEALH ME(ZF
——FWEH) REF WEZHE
RHFE7 FRE - A =% (ZF——
F:=F)REMEALTZHERERE
LI

2012 2011

—E——f —E——fF

$'000 FiT $'000 Fit

Salaries and other emoluments He REMME 7,566 7,224
Retirement scheme contributions RIKET BB 240 196
Discretionary bonuses BT R fEAT 3,370 3,281
Share-based payments VAR AR A ELhE 2 173K 733 567
11,909 11,268

Share-based payments represent the estimated value
of share options granted to the individuals under the
Company's share option scheme. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group's accounting
policies for share-based payment fransactions as set out in
note 1(p)(iv). The principal ferms of the share option scheme
are disclosed in note 24.

The emoluments of the three (2011 three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

AR IR B 2 (SR BR B A R R 2
B ERTENA T ZEEE
EEHEE - SR RE ZEERE
B E 1 (p)(iv) P 8% AN 5 B 5 A B {0 7
NRERZ X RN 2 G BER M
B - BRERT8Z = B IRFNMEE 24
RN

=H(CE——F: =ZF) &aMEA

TZBHE N T LAT4ER
2012 2011
—g--F —T——F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEL ANEL

$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 7t 3,500,000 7T
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 3,500,001 7tz 4,000,000 7T
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001 5t £ 4,500,000 7T
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 7t 5,000,000 7T

- -

1
1
1
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Statements

9 Profit atiributable to equity 9 AATREREAELR
shareholders of the Company #
The consolidated profit atiributable to equity shareholders of RAFIREREARIERE EME
the Company includes a profit of $191,446,000 (2011: BEINARRABIMBRER 2H
$169,739,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 191,446,000 ( = & — — F:
statements of the Company. 169,739,0007T) °
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit P BEARBRNFE RN H
for the year: &
2012 2011
—E—f —T——F
$'000 F3T $'000 F7t
Amount of consolidated profit affributable B FIAARA RIBI T 2
to equity shareholders dealt with in RAERE A AR
the Company's financial statements NS Dinyillicnact] 191,446 169,739
Dividends from subsidiaries affributable R EMHEB AR L —1&
to the profits of the previous MR ER R
financial year, approved WRAFZ A
and paid during the year SEANPA IS 99.240 82,815
Company's profit for the year AR Z RNF R H
[note 26(a)) (MF3E26(a) 290,686 252,554
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity EMARAREREARNREMNZ
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 26(b). R% B 2 S B E M EE 26(b) °
10 Other comprehensive income 10 Hih2mEiiz
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of (o) EEEMEE KR SN2
other comprehensive income: M E
2012 2011
—8-ZF “E--F
Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-ax NetofHax
amount  Tax-benefit amount amount  Taxbenefit amount
RHmeE  BEBNE ORRESE BRAeE HBNE NRTEGE
§000 F%&  $000FXT  §'000 Fw $000 Fr $000 Fxm  $000 Fix
Exchange differences on franslation of B EEAIMNEE
the financial statements of subsidiaries BRI HRE
outside Hong Kong FEECELER 18,884 - 18,884 47186 - 47186
Cash flow hedge: ReneEs:
net movement in the hedging reserve ESRETEDY (2,082) 3 (1,739) 2,105 1347) 1,758
16,802 343 17,145 49291 (347) 48,944
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

10 Hib2mis
(b) EtZ2mEUzE 2345

10 Other comprehensive income (Coniinved)

(b) Components of other comprehensive income

2012 2011
—F-=F T
$'000 Tt $'000 F7t
Cash flow hedges: WeREBHH
Effective portion of changes in fair HNmR 2 Eh A
value of hedging instruments NREEEH BN
recognised during the period 5 (15) 2,105
Amounts transferred to initial EREEHRIEE
carrying amount of hedged items =YRAEEZ S5 (2,067) -
Net deferred tax credited/(charged) A/ (F0R) EthemE
to other comprehensive income Weas 2 IR FET TR HER 343 [347)
Net movement in the hedging reserve HR R E A
during the period recognised PHEWRERZ
in other comprehensive income b fEEFE (1,739) 1,758

11 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

11
(a)

The calculation of basic earings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $281,003,000 (2011: $284,314,000) and the

weighted average number of 1,021,

192,000 ordinary

shares (2011: 1,018,573,000 ordinary shares) in issue

during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BB

BREXER

BREARBNIREARRRRERSH
A FE A& % A1281,003,0007T ( =&
— — % :284,314,0007L) K & F
BB 1T E B Z T 52
1,021,192,000 x E@BIX (=T ——
F:1,018,573,000f Fi@AR) 5t &
LU

HERZ TR

2012 2011

—Z——f —T——%F

Number of Number of

shares shares

BEHEE R g8

‘000 % ‘000 Fi%

Issued ordinary shares at 1st April ROA—HzZBEBITLBR 1,019,852 1,017,688

Effect of share options exercised BITEERE & 1,340 885
Weighted average number REEEBERZ
of ordinary shares for the year InkEF AR

(note 11(b)) (Bt=E11(b) 1,021,192 1,018,573
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(BB - LUBHERE)

11 Earnings per share (Coninved) 11 kB =
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREERF
The calculation of diluted earings per share is based on Bh#EERNIBRBERARRRERE
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company A FE 18 % #281,003,0007T (=&
of $281,003,000 (2011: $284,314,000) and the — — % :284,314,0007T) K& Bt FR
weighted average number of 1,028,691,000 ordinary EABOEERN  ERAR 2 EE
shares (2011: 1,028,758,000 ordinary shares| after ELAREEZ 2L BB MNEFEHRE
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 1,028,691,000 )k Ei@wAR (=T ——
shares, calculated as follows: F:1,028,758,000 K E@mMk) ;T &
m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) BBz MBI RE (#E)
2012 2011
—g-C-F —E——F
Number of Number of
shares shares
8B Petn &1 B
‘000 Fi% ‘000 Fh&
Weighted average number RNEFEREZ
of ordinary shares for the year IR 19 Bk 25
[note 11(a)) (FFEE T 1{a)) 1,021,192 1,018,573
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares BRFZARBERAE 2
under the Company's share option BRI EET
scheme for nil consideration BITERRCTFE 7,499 10,185
Weighted average number REFERB 2
of ordinary shares (diluted) hnagEF 5 AR Ex
for the year (B58) 1,028,691 1,028,758
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(BB - LUBHERE)

12 Fixed assets 12 BE&E
(a) The Group () &AEE
Property, plant and equipment Inkress i
e . BERDE leasehold
land held
lond and Faclory Fixtures, for own use
buldings ~ machinery ~ fumiture under Total
held for ond  ond office Moor  Construction Invesimeni  operafing fixed
ownuse  equioment  equipment  vehicles inprogress  Subdotdl  properies leases assels
REga
HhME KB HERAf
BAz  IH#z G BRzEE 7

ThREF BRE BAERE nE EEIE N OREWE thER AESH
$000 T $000 Fx $000Fm $000Fx §$000Fx $000Fx §000Fm $000Fr §000Fr

Cost: BA:
At 1st April, 2010 RIZ-BF

mA-A 602436 1271125 161,534 82,487 38,205 2,155,877 22,698 10,504 2,189,079
Exchange adjusiments [ 18,285 47123 1,756 1,454 11,979 80,597 - 1,079 81,676
Additions HE - 45898 12,601 6,642 419597 484738 - 25901 510,639
Transfer Bt - 22,491 407 - (22,898 - - - -
Disposals e (307)  (31,130) (10,438 5,525) - [47.400) - - [47.400)
At 31st March, 2011 W_E——F

ZA=T-B 620414 1355507 165,860 85058 446973 20673812 22,698 37,484 2733994

Accumulated amortisation, Bt «

depreciation and HER

impairment losses: HEfE:
At 1st April, 2010 RIT-B%

MA-A 255,060 910,621 123912 60,564 - 1,350,157 14,399 3,448 1,368,004

Exchange adjusiments ELAZ 6,469 35,227 1,397 1,094 - 44187 - 175 44362
Charge for the yeor TERHHRAE 19,633 68,979 13,748 8,258 - 110,618 527 869 112,014
Reversal of impaiment  FESEED

losses [note 3c|) GIER]) - [1.475) - - - 1,475 - - [1,475)
Witen back on disposcls £ EEBE 62 29373 0904 (5315) S s § - s
At 31t March, 2011 RZF-—F
o SASTCR 281100 983979 129,153 eAe0l - - 1458833 14926 4492 147811
Net book value: RESE:
At 31st March, 2011 W_E——F

ZA=t-B 339314 371528 36707 20457 446973 1214979 7772 32992 1,255,743
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(BB - LUBHERE)

12 Fixed assets (Confinved) 12 BIE&EE =
(CI) The GI’OUp (Continued) (G) ZIK;% (%)
Properqgglrx% ;1; ggpmem hi:::::l:ii:
land held
londand  Factory  Fixtures, for own use
buildings  machinery  furniture under Total
held for and  and office Motor Construction Investment  operating fixed
ownuse equipment equipment  vehicles inprogress  Sub-fotal  properties leases assefs
RELE
e KE. HERAME
BRZ IRHE KRR BRZEE B

1HREF R HAZRA RE  ERIR It REME  DRER  SEGH
§000 F& $'000F% §'000 Fx $000FT $'000FL $000FT $'000FT $000 FT §'000 Fi

Cost: BA:
At st Apiil, 2011 RZF——F

mA—H 620,414 1,355,507 165,860 85,058 446,973 2,673,812 22,698 37484 2,733,994
Exchange adjusiments R 6,573 19,866 675 653 4,444 32,21 - 1,386 33,597
Additions RE 9,983 40,788 14,346 10,674 348,585 424,376 - 1,931 426,307
Transfer i 130,320 287,334 33,907 678 (452,245) - - - -
Disposals HE - 31,266) (7,296) 4,981) - (43,543) - - 43,543)

At 31t March, 2012 i S
A=t-H 767,296 1672229 207,492 92,082 347,757 3,086,856 22,698 40,801 3,150,355

Accumulated amortisation, Btk

depreciation and &R
impairment losses: RERE:
At st Apil, 2011 RZF-——F
MA—H 281,100 983979 129,153 64,601 - 1,458,833 14,926 4,492 1478251
Exchange adjusiments B A% 3,126 12,937 518 422 - 17,003 - 174 17177
Charge for the year TERHHERAE 22662 78669 16531 8,820 - 126,682 526 891 128,099
Reversol of impaiment  HEEHRBEE
losses [note 3c|) GIER]) - (132) - - - (132) - - (132)
Whitien bock on disposals i EFH[El - (28,237) (6,928) 4,885 - [(40,050) - - (40,050)
At 315t March, 2012 W_%--F
ZA=t-H 306888 1,047,216 139,274 68,958 - 1,562,336 15,452 5557 1,583,345

Net book value: FREFE:

At 31st March, 2012 W_%--F
ZA=t—H 460,408 625,013 68,218 23,124 347,757 1,524,520 7,246 35,244 1,567,010
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(BB - LUBHERE)

. o .
12 Fixed assets (Conrinved) 12 BIE&E
(b) The Company (b) A7)
Properly, plant and equipment
ER GG
land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings  machinery furniture Total
held for and  and office Motor ~ Consfruction Invesiment fixed
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles  inprogress ~ Subdofal  properies assefs
BAfE R
BRI AR Bl

T RET REE BLERE nE EEIR Pt RENE AEEH
$000 F7r  §000 F7 $'000 Fx §'000 Fx $000 Fx $000F $000FL $000F7

Cost: A
At Tst April, 2010 RZT-ZfF

mA—A 141766 470,173 80,115 59,889 28313 780,256 22,698 802,954
Additons 5E S 30234 6899 2443 115185 154761 - 154761
Transfer a5 - 401 - - (401 - - -
Disposals e - (18,867 (3,896 (2,957 - (25,720 - (25,720
At 31st March, 2011 RZZE——F

SRA=T—H 141,766 481,941 83,118 59,375 143,097 909,297 22,698 931,995

Accumulated depreciation: ~ B3HFE :

At Tst April, 2010 RZZ-%F

mA—A 68,105 337,040 58,124 45,724 - 508,993 14,399 523,392
Charge for the year KEERE 4,213 24,076 6,601 5479 - 40,369 527 40,896
Wrien back on disposals (1 &R - (18,284) (3,874 (2,951) - (25,109) - (25,109)
At 31st March, 2011 WZE——F

=A=t-H 72,318 342832 60,851 48,252 - 524,253 14926 539179
Net book value: FREFE
At 31st March, 2011 RZE——F

=A=t-H 69,448 139,109 22,267 11,123 143,097 385,044 7772 392816
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. proe i
12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 BEEE #)
(b) The Company (Continved) (b) &RRAF &)
Property, plant and equipment
% BEREE
Land and Factory  Fixtures,
buildings ~ machinery ~ furniture Total
held for and  and office Motor  Construction Investment fixed
ownuse equipment equipment  vehicles inprogress  Sub-fotal properties assets
waf kB
BRZ IB#&S RHE BE

1HEET RRE HAERB RE  ERIE Nt REME RS
§000 ¥ §'000 Fx $'000F:w $000FxT $'000FT $000 FT §'000 FET $'000 Fi

Cost: BA
At Tst April, 2011 RZZE——F

mA—A 141,766 481,941 83,118 59,375 143,097 909,297 22,698 931,995
Additions NE - 20,473 5,792 6,117 83,988 116,370 - 116,370
Transfer i - 28,959 32,625 678 (62,262) - - -
Disposals HE - (10,538) (2,362) (4,148) - (17,048) - (17,048)

At 31st March, 2012 RZE--F
=R=t—H 141766 520835 119173 62,022 164,823 1,008,619 22,698 1,031,317

Accumulated depreciation: BT :

At Tst April, 2011 R-F—F

MA—H 72,318 342,832 60,851 48,252 - 524253 14926 539,179
Charge for the year KEEHE 4,215 28,273 8,658 5,540 - 46,686 526 47,212
Writien back on disposals &R - (8,666) (2,325) (4,141) - (15,132 - (15,132)
At 31t March, 2012 RZE--F

ZR=1-H 76,533 362439 67,184 49,651 - 555807 15452 571,259

Net book value: FREFME :

At 31st March, 2012 RZE--F
=A=t+-H 65,233 158,396 51,989 12,371 164,823 452,812 7,246 460,058
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12 BE&EE @
(c) MEZEREFEZOFOT

12 Fixed assets (Confinved|

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties

is as follows:

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
=%-=F 2% Z¥-=ZF T —F
$’000 Ft $'000 Tt $'000 FiT $'000 Frr
In Hong Kong EEE
— medium-erm leases - RHEIFE A 166,959 175,868 72,479 77,220
Outside Hong Kong B AN
— freehold - KAKERE 110,069 110,182 - -
— medium-erm leases - RHEIFE A 225,517 63,251 - -
— shortterm leases - R HEIME A 353 30,777 - -
502,898 380,078 72,479 77,220
Representing: K
Land and buildings held BEEERZ
for own use T REF 460,408 339,314 65,233 69,448
Investment properties LEME 7,246 7772 7,246 7772
Interests in leasehold land RiRAC &M
held for own use under BHEER Fﬁz
operating leases HE TR 35,244 32,992 - -
502,898 380,078 72,479 77,220
(d) Fixed assets held under finance leases (d) UmtEREEEZEEEE

In addition to the leasehold land classified as being held
under finance leases, the Group and the Company hold
factory machinery and equipment under finance leases
expiring from one to seven years. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

There was no addition to the factory machinery and
equipment of the Group and the Company financed by
finance leases during the year (201 1: $Nil).

BRIMEFUAREMERACHEHE LI
Sh REBERARBFE BN —ELF
NEHZzRERE - 58 THEER
B MEHESYEBEXRAES -

G ARERADTLMEBUE
HE (—T——%  To0) FE TR
%5 F 21 -

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of the factory REEEHR - RNEE &$ AIARE R
machinery and equipment held under finance leases of ERFAzIRKEREECREDFE

the Group and the Company amounted to $14,871,000
(2011: $21,204,000) and $Nil (2011: $2,991,000)
respectively. The Group’s obligations under finance leases
are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased asses.
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12 Fixed assets (Confinved|

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Fixed assets leased out under operating
leases

The Group and the Company lease out investment
properfies under an operating lease. The lease runs for
an initial period of three years, with an option fo renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. The lease does not include contingent rentals.

The Group's fotal future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

12 BEEE »

(e)

BECEHERE ZBEEE
[

REBRARRAFA-BLEHER
REME - ZBEHEEVFSH=F
WEEREERERMARESR  ER
PRBEGRRIO A BEHEE - 2 AHEY
BEREIAEE -

AEBRBETAIEE 2 KEHERR
‘W ZEESNF@ENT

The Group and the Company

FEERAAT
2012 2011
s —T——%F
$'000 T3t $'000 F7
Within one year —FNR 579 579

The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March,
2012 is $46,980,000 (2011: $44,540,000) which
is estimated on the basis of capitalisation of the net rental
income with due allowance for reversionary income
potential. The valuation was carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Jones lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, who
have among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of the properties being valued.

(f)

REMEZARE

BREMER_T——_F=A=+—H
ZAMER 46,980,000 (ZF——
F:44,540,0007T) - 1t Ty % F
TWABER AL AHEHHE WA
HEZ AR EEITEE - AETIHE
SRIERITHEBITAMERARE
17 HEBBEAEBAEMES
S8 EMHEYEZNERERA
B HRREEER

Fixed assets pledged against bank loans (g) MRITERBEHRZBEEEE
At 31st March, 2011, the following items of property, plant R-EBE——F=A=+—H UAT®
and equipment were pledged fo secure certain bank loans X -BELIEBRED THEF + LA¥E
or bank facilities granted to the Group (note 21): REEEER 2B TRITERKIRT

B8 (MisE21) :

The Group

AEE

2011

—E——F

$/000 F7t

Net book value of pledged assets: EIREE 2 REFE
Land and buildings held for own use BEEERAZ T RETF 12,438

Deposits for the acquisition of fixed assets

As at 31st March, 2012, the Group and the Company
made deposits totalling $1,156,000 (2011:
$14,011,000) and $610,000 (2011: $1,223,000)

respectively fo acquire property, plant and equipment.

(h)

BEREEEZA =

—_E-—_Ff=R=t—HB" ' &XE
ARAABENE - BERR
DRXHET & A& 1,156,000

SIEER

N ~—
N
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13 BREE

13 Intangible assets

The Group REE
Brand Customer
name list Total
n 4 T BFHE 5T
$'000 F7r $'000 F7t $'000 F7t
Cost: A :
At st April, 2010 R-E—TEmA—A 7,271 10,771 18,042
Exchange adjustments T 5, 3 B 827 1,223 2,050
At 31st March, 2011 R=ZF——%=A=t—-RH 8098 11,994 20,092
Accumulated amortisation: FatEes .
At Tst April, 2010 R-ZZE—ZTFWMYA—H 727 3,077 3,804
Exchange adjustments M 5 S B 103 434 537
Charge for the year ARF E Y 385 1,629 2,014
Ai 31st March, 2011 R=F——%=A=t—-H 215 5140 6,355
Net book value: BRIEF(E :
At 31st March, 2011 R-ZZE—F=ZA=+—H 6,883 6,854 13,737
Brand Customer
name list Total
mhRETE EFRBE gzt
$’000 FiT $’000 F3T $’000 FiT
Cost: o
At 1st April, 2011 R-ZZE—FMA—A 8,098 11,994 20,092
Exchange adjustments [ 5 58 2 3 5
At 3Tst March, 2012 R=F-——%=A=t—-H 8100 1 1,997 20,097
Accumulated amortisation: Haties
At st April, 2011 RZZE—FWMA—A 1,215 5,140 6,355
Exchange adjustments PE & (3) (13) (16)
Charge for the year RF 408 1,728 2,136
At 31st March, 2012 R=ZF——%#=ZA=+—-H 1620 ¢ 685 8,475
Net book value: REF{E
At 31st March, 2012 RZBE——F=A=+—H 6,480 5,142 11,622

AEERBEBREPAE I BYE
REHAGARRER R HEEE
IR

The amortisation charges for brand name and customer list
for the year are included in “other operating expenses” in
the consolidated income statement.
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14 Goodwill 14 /&

The Group
F%E
2012 2011
—F—-F —
$'000 Fit $'000 F7t
Cost: A
At 1st April REA—HB 39,194 35,197
Exchange adjustments [ 3,3 12 3,997
At 31st March R=A=+—H 39,206 39,194
Impairment tests for cash-generating unit BEmBcREELENY
containing goodwill AR R
Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share HEEKES—R’m (FLA) BRAA
capital in Unicurd Food Co. (Private) Limited [“Unicurd”). (I#—]) 22 EBRAMESE - At -
Therefore it is allocated to Singapore segment according o HEERE - REMERRD I EHN
the country of operation of Unicurd for impairment festing AN R LAETTIRE R
purposes.
The recoverable amount of the Unicurd operations is Bz AR B RE S RE
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That BEET - ZTEERRERELR
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial BEZ=FHREESLEzBREeRER
budgets approved by management covering a three- Be =ZFURZIRERERNEREI%
year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are (ZF——%F:3%) cFIBREHEH -
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (201 1: 3%). ZIBRE N BB — EBRKEE
The growth rafe does not exceed the longterm average ZRETFHERE -
growth rate for the business in which the Unicurd operations
operate.
Key assumptions used for the value-inuse calculation: AEEREERKAZEIERRN
™
2012 2011
—F—-=-F —T——%F
— Gross margin - EF= 42.0% 43.0%
— Annual sales growth rate -R=FHHEZ
for the three-year period FHEERE 9.8% 9.2%
— Pre-tax discount rafe - BREIRIATIR = 14.0% 14.5%
Management determined the budgeted gross margin ERERBEAERRMNEHEMSERE
and sales growth rate based on past performance and its 2R HEREEMNXRHEERK
expectation for market development. The discount rate used Ko FAERZT R XA RREABE D
is prefax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant R E R 2 AT K o
segment.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change ERERR  BEEARESREAKE
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is ZEEBRREBEMSIBAIRES
based would not cause the carrying amount o exceed its BTG REEBRBHATKEIEE -

recoverable amount.
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15 Interest in subsidiaries 15 MIBASIHELE

The Company
AAT
2012 2011
—F-=F —T——%
$'000 FiT $'000 Fit
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMRE - BRAE 168,124 93,072
Amounts due from subsidiaries i E=NEIE e 554,078 1,170,243
722,202 1,263,315
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (217,407) (805,574)
504,795 457,741
At 31st March, 2012 and 2011, amounts due from RZE——FR_ZFT——F=A
subsidiaries are unsecured, interestfree and have no fixed =t+—H BEURHEBLRREEER
terms of repayment. The entire balance is expected to be HREREETEENR - FIBEHR
recovered after more than one year. RSN E —FIRER -
Impairment losses on interest in subsidiaries represent the ME AR R REEBEBER RS
write down of the carrying values of the investment cost and T B QA 2 RE R KB 2 BR
receivables from certain subsidiaries to their recoverable EEMURZEE AT B S 5E -
amounts.
The following list confains the particulars of the subsidiaries TREBEAEEMBLARZFE - B
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless SHEERIN AEBEREF 2B RF
otherwise stated. AP R AR -
All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note LLE T A B RS 1) PR E 2
1{d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial SZEFIMB AR WEAERZHH
statements. WMERNEEEETE -
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment issued and Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation paid-up capital ownership interest activities
ARSI E
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
IR EBITR 48 MEBAS
AFEH B BRBRAHE o) #E TEEB
% %
Vitasoy Holdings N.V. Netherlands Anfilles US$6,100 100 - Investment
(note i)] (FFEE (i) R G 6,100% 7T holding
ey
Vitasoy International B.V. Netherlands EUR22,500 - 100 Investment
(note (i) (BTE (i) = 22, 5008t holding
REZMK
Vitasoy (UK) Investments United Kingdom GBP2 100 - Investment
Company Limited HE PES holding
(note (i) CHTEE (i) BERE
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15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 15 MBAS#E =
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment issued and Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation paid-up capital ownership interest activities
L A
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
s B R EBTR K47 MEAE
AT EH BRI HRRAFE o] Ex] TEEH
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States Common sfock: 100 - Manufacture
(note (i) (E=E (i) of America US$12,061,000 [2011: ) [2011: 100) and sale of
ESE Bl (Z2——%F:-) (ZZ——%:100)  soyrelated
12,061,000% T products
EERHE
Convertible SHER
series A
preferred stock:
US$38,400,000
AARAR
5 &
38,400,000% 7T
Shenzhen Vitasoy PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture
(Guang Ming) i AR (2011: 70) and sale of
Foods and Beverage 80,000,000t  (ZZ——%:70) beverages
Company Limited (note i) HERIHE
Rl (R8) Ramak #im
ARAR (K& (i)
Vitasoy [China) Invesiments Hong Kong $20 100 - Investment
Company limited BE 207t holding
g (PE) REFRAF REER
Vitasoy (Shanghai) PRC  RMBI191,476,367 - 100 Manufacture
Company Limited [nofe iii)) FE AR and sale of
i (H8) AR 191,476,367 7C beverages
(BEE (i) EERHE
B im
Vita International Hong Kong $20 100 - Investment
Holdings Limited BE 207 holding
HHEREEERAF RAEER
Vitasoy Australia Australia V class shares: - 51 Manufacture
Products Pty. Lid. BN A$8,925,000 and sale of
VR - beverages
8,925,000 HERHE
R im
N class shares:
A$8,575,000
N#EA :

8,575,00087T
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(BB - LUBHERE)

15 MIBASIHER @)

15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment issued and Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation paid-up capital ownership interest activities
L A
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
s B R EBTR K47 MEAE
AT EH BRI HRRAFE o] Ex] TEEH
% %

Vitasoy Australia Australia A$175 - 100 Dormant
Food Products Pty. Lid. M 17587 Tmax
(note (iv)) (FH=E (iv))

Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution

#efo g CRFY) AR AR P! gkl of beverages

100,0007T 2 R

Produtos De Soja Hong Kong Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
[Macau) Limitada SRFY SRPTRE TmEE

EESm ORM) BRRA 10,0007T

Vitaland Services limited Hong Kong $3,000,000 100 - Operation of

# K RSB R AR B8 3,000,000 7T fuck shops

gearn

PR

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong $20 - 100 Provision of
ERERBRAA EE 207 catering
services

REER

R

The Hong Kong Soya Bean Hong Kong $20 100 - Property
Products Company, Limited EE 207 investment

ERAEMBRAT MELE

Vitasoy Distributors Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
(Singapore) Pe. Lid. N s Fimay

2,500,000 7T

Vitasoy Investment Hong Kong $1 100 - Investment
Holdings Limited 0 17T holding

BHODREERERAF RAZR

Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100 Investment

HEf A$2,099 holding
Bl REER

2,999 #7

Deferred shares:

A$1

B

18T
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(BB - LUBHERE)

15 Interest in subsidiaries (Confinued) 15 MiBASHELE &)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment issued and Proportion of Principal
Name of company and operation paid-up capital ownership interest activities
AR E
held by the held by a
Company subsidiary
IR EBTR FAT HBAE
ATEH B HRBRAHE o] A TREH
% %
Vitasoy International Hong Kong $1 100 - Investment
Investment Limited B0 17T holding
HHDERREBRDF REZR
Vitasoy Investment Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Lid. BN O holding
10,000 7T REER
Unicurd Food Co. Singapore $$1,800,000 - 100 Manufacture
[Private] Limited N NI and sale of
H—Rm (LA) BRAF 1,800,000 7T soy related
products
HERHE
SHER
Vitasoy [China) Holdings Limited Hong Kong $1 100 - Investment
@ (PE) ERARAF £ 17T holding
REER
Vitasoy [Foshan] Company PRC  RMB200,000,000 - 85 Manufacture
Limited (note (v)} e AR (2011:100) and sale of
b () BRAR 200,000,0007¢ (ZZ——%:100) beverages
(FEE V) EERHE
R
Notes: 5T
(i) On 15th November, 2011, Vitasoy Infernational B.V. and (i) RZF——F+—A+HA ' Vilasoy
Vitasoy [UK) Investments Company Limited transferred tofal International B.V. K& Vitasoy (UK]
number of 24,122 common stock and 38,400 convertible Investments Company Limited & & [ 7%
series A preferred stock of Vitasoy USA Inc. fo the Company A R)#E5E Vitasoy USA Inc. & 2£24,122
at $Nil consideration. % & i AR K2 38,400 I% AT #2 AR A KR 12
FER o
During the year ended 31st March, 2012, Vitasory BHEz—_ZZ-—_F=A=+—8H
Holdings N.V., Vitasory International B.V. and Vitasory (UK) 1IE % & - Vitasoy Holdings N.V.
Investments Company Limited are in progress of dissolution. Vitasoy International B.V. X Vitasoy
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Vitasoy International (UK) Investments Company Limited
B.V. and Vitasoy (UK] Invesiments Company Limited are EEITRA - RNAEE B - Vilasoy
dissolved. International B.V. & Vistasoy (UK|
Investments Company Limited £ B f#
B o
[i)  Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage (i) Al (L8B) RmBREBERA A
Company Llimited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy”] is a sinoforeign (TR ] ) AP BIRKSL 2 40
equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be BEAERE  KREME_TIUNSF
operated up to 2049. On 5th September, 2011, the k- R-ZZB——FNHAHE  ARF
Company acquired additional 15% equity interest in MNP RE R4 M 1 5% AR AN A %5
Shenzhen Vitasoy, increasing the Group's equity inferest in REEPORYI 4t 2 Az R 70%
Shenzhen Vitasoy from 70% to 85% (see note 31(al). WINZE85% (RMFE31(a)) ©
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(% BHHBI - LB )

15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Vitasoy (Shanghai] Company Limited is a wholly foreign
owned subsidiary established in the PRC and is fo be
operated up fo 2045.

The Group effectively owns a 51% equity interest in Vitasoy

Australia Food Products Piy. Lid..

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited ("Vitasoy Foshan”) is a
sinoforeign equity joint venture established in the PRC and is

15 MIBASIHER @)

BEE -
(iii)

(iv)

(&)

g (£8) BRATRRFERK
M EINEMBLAF  KEHECT
MAFIE -

X & B £ B Vitlasoy Australia Food
Products Pty. Lid. 51% 2 & #4s o

Mgy (Bh L) BIRAA ([ #
i) RRPBEKIZZHIEER

Bh¥  KERE_TMAFLE - B
—E—FAATHER  AKEBE
BB 15% R AR - AEH

fo be operated up to 2049. On 14th September, 2011, the
Group disposed of 15% equity inferest in Vitasoy Foshan,
decreasing the Group's equity inferest in Vitasoy Foshan from

100% to 85% (see note 31(b)). PRI AL 2 B AN HE 2R B 100% 8,
HE85% (RMEES1(b) «
. 1=
16 Inventories 16 56
(a) Inventories in the balance sheets comprise: (o) EEEBERP2EFEERE
The Group The Company
AEHE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--¢ -3 45 —B-—=f -3 &
$000 ¥ $000 T $000 F3% $000 Fit
Raw materials Bkt 258,800 202,492 96,863 77,347
Finished goods BUAK oA 164,539 169,975 53,911 46,289
423339 372,467 150,774 123,636
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b)) ERB@mABR B 27
d included i ESELMOT
recognised as an expense and included in —a-Cha)

profif or loss is as follows:

The Group
XEH

2012 2011

—g--F —ET——F

$’000 FiT $'000 F7T

Carrying amounts of inventories sold BEFEZEREE 1,992,463 1,781,739
Write down of inventories WRTFE 2,740 2,551
1,995,203 1,784,290
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(BB - LUBHERE)

17 Trade and other receivables 17 FEMTRRRR B H fth FEUL =R
The Group The Company
XKE EAT]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—T--F _T—F B _T——F
$’000 ¥t $'000 Fir $'000 F5t $'000 Fit
Trade debtors and bills receivable & Y B 7% & FE U 22 5% 556,154 492,812 313,955 268,654
Less: Allowance for doubtful B RERE M
debts (note 17(b)) (KF3E17(b) (1,533) (1,765) (488) (418)
554,621 491,047 313,467 268,236
Other debtors, deposits Hip EU R - 1BE
and prepayments RIERRIE 113,907 88,054 25,569 18,697
668,528 579,101 339,036 286,933

The amount of the Group's and the Company’s other
debtors, deposits and prepayments expected to be
recovered or charged as expense after more than one year
is $9,727,000 (2011: $12,012,000) and $4,803,000
(2011: $5,994,000) respectively. All of the other trade
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

AREBRARAFAHARERE —F&
Yo [B] 38 30 Bk /3 B S22 E Al R IR
we RENKED H /9,727,000
T (ZF——%:12012,0007T)
4,803,000t ( = & — — #F:
5,094,000 7T) ° A EAhEUER K
H & WK TB B — F A U Bl s i RR
RAX - AEBWERNEFERTE
EAEAm -

(a) Ageing analysis (o) BRECDAT
The ageing of frade debtors and bills receivable (net of REEH RURERMERERE (2
allowance for doubtful debts) as of the balance sheet date MR REREME) ZHRERAT -
is as follows:
The Group The Company
FEE EAT]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—T-—-F —T——F ZB-ZHF _T——%F
$’000 F5t $'000 Fir $'000 Ft $'000 Fit
Current AEE o 437,836 402,894 222,710 199,669
Less than one month past due wH LR —EA 110,233 81,000 89,904 68,141
One to three months past due B —Z==@A 4,968 4,692 853 426
More than three months wmHARBB=EA
but less than twelve months BLR+Z@A
past due 1,372 2,449 - -
More than twelve months wEEA+—@A
past due 212 12 - -
Amounts pasidve omem 6785 88153 90757 68,567
554,621 491,047 313,467 268,236

AEEZ EEBERENMEE 27(a)

The Group’s credit policies are set out in note 27(a).
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17 Trade and other receivables (contined)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills

(c)

receivable

Impairment losses in respect of frade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(j(i)).

17
(b)

FEWRR =R B L At FEUESR ()
FEWBR R R B R 5 2 R (E

[ 35 A 4 B 2 M B 3% B 0 2 B
HESE + 7 BB U B e L
WEREERREEDS - EaKD
2 AR BSE - 5 B E A E R
[T e CF C R L:
1) -

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during REBHENFAZEEBMT
the year is as follows:
The Group The Company
AEKE AATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—%--fF —T——%F ZB-ZfF —T——F
$’000 F5x $'000 F7r $'000 FiT $'000 Fir
At 1st April RUA—H 1,765 2,187 418 411
Exchange adjustments PE 3R 12 42 - -
Impairment losses B EE
recognised/[reversed) ZHER, (#1E))
[note 5(c)) (F3E 5(c)) 51 (337) 70 7
Uncollectible amounts written off  “NAT Uz B & &8 2 Hfi 4 (295) (127) - -
At 31st March R=A=+—H 1,533 1,765 488 418

At 31st March, 2012, the Group’s and the Company’s
trade debtors and bills receivable of $1,533,000 (2011
$1,765,000) and $488,000 (2011: $418,000)
respectively were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are
not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are set out in nofe 17(a).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
fo a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are sill considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12

(c)

R-E——F=ZA=+—H K&
B AR Az R R E U = R
2 B1,533,000 L (=Z & — — &
1,765,0007t) K& 488,000 (==
——4F :418,0007T) JHEREE A
BERE - ZEE @B E 2 FE K K
BUERBrEFPAR - AREBWE
M EESRSEEAERR -

b AR 2 FE W AR TR % FE LK

SRIE

I 4 1R 51 X 5k B 1 AR B RUE 2 FE IR
AR EWE R 2 BR i 5 T &5 BT 5
17(a) °

8 780 5 7 4 R (B 2 P R BT A O
HRER LR BEZEF B -

B HME I R (B 2 R WS % 2 8 T
BEFAR  ZEEFPEAKERZE
ERBR - REBELR  EEE
BAERDBGEER 228U E - FHit#
AR EERIELRERE - A& H
W Bt F AR B TR AR -
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18 Bank deposits and cash and cash

(a)

equivalents

Bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents comprise:

18 SRITHERMEIFERITLHE
HIEH

(o) ROTEFRERERRELE
BIE -

-~

The Group The Company
AEKE AATF
2012 2011 2012 2011

- ~—T——F ZB—ZF ~—T——F
$’000 F3Tt $'000 Frr $000 Fit $'000 Fir

Cash at bank and in hand RITRERETRSE 205,684 350,713 25211 111,736
Bank deposits maturing within -+ FHREIR=EA A

three months when placed ZIRITER 172 1,598 - 1,428
Cash and cash equivalents BEEBBERAZES

in the balance sheet FkIRE&EEIER 205,856 352,311 25,211 113,164
Bank deposits maturing after BB =18 A

three months but within BR—FA

one year when placed ZIRITIER 438 10,412 - 9,992

206,294 362,723 25,211 123,156

At 31st March, 2012, the Group and the Company have
designated cerfain bank balances that are denominated
in Euro and Renminbi which total $5,934,000 (2011
$33,630,000) to hedge foreign currency risk on committed
purchases of property, plant and equipment and future
purchases of raw materials. The gain on re-translation of
these bank balances at the foreign exchange rafes ruling af
the balance sheet date is included in other comprehensive
income.

R-EBE-——H=A=+—H A%£H
RARBRE TR ARSFEZET
WITHEF A H£5934007w (= F
——% : 33,630,0007T) EEAEL
HEARBEYNE BERRBELA
BEBERMZIMERR - HEEHZ
EXRBHHBFRITEFZIWREEFA
Hip 2w o
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.
18 Bank deposits and cash and cash 18 SRITHERMEIFERITLHE
equivalents (Coninved HIEH @
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) BRT A& A B & E K15
cash generated from operations: RE 2R :
2012 2011
—B——f —T——%F
Note ffzE ~ $000 FIT $'000 Ft
Profit before taxation B % Al & A 408,093 419,261
Adjustments for: A
— Depreciation of property, plant -M% - WEX
and equipment RE2ITE 5lc) 126,682 110,618
— Depreciation of investment properties - IR EWEZITE 5(c) 526 527
— Amortisation of inferests in - BEBELEHERE
leasehold land held for own use fEE R HE T
under operating leases T 2 M 5(c) 891 869
— Amorfisation of infangible assets - B EEZ#IH 5(c) 2,136 2,014
— Reversal of impairment losses - WELRE
on property, plant and equipment B E R 5(c) (132) (1,475)
— Interest on bank loans - RITERFE 5(a) 15,973 5,651
— Finance charges on obligations -HEHEEK 2
under finance leases BBER 5(a) 1,270 1,628
— Interest income - FIEHA 4 (1,806) (1,949)
— Net loss on disposal of property, - HEWE - BERRE
plant and equipment 2R TR 5(c) 1,715 739
— Equity seffled share-based payment — LARR 19 R < R LR
expenses ZEBH 5(b) 4,421 3,200
— Foreign exchange gains - B W (601) (7,482)
Changes in working capital: EEES#EE
— Increase in inventories - FEE (44,629) (55,275)
— Increase in trade and other receivables — [ Y BR 7 K2 H 4t & U F0 1 0 (85,011) (18,104)
— Increase in trade and other payables — — FE 1< BR 50 K2 E A FE A 038 hn 49,116 79,457
— Increase in net employee refirement - BERKNEF B EFEE N
benefit liabilities 51 326
Cash generated from operations KEEBRER® 478,695 540,005

19 Amounts due from/to subsidiaries 19 FEW FEIB B ATIRRIA

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interestfree and have no fixed ferms of repayment. The
balances are expected to be recovered/setiled within one
year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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20 Trade and other payables 20 FEfTRRTR B H fth FE R
The Group The Company
A% A7
2012 2011 2012 2011

—$-=%F ~T 5 —¥--fF T 7
$000 F7 $'000 T7r $000 F7x $'000 it

Trade creditors and bills payable FE{<BR 3R K& FE( 1% 395,230 319,437 239,712 171,082
Accrued expenses and FERTE A R EHA
other payables e 3R 376,688 400,627 105,662 95,439

771,918 720,064 345,374 267,421

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be 7N 5= (B 72 A BT A A PR AR R L At B A
setfled within one year, except for customer deposits TR —FREE  EAEEREAR
amounting to $14,106,000 (2011: $13,817,000) and AP A& 14,106,00070 (=& ——
$13,864,000 (2011: $13,623,000) for the Group and % :13,817,0007T) k13,864,000
the Company respectively which are expected fo be seffled 7T (ZF——%:13,623,0007T) 2
after more than one year. BEPEBITEHRNER —FRER -
The ageing of trade creditors and bills payable as of the REER  EBNERRRENERZE
balance sheet date is as follows: BT
The Group The Company
FEE FAT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—®B-—f —T 4 ZB-"f ~—T &
$'000 ¥ $'000 Fjr  $000 FFT $'000 Tt

By due date LEIEREHE
Due within one month or BHER—EARA

on demand SR B 325,786 277,106 205,171 154,239
Due after one month but FHEA—REAE

within three months BR=EAA 66,969 35,123 34,541 10,577
Due after three months but R A=@EAR

within six months BRANEARA 2,472 5,867 - 5,833
Due over six months EIHAENEA 3 1,341 - 1,333

395,230 319,437 239,712 171,982
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21 Bank loans 21 RITER

At 31st March, 2012, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

R-ZEB-——F=A=+—H" RTE
RARTIIHRERE

The Group The Company
AEHE AaT

2012 2011 2012 2011

—g--F —T——4% %¥B--f —T——%

$’000 F3t $'000 Frr  $000 Fit $'000 Tt
Within one year or on demand  —#WkEER 305358 141,037 50000 - -

After two years but within MEBER

five years AER 79,824 47,766 - 47,766

After five years hFE - 66,234 - 66,234
o 79824 114000 - - 114000

385,182 255,037 50,000 114,000

At 31st March, 2011, certain ifems of property, plant and
equipment with net book values totalling $12,438,000
were pledged against a bank facility granted to the Group.
This bank facility was not utilised at 31st March, 2011.

Certain of the Group’s banking faciliies are subject fo the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's
balance sheet rafios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in nofe
27(b). As at 31st March, 2012 and 2011, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
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22 Obligations under finance leases 22 REHEZEH
At 31st March, 2012, the Group and the Company had R_ZE——_F=A=+—H  x5E
obligations under finance leases repayable as follows: RARRBREBEMEHERBERZER
LENNE
2012 2011
—F-C°F L
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

=EHE REBE SEHE REHEE
HRZBE  AREE RZHRE R ARER
$°000 F5T  $000 Fit $'000 F7r $'000 FiT

(a)  The Group AEME
Within one year  TEW. 3784 . 4609 5225 6,511
After one year but within —F & ER
two years A 1,556 2,155 4,518 5,398
After two years but within MEBER
five years AFR 7,194 8,551 4,299 5,780
After five years TF# - - 4,422 4,892
S 8750 1 10706 13,239 16,070
12,534 15,315 18,464 22,581
Less: Tofal future inferest expenses & : RRF| BB FAHERE (2,781) 4,117)
Present value of lease obligations A& E# 2R E 12,534 18,464
(b)  The Company AR
Within one year  TFN. - - hses 1,530
After one year but within —FRER
woyears MEN - - 733 792
- - 2,096 2,322
Less: Total future interest expenses &l : FRIRFIE & FA1E%E - (2206)
Present value of lease obligations & EH 2R E - 2,096
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23 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of
defined contribution and defined benéfit retirement plans in
and outside Hong Kong.

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans

(] The Group operates a defined contribution refirement
plan, Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff
Provident Fund, which is available for all eligible staff
employed by the Group in Hong Kong and Macau
before 1st August, 2000. The plan is funded by
confributions from employees and the Group, both
of which contribute sums representing 5%—7.5% of
basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited to
members' accounts in accordance with the rules of
the plan. The plan is administered by trustees with the
assets held separately from those of the Group. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer's
contributions after fen completed membership years,
or at an increasing scale of between 50% to Q0%
after completion of five to nine membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not
joining the defined contribution refirement plan are
required to join the Group’s mandatory provident
fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident
fund plan is a defined contribution refirement plan
administered by an independent corporate trustee.
Under the plan, the Group and the employees are
each required to make confributions fo the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000.
Contributions fo the plan vest immediately.

(il  Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the central pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required fo contribute @
certain percentage of employees’ remuneration to
the cenfral pension scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation for the Group with respect to the
centfral pension scheme is the associated required
contribution under the central pension scheme.
Contributions fo the p|on vest immediote|y.

(i)  For employees in Australia, confributions are made
by the Group to a registered superannuation fund
for its employees, at 9% of the employees’ salaries.
The assefs of the scheme are held separately by an
independent administered fund. Confributions fo the
plan vest immediately.
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23 REERAKEF

(a)

AREBEBFEREBAIMNIERZL M
2% T FUE HR N FE R AR KRG
g -

SRERFERINKETE]

] AEER/AER_ZZZTF/\A
—BZAEEEMRFIZERA
SEZAERBIRY AR
EHFORIRE & (Y BIFR &
BMARAABEREE) ° &at
EleEwRBEE RAKEZf#
Ko BHERSBRIES 5%
E7.5% R KB RIEE S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA TR MiEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB - LUBHERE)

23 Employee retirement benefits (Coniinued)

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(iv)

The Group also operates defined contribution
retirement plan for its employees in the United States
of America (“the USA"). The Group is required to
make contributions fo the plan at various applicable
rates of monthly salary that are in accordance with
the local practice and regulations. Where there are
employees who leave prior to vesting fully in the
conmbuﬂons, the forfeited emp|oyer's contributions
shall be used to reduce the future contributions of
the employer. During the year, forfeited confributions
of $47,000 (2011: $103,000) were utilised. At
the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited
contributions which are available fo reduce the
contributions payable in the future years was $73,000
(2011: $28,000).

Defined benefit retirement plans

At 31st March, 2012, the Group and the Company
recognised employee refirement benefit liabilities in respect
of the following employee refirement benefits:

—E——f
$’000 ¥t $'000 FIit

23 EERAKEF =)

(a) SREMRFRAKETE @)

(iv)] AEBETBERINRARE
(TXE]) ZRERIFREHRNK
BIRETE] - NEBZAREE I8
7] R ARG IR T B & 2 % HE R
et EL R - iEE
AREBZEERARER - FUR
Yz 18 = s MR R B &
ZREHEK - FR - AEEBH
BB 47,0007 (ZF——
F:103,0007T) - R&EHEHB -
HE73,000C (ZF——%F:
28,0007T) Z 2 Y K AT AR
MR AR -

(b) REBARIRFTE

RZE——F=ZA=+—H X£EE
RN THE 8 RGN ERE
BiRKEHAEE

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2——F IZ¥-Zf ~—ZT——F

$'000 Ft $'000 Fir

Employee refirement

EERKENAE

benefit liabilities

— refirement gratuities - BRg
(note 23(c)) (F&E23(c)) (1,280) (937) (384) (55)
Employee refirement RERKBENAEE
benefit liabilities
- long service payments - REIRBE
(note 23(d)) (K& 23(d) (948) (1,240) (881) (1,124)
(2,228) (2,177) (1,265) (1,179

Refirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who
have completed a prescribed minimum period of service
and joined the Group before a specific date, are entitled
fo retirement gratuities upon refirement age. The gratuity is
based on the last month's salary and the number of years of
service.

(c) RBRIAKE

AEEERERRFIZBREERGF
BiED—REE ZREHRENETE
HEIZ BUINAARNSEKE - HAEEER
REREAEDERE - SERTRR
Fr<8 A% MRS FEME °
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Coniinued)

(c)

Retirement gratuities (Continued)

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy
Infernational Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the
Plan”), was established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan
is administered by an independent corporate frustee, with
assefs held separately from those of the Group. The Plan is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with
an independent actuary’s recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was af 3 1st March,
2012 and was prepared by qualified staff of HSBC Life
(International) Limited, who are members of the Society
of Actuaries of the United States of America, using the
projected unif credit method. The valuation indicates that the
Group's obligation under this defined benéfit refirement plan
is 84% (2011: 110%) covered by the plan assefs held by

the trustee.

() The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as

23
(c)

EEEAKEN @

BIKE (@)

REERZEAREKL—IHEDTER
FERIRGH S - M HBEREEBRA
AR ERAETE (%8 ) - %t
ERBIOAEERARE  REER
AEB2EENRRE © %t 8lBA
KEIRREABE N 2 ZREL K

Zatl 2 BHBREEEIRN T —=
FZA=+—HRESASRR (H
) BARARZABRBE (RXBERE
EmE2erg8) RABREENER
FETT c ARGEERRAREREZ
REBNENRTEIMBBITZEMEE
F84%(—FT——%F:110%) X5
AR B Z At BIBERIE

[l REERBEXRERZSBEOT :

follows:
The Group The Company
F&EE EaT
2012 2011 2012 2011
-5 —_T—F B _—_T——F
$'000 Fx $'000 F7t $000 F5x& $'000 Fir
Present value of wholly 2HENERELZ
funded obligations RE (91,828) (79,282) (87,725) (76,070)
Fair value of plan assets  FHEIEEZ AR E 76,789 87,035 74,746 84,713
Net unrecognised actuarial KR 2 HEE
losses/[gains) B8, (k) F5E 13,759 (8,690) 12,595 (8,698)
Employee refirement EEIRIK
benefit liabilities BHARE (1,280) (937) (384) (53]

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be
seffled after more than one year. However, it is not
practicable o segregate this amount from the amounts
payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement
benefit entitled by scheme members and future
confributions fo the Plan will also depend on sfaff
turnover and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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23 Employee retirement benefits (conined) 23 ESRAKEF (=)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Confinued) (c) EHRE @)
(i) Plan assets consist of the following: lii) FrEIEE®E
The Group The Company
*&EH AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011

—§-—%F ~T 4 —¥--F T 7%
$°000 F5T  $'000 T7£ $000 Fi $'000 TiT

Equity securities A% AN 75 25 54,290 67,452 52,845 65,653

Bonds &% 11,518 10,357 11,212 10,080

Cash Be 10,981 9,226 10,689 8,980

76,789 87,035 74,746 84,713

(i)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit lii) REEGNEEREZEHNT :
obligations are as follows:

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—f--f —T—4F ZB-=f T
$’000 Fx $'000 F7t $'000 FiT $'000 Frr

At Tst April R A—H (79,282) (72,810) (76,070) (70,141)
Benefits paid by the Plan &t &IE @7 10,303 5,893 10,079 5,682
Current service cost ]RB R KA (4,014) (3,907) (3,811) (3,722)
Interest cost FE A (1,884) (1,817) (1,806) (1,749)
Actuarial losses BEEE (16,951) (6,641) (16,117) 6,140
At 31st March R=A=+—8 (91,828) (79,282) (87,725) (76,070)
(iv]  Movements in fair value of plan assefs are as follows: liv] FTEIBEEZARBEEENT :
The Group The Company
XEE EaT
2012 2011 2012 2011

=F--f T4 ZB-=Zf —T——%F
$’000 F5t $'000 F7t $'000 FiT $'000 Frr

At Tst April REA—AB 87,035 85,541 84,713 83,207
Contributions to the Plan A&t EI1EH 2 3K 1,022 - 816 -
Benefits paid by the Plan &t EIE1& 7 (10,303) (5,893) (10,079) (5,682)
Actuarial expected return  FHEIEEZ EH

on plan assets SEENEE 4,528 4,545 4,449 4,419
Actuarial (losses)/gains ~ ¥H (E518) Wias (5,493) 2,842 (5,153) 2,769
At 31st March R=A=+—H 76,789 87,035 74,746 84,713
The Group expects to pay $1,060,000 confribution AEBEHRNBEE _T—=F=
fo the Plan during the year ended 31st March, 2013 A=1+—BIE-FERZEED
(2011 $Nil). # 31,060,000 ( ZF — —

5 ER) 0

HOMEPRRERRAS —T——/ ——FF#§
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23 Employee retirement benefits (Coniinued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Confinued)

v)

(vi)

23 EERAKEF =)

(c) 3

BIRE @)

Net expenses recognised in the consolidated income (v MEEESERKRER ZFAFR
statement are as follows: U
2012 2011
R —ZE——F
$'000 F3T $'000 Fit
Current service cost BB REKA (4,014) (3,907)
Interest cost F B AR (1,884) (1,817)
Actuarial expected refurn on STEIBEECBE
plan assets S aEIE 4,528 4,545
Net actuarial gains recognised B RS E W H 5 588
(1,365) (591)
The net expenses are recognised in the following line R FHEERGeBEnmixdiR
items in the consolidated income statement: THIBIAMER
2012 2011
T =4
$'000 Fit $'000 F7t
Cost of sales FHE A (637) (130)
Marketing, selling and HE - HER
distribution expenses IHE R (262) (137)
Administrative expenses THER (265) (204)
Other operating expenses H e B A (201) (120)
(1,365) (591)
The actual return on plan assefs of the Group (taking ASEEIEE BRI (5
info account all changes in the fair value of the plan MEt8IBEEARBZMEZE)
assets excluding contributions paid and received) HENBEEM REWHR) RE
was net loss of $965,000 (2011: net gain of BIFE65000 (Z&F——
$7,387,000). F W AJFRE7,387,0007T) ©
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st i RZBE-——F=A=+—HMHK

March, 2012 are as follows:

RzEERERRNOT

The Group and the Company
FRERAAT

2012 2011
—E—=F —E——%F
Discount rate Hrig = 1.00% 2.50%
Expected rate of refurn on FTEIEE 2 R

plan assets [0l ¥ & 5.50% 5.50%
Future salary increases KRR Fr & 1518 5% per annum 3.5% for 2011
—F——F)
4% for
2012 onwards
(ZT—ZFi)

The expected longterm rafe of return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 ARt R BRI MK TH LA

is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the
sum of the refurns on individual asset categories. The
return is based exclusively on historical refurns, without
adjustments.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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23 Employee retirement benefits (conined) 23 ESRAKEF (=)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Confinued) (c) EHRE @)
(vii)  Historical information (vii) &R
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—g--& —T——F Z—Z-TF _—ZTTNE —TE\E
$000 ¥t $'000 Frr  $000 Fxr  $000Fik  §000 Fir

The Group X506
Present value of the defined RERMEMR

benefit obligations ZHE (91,828) (79,282 (72,810 (75,400 [79,545)
Fair value of plan assets HEBEZRARE 76,789 87,035 85,541 65,907 07,684
(Deficit] /surplus in the Plan ZErE (B4 /B (15,039) 7,753 12,731 (9,493) 18,139
Experience adjusiments PR=EaE =L

arising on plan liabilities R EE (636) (126) (779 (100) 2
Experience adjusiments REFHEE

arising on plan assefs ZIEHFEE (5,493) 2,842 21,228 (33,671) 6,605
The Company AL
Present value of the defined RERMEMR

benefit obligations ZHE (87,725) [76,070) [70,141) [72,608) [76,108]
Fair value of plan assets HEBECARE 74,746 84,713 83,207 64,176 95,090
(Deficit)/surplus in the Plan ZatE (Ba) /B (12,979) 8,643 13,066 (8,432 18,082
Experience adjusiments kerdak

arising on plan liabilities ISR (544) 80 (951) (702) (23)
Experience adjusiments REHEEE

arising on plan assefs e R (5,153) 2,769 20,658 (32,775) 6,492

(d) Long service payments (d) RERRBEE

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in cerfain circumstances to certain employees
who have complefed af least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees' final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entilements accrued under the Group’s refirement plans
that are affributable fo contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also
carried out at 31st March, 2012, by qualified staff of
HSBC Life (International) Limited, who are members of the
Society of Actuaries of the United States of America, using
the projected unit credit method.

RIBEE (ERIED)  AEBEAES
TIER T4 1R AR L B EE IR
ELRFZRERAREN —FB
HIE - IAXNZ 2R B FRE KRR
Prdsr e KRB FEEME - WA
£ BUR KT 81T 5 B N AN 5% B A1 1
R MERHEa » AR B RTER T
BEARBBETEMNRSGEERTZ

EHRBEIR_FT—-——_F=H
=t+—BREEASRKE (BER) AR
RAEIZEERBE (RXBEREME
Gg8) RABEEUEERENT
BEAEE -

HPMERRERRAST —T——/ ——FFRH
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23
(d)

24

Employee retirement benefits (coniinved

Long service payments (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheefs are as
follows:

23
(d)

EEEAKEN @

RHIRE £ (@)
NEERBERRZSENT :

The Group The Company
FEE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
-5 —_T—%F B _—_T——%F
$'000 ¥t $'000 Fit $000 F $'000 Fir
Present value of unfunded mEYPEMT
obligations ZIE (1,438) (196) (176) (16)
Net unrecognised RIERIEHE
actuarial losses/(gains) B, (W) F8E 490 (1,044) (705) (1,108)
Emp\oyee retirement B BRIK
benefit liabilities BAaE (948) (1,240) (881) (1,124)

A portion of the above liabilities is expected 1o be seffled
after more than one year. However it is nof pracficable o
segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next
twelve months, as the refirement benefit payable will also
depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial
assumptions.

Equity settled share-based
transactions

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
4th September, 2002 whereby the Directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including Directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of $0.25 each in the Company. The
exercise price of the options is determined by the Direcfors
of the Company and is the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which an opfion must be
held before it can be exercised, but the Directors of the
Company are empowered fo impose at their discretion
any such minimum period at the date of offer. The options
are exercisable for a period not fo exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share in the Company.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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24 Equity settled share-based 24 Uz BARERZRX S
transactions (Continved) (48)

(a) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised (o) REEBZKRERRKRITERBREZ
share options at the balance sheet date are as follows, R RGN T - PR BB AR 1T LARR
whereby all options are setfled by physical delivery of MZEYRWEE
shares:

2012 2011
—g-cf I F
Contractual Remaining Remaining
life of Exercise  contractual ~ Number of  coniracival  Number of
Date of grant  Exercise period options price life options life options
R Hi  BRiEZ HER BkEZ
RHBEH T8 BHEH fTERE  &HEH B  AOFY #A
$ ‘000 FH ‘000 F&
1/4/2003 1/4/2004 10 Z 31/3/2013 10 years F 1.688 1 year 2,382  2years F 2,570
1/4/2004 1/4/2005 0 & 31/3/2014 10 years 1.904  2years & 1,778 3yeors F 2,236
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 10 & 31/5/2015 10 years % 2.375  3years & 1,566 4 years F 2,054
5/6/2006 5/6/2007 to 2 4/6/2016 10 years F 2900  4years 1,410 5yeors F 1,770
18/7,/2007 18/7/2008 to & 17/7/2017 10 years 3.600  5years & 2,260 6 years F 2,408
21/7/2008 21/7/2009 to & 20/7/2018 10 years % 3.820  6years & 2,786 7 years F 2,976
21/7/2009 21/7/201010 & 20/7/2019 10 years F 4580 7 years &£ 3776  8years F 4,024
9/6/2010 9/6/2011 10 & 8/6/2020 10 years F 6.022  8years F 4,628 9 years F 4,724
7/9/2010 7/9/2011 10 & 6/9/2020 10 years % 5942 8years F 2,120 9 years F 2,120
15/6/2011 15/6/2012 10 Z 14/6/2021 10 years F 6.424 9 years & 5,016 - -
8/9/2011 8/9/2012 10 £ 7/9/2021 10 years 6.358  9years F 2,320 - -
30,042 24,882
All the options are exercisable progressively and the AR TITE 2 BRI R THE P18
maximum percentage of the options which may be me mMEERATEEREZBD L
exercised is determined in stages as follows: FRIT
Percentage of
options granted
HEERREZ
Bt
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant B BB R — B F R H g 25%
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant B BT RA S g another 5 25%
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant R B e =B R another 5 25%
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant i BB R B s H A% another 5 25%

HPMERRERRAST —T——/ ——FFRH
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24 Equity settled share-based
transactions (Continved)

24 Ukt BATREREZR S

(%)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) Bl 8B Rn#EFI1TEE
opfions are as follows: N
2012 2011
—B—_5 T
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
INFEE FERRiEZ it B A2
1TEE =] TEfE A
$3T  '000 TRz $T ‘000 Fhk
Outstanding at 1st April R A—H™EAITHE 3.943 24,882 3.185 21,014
Exercised during the year RERTTE 2.656 (1,896) 2.982 (2,164)
Granted during the year REREH 6.403 7,336 5.997 6,844
Forfeited on termination H&BR2mERR
of employment of i F RN I
eligible participants
during the year 4.748 (280) 4.196 (812)
Outstanding at 3 1st March R=ZA=+—HERITE 4.618 30,042 3.943 24,882
Exercisable at 31st March R=A=+—H7A[1TF 14,669 9,623

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was $5.678

(2011: $6.193].

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference fo the fair value of share
opfions granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input info this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated info the binomial lattice model.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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24 Equity settled share-based 24 Uz BARERZRX S
transactions (Coninved) (40
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions  (c) MEREZ A ABRERE (@)
(Continued)
Fair values of share options and assumptions: Bz REMRR
Date of grant
Rt B %
1/4/2003  1/4/2004  1/6/2005 ~ 5/6/2006 18/7/2007 21/7/2008 21/7/2009 9/6/2010 7/9/2010 15/6/2011  8/9/2011
Fair value RirERs
of measurement dofe ~ ZA% 0351 $0.4057m  $0522m  §0.5557m  $0.579;m  $0.507%  §0.4277  $09567  $0.9567T  $0.8957m  $0.6057
Shote pice BB §L60%  SI80F S2075% 20007 $3600% 3BF  SASH0F  $5950% $6080% $6160%  $5.490%
Exercise price 112 & §1.0887  §19047  $23757 29007 $3600T 938207 $4.5807  §6.027  §59427  $6.424T  $6.358T
Expected voloflty EHRE 35% 35% 35% 30% 26% 23% 26% 26% 26% 25% 25%

Epected option Ife ~~ EEERE
ZERE 10yeas® 10veors & 10veas® 10yeors® 10yeas® 10yeas® 10yeas & 10yeors & 10years & 10yeos & 10 yeors §

Expecied dividends ~~ BEIRE 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.00% 7.00% 5.60% 5.60% 5.50% 5.50%
Riskfres inferesi e~ EERFIE 3.91% 3.34% 3.52% 4.69% 4.69% 3.60% 2.19% 2.12% 1.90% 2.04% 1.75%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, TERR IR IR LR IR EE IE - WARERE
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based NFE R B BURROR I8 < (o] 8 H 2
on publicly available information. Expected dividends are T AFE - RERESIRELREE
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective E e MRRAEEBRR2ESHTHAR
inpuf assumptions could materially affect the fair value BZEFAELEERTE -
estimate.
Share options were granted under a service condition. BREERBERBGEMR L - A
This condition has not been taken into account in the grant RUEEMSRE ZAAE (R
date fair value measurement of the services received. There HERER) BAEZREZY - K
were no market conditions associated with the share option B IR A T AP A T IS IR MT o
grants.
. s == =
25 Income tax in the balance sheet 25 BERRRZAFEH
(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable) in the (o) EEBERZEWR
balance sheets represents: (FEft) HREABIEAT -
The Group The Company
F%E F48
2012 2011 2012 2011

—g-—fF —T 4% —¥--F T 7%
$°000 F5T $'000 T7£ $000 Fi $'000 TiT

Provision for Hong Kong REEEBE
Profits Tax for the year AT B (32,190) (19,224) (29,020) (16,681)
Provisional Profits Tax paid B 2 BEFET 15,151 24,368 12,906 21,588
(17,039) 5144  (16,114) 4,907
Taxation outside Hong Kong BB AN & T 18 (8,787) (18,381) - -

(25,826) (13,237) (16,114) 4,907

HPMERRERRAST —T——/ ——FFRH
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25 Income tax in the balance sheet 25 BEEBRRZI/H @
(Continued)

(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable) in the (o) EEEER2EWR
balance sheets represents: (Continued) (FEft) BREABIEMT © ()
Summary S

The Group The Company
FEEH EAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—T—= 25 Z¥-Z —_T—
$’000 F5t $'000 Tt $'000 FiT $'000 7T
Current tax recoverable YR B TR 430 5,438 - 4,907
Current fax payable FEATIRERR IR (26,256) (18,675) (16,114) -
(25,826) (13,237) (16,114) 4,907
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) (Eg ; E{;;Eﬁ*ﬂlﬁéfé/
Hi|) -
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) NEEBBERERZECHBEE,
recognised in the balance sheets and the movements during (BE) RFEAZEFHUWT :
the year are as follows:
The Group REE
Depreciation Fair value
cﬁowonces adjusiment on
in excess Fuve  Employee Withholding  tongjble and
of he related benefit of refirement foxon intangible  Cosh flow
depreciafion fax losses beneffs Provisions ~~~ dlvidends Eosseg hedge Totol
¥
BUEEME  REEEZ &8 ‘ %HZEE/Z _ R% ‘
JIEGHE  ARHE  REN BF  REENE  DABEE REYR &t

§000Fr  $000FT  fo00FmT  $000Fx  $000FE  S000FE  $000FT  $000 F7

Deferred tox arising from:  REILIF&TE
ZBRHE :

At Tst Aprl, 2010 RZZ-ZEMA-A (46,744) 10,541 246 17,087 (3,306) 3,542) - (25718
Exchange adjusiments B A% 369) 25 - 670 - 380) - 54)
(Chor?ed)/credned fo R (0R) /3T A
prof or loss fnote 6lol)  (FiEE6la)) (17,538) 586 (40) 4170 245 420 - [12,157)
Charged fo reserves REHNR - - - - - - 347) (347)
At 31st March, 2011 RZB——5=R=t-0 (64,65 11,152 206 21927 (3,061 (3,502) (347) 38,276)
Derrecioﬁon Fair value
allowances adjustment on
in excess Futore  Employee Withholding tangible and
of the related  benefit of  refirement foxon intangible  Cash flow
depreciafion ~tox losses ~ benefits  Provisions  dividends igs;fsets hedge ~ Others Total
23
RHAEFRE #EHEL fz8 BREEZ Re

JRESHE KRG BAE BeRNE AREEE  XEYH i Bt
§000FT $000FRw §000FT $000FT $000FT $000FT $000FT $000FT §'000 Fi

s
E

Deferred tox arising from:  KEILIT&TE

ZIBEHE:
At st Aprl, 2011 RZF—FNmA-A (64,651 11,152 200 097 (3,061 (3,502 (347) - (38,276)
Exchange adjusimens B A% 3 51 - 402 - 5 - 13) 467
(Charged)/credited to REBE (%) /A
proﬁ't orloss fnote 6la)] — (BizE[a)) (10,182) 6,721 (51) (1,594) (583) 446 - 1,582 (3,661)
Credited fo reserves REETA - - - - - - 343 - 343
At 315t March, 2012 RZF-Z#=fA=1-A (74,801) 17,924 155 20,735 (3,644) 3,061) 4 1569 (41,127)
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25 Income tax in the balance sheet 25 BEBRERZAEH @
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) ERERIELEHRBEERE,
(Continued) (EJ,%) (8B
The Company AT
Depreciation
allowances
in excess  Employee
of the related  retirement Cash flow
depreciation benefits  Provisions hedges Total
BHAMRITE EE HenRE
ZInERHE  BAKER B ik st

$000 F7£ $000 Fr $'000 Fir $'000 Frx $'000 F7

Deferred tax arising from: REUTREZEEHIE

At Tst April, 2010 RZE—TFWA—H (27,834 226 2,427 - (25,181)
(Charged)/credited to iy =k

profit or loss (BR) /ETA (17,335) (37) 1,239 - (16,133)
Charged fo reserves RREENR - - - (347) (347)
At 31st March, 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H (45,169) 189 3,666 (347) (41,661)
At Tst April, 2011 RZE—FWA—H (45,169) 189 3,666 (347) (41,661)
Charged o profit or loss ~ RBz I (10,223) (43) (270) - (10,536)
Credited to reserves iNGLEEPN - - - 343 343
At 31st March, 2012 RZE——%=A=1+—H (55,392) 146 3,396 (4) (51,854)
Reconciliation to the balance sheets EEBERYER

The Group The Company
X5KE EAT]
2012 2011 2012 2011

—§-—fF —T % —¥--F T 7%
$°000 F35T $'000 T7£ $000 Fi $'000 FiT

Net deferred tax assets REEBERER

recognised in the ZIEIETRIE

balance sheets BEFE 17,957 11,805 - -
Net deferred tax liabilities REEBERER

recognised in the ZIEIETRIE

balance sheets BEFE (59,084) (50,081) (51,854) (41,661)

(41,127) (38,276) (51,854) (41,661)
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25

(c)

26
(a)

Income tax in the balance sheet
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy sef out in nofe
1(g), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of tax losses of $440,852,000 (2011
$426,816,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be ufilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entfities.

Included in unrecognised tox losses is an amount
of $35,382,000 (2011: $19,259,000]) and
$394,115,000 (2011: $396,205,000) which can
be carried forward up to five years and twenty years
respectively from the year in which the loss originated.
The remaining balance of $11,355,000 (2011
$11,352,000) does not expire under current tax
legislation.

Capital, reserves and dividends

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group's consolidated
equity is sef out in the consolidated stafement of changes in
equity. Defails of the changes in the Company's individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are sef out below:

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12

25

(c)

26
(a)

BEEERERZHAEHR @

RERZELERAEE

BAR M SE () T & 2 & 5 K
NEE Y E®ER FEA@%%&EEE
440,852,000 ( = & — — F:
426,816,0007T) Zukfﬁlﬁﬁﬁ '
FREREMEREEBEERER
AN K AT BE BE A R R R AR A3 g ) DA B 35
BREA -

2

R e RIS B 1B B A 35,382,000
T(ZF —— % QQSQOOOTE)
5394,115,0007T ( = & — — F:
396,205,0007T) # Al 9 5l B & 18
EfREZBEREZAFR_T%F-
H 11,355,000 (ZF ——%F:
11,352,0007) RBEETSRIER
TIBORER °

BX - ERIRE
RERARRE 22

ALK ”A%\%mW%fZEWﬁ
FREBZHEHNGRERRT

&K o AN TIE\JZHEZ*M REA
RERZEFHFELT
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends 26 &% - EERERE @

(Continued)

(@) Movements in components of equity (Coniinued) (o) FREZRAARL D 2 E B ()

The Company VNN
Capital Share-based
Share Share redemption ~ Capitl ~ General compensafion  Hedging  Retained Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits equity
&% RiyER

k% RbEE  WORE  A4HE  -REE  BREE  HOEE  RERN BRER
Noe i $000F7 $000F7T $000F $000Fx $000Fx $000FZ $000Fr $000FT $000F7

Balance ot 15t April, 2010 R-F-S4MA-BER 254,422 331778 1,101 71,481 2,201 7,104 - 474309 1,142,476
Changes in equity for the year: FERZRREY:

Transfer from capill reserve fo BERRRER

relained profis ERBEN 26(d]ji - - - 4,087) - - - 4087 -
Shares issued on exercise of stiriERE

shore opfions MEIRA 26(c)ii 541 5,908 - - - - - - 6,449
Transfer from share-bosed compensafion $t{TEERIEM &

reserve fo share premium on exercise  RIVERHEE(E

of share opfions ERZREE 26(c)ii - 1,087 - - - 1,087) - - -
Equiy seffled shorebased tronsactions — RIARFERZ XS - - - - - 3,200 - - 3,200
Final dividend approved in respect ~ BtEBR E—FF

of he previous year LREBRE 260l - - - - - - - (136,506 (136,500)
Speciol dividend approved in respect SRR L5

of the previous year ZHHIRE 26{blji - - - - - - - [101,870)  (101,870)
Interim dividend declored in respect  ERAEE

of he current year hERE 260 - - - - - - - (32603 (32,603
Totol comprehensive income for the year AFFE2AUHERE 9 - - - - - - 1758 252554 254,312
Balance af 315t March, 2011 R=F--£ZR=t+-B5H 254963 338773 1,101 67,394 2,261 9217 1758 459991 1135458
Balance at 15t April, 2011 R=§--EMA-B5H 254963 338,773 1,101 67,394 2,261 9217 1758 459,991 1,135,458
Changes in equity for the year: REEZRREY:
Transfer from capital reserve fo BERRRER

refained profis ERBET 20(dli) - - - 4,087) - - - 4,087 -
Shares issued on exercise of ATERE

share opfions MEIRA 26(c)lii 474 4,556 - - - - - - 5,030
Transfer fiom share'bosed compensafion 5176 RIEME

reserve fo share premium on exercise  RIVERHER(E

of share options EEEROEE 26(c/f - 937 - - - 937) - - -
Equiy sefled shorebased fransactions MR ARFERZZ 5 - - - - - 4421 - - 440
Final dividend approved in respect 88 R

of the previous year JRERE 20(blli] - - - - - - - (154267) (154,267
Interim dividend declored in respect  ERAFE

of he current year JRERE 26(blli - - - - - - - (32,695 (32,695
Totol comprehensive income for the year AFFERAYHER 9 - - - - - - (1739) 290,686 288,947
Balance f 315t March, 2012 RZF-Z£ZR=t+-B5H 255437 344,266 1,101 63,307 2,261 12,701 19 567,802 1,246,894
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends
(Continued)

(b) Dividends

[ Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

26 X - fEERER @

(b) KB
I BNFAARBREREAZES

Company attributable to the year ERE
2012 2011
—E-=fF —T——%F
$'000 it $'000 F7t
Interim dividend declared and BEERRE X F RS
paid of 3.2 cents per ordinary TR AR 3. 21
share [2011: 3.2 cents per —E——5F: G
ordinary share) AR 3.211) 32,695 32,603
Final dividend proposed after REH BEFUR AR 8
the balance sheet date of FRERRI15.) ﬂﬂ
15.1 cents per ordinary share (ZZ2——%: §K
(20171: 15.1 cenfs per ordinary &R 15.1 ﬂﬂ)
share) 154,389 153,998
187,084 186,601

The final dividend proposed affer the balance sheet
date is based on 1,022,441,500 ordinary shares
(2011: 1,019,851,500 ordinary shares), being the
fotal number of issued shares af the date of approval
of the financial statements.

The final dividend proposed affer the balance sheet
date has not been recognised as liabilities at the
balance sheet date.

[ij  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company affributable to the previous financial year,

RAEE B RER 2RI B TR
HEMBRRE R E?ﬁ‘ﬁﬂxf\ﬁ@
£01,022,441,500 & @ik (=
g —— $ 1,019,85] , 500 %
i) FHE -

RAEE BRRUR 2 KRR B4
BRI KRERFAILE -

(i) BRE-—FERFE ARANEFE
AR FARRBEREA

approved and paid during the year ZRB
2012 2011
—B-CF —T——F
$'000 F3T $'000 F7t
Final dividend in respect of the B E—BBEFER
previous financial year, WRANF Z A
approved and paid during RS 2 REARR R
the year,of 15.1 cents per FRE B 15110
ordinary share (2011: —E——fF
13.4 cents per ordinary share) SR TR 13.410) 154,267 136,506
Special dividend in respect of the J;EAL*WBZEH*
previous financial year, WRAF A
approved and paid during RS 2 BRIl R
the year, of Nil cents per FREBRZ
ordinary share (2011: (*2**5
10.0 cents per ordinary share) BEE 10.01) - 101,870
154,267 238,376

The final dividend approved and paid during the
year is based on the fotal number of issued shares af
the date of Annual General Meeting.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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26 X - fEERER @

26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(Continued)
(c) Share capital (c) A
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEERDEBITERR
2012 2011
—B-CF —E——fF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
[ &8 et o]
‘000 FH  $°000 FiT ‘000 FH&  $'000 Fr
Authorised: EERA -
Ordinary shares of $0.25 each  SREEO0.25 L2 L@ 3,200,000 800,000 3,200,000 800,000
Ordinary shares, issued EETRESE
and fully paid: BB -
At st April RIUA—H 1,019,852 254,963 1,017,688 254,422
Shares issued on exercise BMITE AR
of share options 31T 1,896 474 2,164 541
At 31st March R=ZA=+—H 1,021,748 255,437 1,019,852 254 963

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive B Z A AR TR Z &
dividends as declared from time fo time and are enfitled B UARARFAzZRE Lt &Rk
fo one vote per share af meetings of the Company. All NER—EREE - LARF Z R
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s BEME @ MBS BRKRERRSERN -
residual assets.

o

RIBERETEIRITZRG

(ii)  Shares issued under share option schemes (ii)

During the vyear, options were exercised to subscribe
for 1,896,000 (2011: 2,164,000) ordinary shares in
the Company. The net consideration was $5,030,000
(2011: $6,449,000) of which $474,000 (2011:
$541,000) was credited to share capital and the balance
of $4,556,000 (2011: $5,908,000) was credited to the
share premium account. An amount of $937,000 (2011:
$1,087,000) has been transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the accounting policy sef out in note 1(p)
(iv).

FR ARBARAEARK
1,896,000/ ( = & — — £
2,164,0008%) 2 BREREITRE - £
8% % /5,030,000 (=& — —
F:6,449,0007T) - H 474,000
T (ZZF——%:541,0007T) & #
AR A - H#:4,556,0007T (=&
—— % :5,908,0007T) Bl AR5
HERR 937,000 (Z T ——%F:
1,087,0007T) 2 SKIESRIFFIFE 1(p)
(iv] T2 &5t BOR B B R B
BEBERMEER -

HPMERRERRAST —T——/ ——FFRH
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(d)
()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capifal redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994,
the Company disposed of a property fo a former subsidiary
and consideration was received in the form of cash and
another property. A tofal gain, representing the difference
between the historical carrying value of the property
disposed of and the fair value of the consideration received,
resulted.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into
realised and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount
of cash and the fair value of the property received (“the
property”]. The unrealised gain was taken to capital reserve
and is realised on depreciation of the property. During the
year, $4,087,000 (2011: $4,087,000) was transferred

from capital reserve fo retained profifs.

Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy
(Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company and Vitasoja
(Macau) Limitada in accordance with regulations in the PRC
and Macau respectively.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
stafements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the
foreign exchange differences arising from translation
of monefary items that in substance form part of the net
investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy sef out
in nofe T{u).

Share-based compensation reserve

Sharebased compensation reserve comprises the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
opfions granted to employees of the Group or the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(p(iv).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12

26 BX - HEEERE @

(d)
()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EEzHERAR
ROOREREREE #E

Pinig BN EABRHE 2 A&
AR EE (R A EB) % 48B K& 49H
fFRARE

= NG

ERAEBER - NTF - AETZ
Bz — 8t - ANRAE—E A B
AEHE—EYE  KENAREES
—IEMEXAN o BULEL A - Bl
PO EMERELFREERSWRER
RfEZER -

ZERGZWRBBEWHEEME
(TW%]) AaEZiln REER
RAREHRA D - REBYEEHAE
AR AR EMRTERER -
RER » 4,087,000 (ZF——4%F :
4,087,0007T) BEARBEREER

B -
B

EsrEEEIRYIEM OL) REAK
BRAT MM CRF) BRAR
BIRIR T Bl KR P2 APIRRAL ©

#t
g

BE 5 it

ERFEESRETBUIIMNER Z K
BRI ZMBRREEZMEERZE
BMLBEREMIMR ZMBREE
ERRREFE MO CEBREE
HEZERER - ZREEBHRBEMEE ()
PREl < St R ERIE -

It ERmERE

BOERBEREESRTASEL
ARAEEBZER KA M ARITER
gz R AfE - BEBEBETREN
At 1plliv) P& Bt DA R 1 A 28 2 19 5%
Rz SRR MR -
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends

(d)
(vi

(e)

(f

(Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continved)
Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in nofe

1(s).
Distributability of reserves

At 31st March, 2012, the amounts of reserves available
for distribution o equity shareholders of the Company are

$570,063,000 (2011: $462,252,000).

After the balance sheet date, the Direcfors proposed a final
dividend of 15.1 cents per ordinary share (2011: 15.1
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $154,389,000
(2011: $153,998,000]. This dividend has not been

recognised as liabilities af the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to confinue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages ifs
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a debtto-adjusted capital
rafio. For this purpose, the Group defines debt as the fotal
of bank loans and obligations under finance leases, and
adjusted capital as all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2012, the Group's strategy was changed from
2011, which was to maintain the debtto-adjusted capital
ratio below 30% (201 1: maintained below 25%). In order
fo maintain or adjust the rafio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
refumn capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or
sell assets to reduce debt.

26 BX - HEEERE @

(d) fE#Ez

(vi)

(e)

(f)

TE N AZE (@)
a1

R ERBERRFERREME
1(s) PrEEA IR & R B £ R 2 B FT IR
REREPREREZHHPTAZA
RERFFEH 2 BERED

AR kfE

RZE—ZF=ZA=+—0 " Af#tH
KT ARRBREREAZFHHEER
/570,063,0007T ( Z & — — F:
462,252,0007T) °

REERRE EFERRERAR
EEREBRISIW(ZE ——
FrEBRE®EBISIMN S & H
51543800007 ( = & — — 4 :
153,998,00070) - BRI B R4 HE
ERERE

AEEEEREARZEZRERRE
EAREEERFELENED  BBK
7 om N AR5 B0 (B AR AT 10 B2 TR B AR TR Y
IKFERIREERASHERE @ FEHEE
B SBCR IR B3R M A H N &5 48
A LTRM M

A% BT R Y A AR BRI
SREIE - RS B E R
7 AT B AN
3% BIREE R ARG 18 - 3 R BAE
R A AR R -

REZNED  AEBELAEHEH
BEARL RIEREEEEARRB 2 E
EoptBE  ARERBERTES
RUTERLBEMEGH AR &
F B E AN R 2 P A AR AR 17 TR 3F
RETEZEEE -

RZE——F AEEF_ZT—F
FIAERE SRR - B AEYHEHABRER
LR G EHR IO AT (T ——4F
HEIFTR 25%LAT) - BIRFBAREH
tb& s REBREHBERBRIRNS 2
BEESHE - BITHRG - MREER
BEAR EZEHMEEMRERNHEEEN
BIREE -

HPMERRERRAST —T——/ ——FFRH
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends 26 &% - EERERE @

(Continued)
(f) Capital management (Continved) il BXEE @)

The debttoadjusted equity ratio at 31st March, 2012 and RZE—ZFR_F——F= A

2011 was as follows: =t+—BrZABEHKRABRERLEND

T
The Group The Company
*&EH AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011

—§-—%F ~T 4% —¥--F T 7%
$°000 F5T  $'000 T7L $000 Fi $'000 TiT

Current liabilities: REEIE -
Bank loans [note 21) RITER (MIEE21) 305,358 141,037 50,000 -
Obligations under finance MEHEZ BB

leases (note 22) (Bt5E22) 3,784 5,225 - 1,363
.. 809042 146,262 50000 .. 1,363
Non-current liabilities: FERERIE -
Bank loans (note 21) SRITER (MIzE21) 79,824 114,000 - 114,000
Obligations under finance BMEME B

leases (note 22) (FIzE22) 8,750 13,239 - 733
L 88,574 127,239 - 114733
Total debt BREE 397,716 273,501 50,000 116,096
Total equity iR RR 1,678,340 1,589,721 1,246,894 1,135,458
Less: Proposed dividends B BRI

[note 26(b)(i)) (M3 20(b)(i)) (154,389) (153,998) (154,389) (153,998)

Adjusted capital HRRER 1,523,951 1,435,723 1,092,505 Q81,460
Debt-to-adjusted equity ratio BB EREERILE 26% 19% 5% 12%
Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to AEBEETRITEEATARH &
fulfilment of covenants which include maintaining the debt REEBABERLRGERN —TH
toequity rafio below a certain amount and mainfaining the BT RSHERE L RERFR —F
inferest coverage rafio above a certain amount. Except for HEE o BRA RTINS - RRAF R
the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries HAE (eIt 8 22 B L 48 2R 38 < 51 3D bt A
are subject to externally imposed capital requirements. ZEBIRE °
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27 Financial risk management and fair

(a)

values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rafe and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposures fo these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily affributable to trade
and ofher receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The credit terms given fo the customers vary and are
generally based on the financial strength of the individual
customer. In order fo effectively manage the credit risks
associated with customers, credit evaluations of customers
are performed periodically. Trade receivables are due
within 30 to Q0 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At the
balance sheet date, 14.6% (2011: 15.0%) and 47.1%
(201 1: 43.4%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
cusfomers respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group fo credit risk. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Company as sef ouf in note 29,
the Company does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Company fo credit risk.

The Group’s bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are placed with financial institutions with sound credit
rafings, and the management consider the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is low.

The Group's exposure to the credit risk and its policies for
managing such risk were unchanged from 2011.

27 HEEREERARLE

(a)

8 RPET MNEXREEELH
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 BAFHEBEERAALE

values (Confinved) ()
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REVE SR
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEEREREEERATEAARAS 2B
for their own cash management, including the short term 2EE BIEERESABRERIKE
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans fo cover MEANEFRARREARSFTR
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the parent G EHBBE TEEREZ KT - A
company's board when the borrowings exceed cerfain AERRmREESSHE AEB K
predetermined levels of authority. The Group's policy is o RETHERRBDECTENAEST
regularly monitor ifs liquidity requirements and its compliance BN 2 BN - NHERAEE R
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient TERREHERETZ S MMERE
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of RERHZEER  UENEHREE
funding from maijor financial institutions to meet its liquidity HenBELHRE - AEBEE 2R
requirements in the short and long term. The Group's PEcRERIAERFEARR 2 BUER
exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies for managing BT ——FRREARNE -
such risk were unchanged from 2011.
The following table details the remaining confractual maturities TRAVNAEBRARRREER 2
af the balance sheet date of the Group's and the Company's TRABZRTANIHRE -ty
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual BEAGAXRITERSRE (XA
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments AN HNEERIREERRITY
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FIERAEZFE) UERAREB AR
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the RIEAEBEEMRE2XEHHES
Group and the Company can be required fo pay: o
The Group REE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRFRR SR
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1year but 2 years but Balance sheet
Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan ~ More than carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
—ERE —Fik L33 BEAMER
BEX EmER ERER LEE @t ZREE
$'000 F& $'000 Fit $'000 Fx $'000 FT $'000 Fik $000 Fm
2012 g%
Trade and other payables EERREMEMNT  (771,918) - - - (771,918)  (771,918)
Bank loans BRITER (320,895) (5,974) (87,975) - (414,844) (385,182
Obligations under MEMRE
finance leases ZE® (4,609) (2,155) (8,551) - (15,315) (12,534)
(1,097,422) (8,129) (96,526) - (1,202,077) (1,169,634)
2011 —T——f
Trade and other payables R EMEMNR  (720,064) - - - [720,064)  (720,064)
Bank loans RITER (144,710) (1,585 [51,313) (66,835 (264,443)  (255,037)
Obligations under BEME
finance leases ZIEH (6,511) [5,398] [5,780] (4,892 (22,581) (18,464)

(871,285) (6,983) [57,093) [71,727) (1,007,088] (993,565
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 BAFHEBEERAALE

(b)

(c)

values (Confinved| ()
LIqUIdIfy risk (Continued) (b) RBEEREE (&)
The Company VNN
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRFRASRL
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1year but 2 years but Balance sheet
Tyearor lessthan less than ~ More than carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-k —F&E  WEEE BEARR
HEER MER AER nEk @it ZREE
$'000 Ft  $'000 F& §'000 FiL $°000 Fir $°000 Fi $'000 FiT
2012 —g--&
Trade and other payables SRR R EMEMN  (345,374) - - - (345,374)  (345,374)
Bank loans FITER (50,008) - - - (50,008) (50,000)
Amounts due 1o subsidiaries  ERHIBARIZIE (64,850) - - - (64,850) (64,850)
(460,232) - - - (460,232)  (460,224)
2017 2%
Trade and other payables ENERFAREMBRT  (267,421) - - - (267.421)  [267,421)
Bank loans BRITER (1,585) [1,585) [51,313] (66,835 (121,318) (114,000
Amounts due 1o subsidiaries  JERHIBRARIFZIE (67,2706) - - - (67,2706) (67,276)
Obligations under BEHE
finance leases Z2fE% (1,530 [792) - - (2,322) (2,096)
(337,812 (2,377) (51,313 (66,835 (458,337) (450,793
Interest rate risk (c) AIZR
The Group's and the Company’s interest rafe risk arises AEBRARANFRZHERBEEZERE
primarily from interestbearing borrowings. The Group and MEEE AEBRAARERAETE
the Company monitor the level of ifs fixed rate and variable BRZEBEKT - KREERART
rate borrowings. The Group's and the Company's inferest HEREEE 2 MEER N T
rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) 15 o

below.
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 BAFHEBEERAALE

values (Conined) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIZEEPx ()
(i)  Interest rate profile (i) F=BER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRAVNGEE B AREERARF M
Group’s and the Company’s inferestbearing borrowings at BREZNERER
the balance sheet date:
The Group The Company
3@ FAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—8-cf “E—F —F-Cf -
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest Interest
rate Amount ate Amount rate Amount ate Amount
EB% & EERE $8 BB ¢E  EZRAEE £
% $'000 F7 % §000 T % $'000 F% % $000 Fr
Fied rafe borowings: FERE -
Obligations under BERE
finance leases 2EB 7.58 12,534 7.65 18,464 - - 8.00 2,096
Bank loans BOER 5.08 159,969 5.45 86,236 0.82 50,000 - -
172,503 104,700 50,000 2,096
Variable rafe borrowings: FEEE -
Bank loans FOER 6.76 225213 299 168,801 - - 1.39 114,000
Tolal borrowings EERE 397,716 273,501 50,000 116,096
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BUBMEDH
At 31st March, 2012, it is estimated that a general RZE—Z—F=A=+—H " (&7
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in inferest rafes, & LR LﬂA/—FE% 100 1@ %Eﬁ' C 1T
with all other variables held constant, would have FrEEMAEHREZRFTIEZ2BFR
decreased/increased the Group's profit affer taxation and T NEE KRB R N &R E N
refained profits by approximately $1,616,000 (2011: E A 41,616,000 (=
$1,336,000). T——%:1,336,0007T) °
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27 Financial risk management and fair

(c)
(i)

(d)

values (Confinved)

Interest rate risk (Confinued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continved)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after taxation and refained
profits in respect of the exposure fo cash flow inferest rate
risk arising from floating rate instruments held by the Group
af the balance sheet date. The impact on the Group's profit
affer tax and refained profifs is esfimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest
rates. Management assumed that certain inferestbearing
borrowings maturing during the next reporting period will be
rolled over upon the maturing for daily operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings
at fair value through profit or loss, and the Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt
obligation. The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensifive fo any change in market inferest rate. A change
in inferest rafe af the balance sheet date would not affect
profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for

2011.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings which give rise to
receivables, payables, cash balances and obligations
under finance leases that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relafe. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United Stafes
dollars ("USD"), Australian dollars (“AUD"), Euros (“EUR"),
Japanese Yen ("JPY”), Singapore dollars ["SGD") and
Renminbi ("RMB”).

For group entifies whose funcfional currency is Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD"), all sales and purchases are denominated
in either HKD or USD, except for cerfain transactions with
group entities and purchases that are denominated in AUD,
EUR, JPY, SGD and RMB. Given the HKD is pegged to
the USD, management do not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such USD
denominated fransactions. For transactions denominated in
AUD, EUR, JPY, SGD and RMB, since the volume of such
fransactions is not significant, management consider the
exposure to currency risk o be low.
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27 Financial risk management and fair

(d)

values (Confinved)

Currency risk (Confinued)

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency
other than HKD, except for sales made to and purchases
from group entfities and certain borrowings from group
entities that are denominated in HKD, most of the other
transactions are denominated in their functional currencies.

The Group's policies for managing such risk were
unchanged from 2011. During the year ended 31st
March, 2012, the Group uses forward exchange confracts
and bank balances to hedge its currency risk arising from
the purchase of property, plant and equipment and raw
materials that are denominated in foreign currency and
classifies these as cash flow hedges. At 31st March, 2012
the Group and the Company do not have outstanding
forward exchange contracts (201 1: Nil).

At 31st March, 2012, the Group and the Company have
designated certain bank balances that are denominated in
EUR of EUR573,000 (equivalent to $5,934,000) (2011:
EUR2,007,000 (equivalent to $22,211,000) and in RMB
of RMB?,600,000 (equivalent o $11,419,000)) to hedge

its currency risk.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
significant exposure at the balance sheet date to currency
risk arising from recognised assefs or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
fo which they relafe. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from
the franslation of the financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong info the Group's presentation currency
and the exposure arising from the borrowings from group
enfifies that in substance form part of the net investment in
subsidiaries and the bank balances that designated as a
hedge of the Group's and the Company's foreign currency
risk of highly probable forecast fransactions or committed
future transactions are excluded.
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 BAFHEBEERAALE

values (Continved) ()

(d) Currency risk (Coninued) (d) E¥@Ep (@)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥mpAE (&)
The Group AEME

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)
SERRRE (WERHE)
2012 201
c8-z% = E
(1) ER Aub Y 56D HKD RMB UsD EUR AUD PY Nl HKD RMB
b3 B7 A BE §7 % ARE N B &n RE b B OARE
Y00 TR SO00FE S000FR S000FR SO00FE S000FX §000FE $000 T $000 T $000FL §000 Fr $000 T $000 F7 $000 F

Bark deposits and cash FERERS

ard cosh quivlens RRAZERR 1475 107 0w - ugM w0 720 - 155 150 11476
Amounts due fiom/[ol govp B/ (FERS)
compones BATHE 751 - - (19003 59756 505 - 400 - AN AT
Trade and other receivables Ll e - 390 - - 6,012 536 - - - - - - - -
Trade ond oher poycbes CEAREMENR (3360 (158 (58 (6124 Spe 3 (2094 [ fos 4 (19 -
Obligations under finance leases BAME 2 &% - - - - - - - 639) - - - - - -
Nt exposure FEREE (13.936)  (10,117) 1,782 (5,728) 6,024 (3,924) 53,663 6,172) [ 4162 139 506 37,604 699)
The Company xAT
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)
SMERRRE (NE%HE)
201 011
%% -2
UsD ER AUD I 56D RMB USD iR AUD Y 56D RV
i BT iy BE o AR n B o RE %7 ARE
§000 ¥ §000FT $000F7T $000FT §000FT $000FT $000F7T §000Fx $000Fm §000Fr $000Fxk §000 Fr
Bank deposits and cash FrfnaRs
and cash equivalents LREZERR 1,599 16 82 - - 210 7175 - 161 525 11,476
Amounts due from/[to) e/ (FEf)
subsidiaries WERRFE 169,214 - 1,858 - 57,519 59,756 176,003 - 4,106 61,160 (7,.948)
Trade and other receivables - - - - 6,012 - - - - - -
Tiode and oher poyobles M7 mars) (58 (5838) - 303 (s i os) 4] 09 14227)
Obligafions under finance leases - - - - - - 12,09 - - - - -
Net exposure BEBES 8016 (11459 1782 (5838 63531 53663 169572 ) 416 Ll 61666 (699)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SRS
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in TRIWANGEEARNEERTET ¥
the Group's profit affer taxafion and retained profits that ESpNER A St h TR S N
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group £ B I B8 % M) AR B E N 2 BN R
entities have significant exposure at the balance sheet date 8 (BAFEEMBRRESRET
hod changed af that date, assuming all other risk variables BYoptik s - IREBEKEZETY
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the MEER AeERETH A EKER
pegged rate between the HKD and the USD would be ZEMEHMIENERTE -

materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the USD against other currencies.
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 BAFHEBEERAALE

values (Coninued) (%)
(d) Currency risk (Coninued) (d) E¥REk @
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) SRS (8E)
The Group AEE
2012 2011
- —F——F
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ |decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after taxation in foreign  after taxation
exchange and retained exchange  and refained
rates profits rates profits
BB &R F PRI R A
Ex REZHAN Ex RREEF
7/ LF#/ L#/ A/
(F&) (F&%) &) (%)
$000 7T $'000 F7r
usb i 5% (22) 5% (188)
(5)% 22 [5)% 188
EUR BT 5% (427) 5% [5)
(5)% 427 (5)% 5
AUD BT 5% 74 5% 174
(5)% (74) (5)% (174)
JPY HIE 5% (239) 5% (2)
(5)% 239 (5)% 2
SGD KT 5% 252 5% 21
(5)% (252) (5)% (21)
HKD ot 5% (344) 5% 1,592
(5)% 344 (5)% [1,592)
RMB AR 5% 2,240 5% (29)
(5)% (2,240) (5)% 29
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table FPREMZHOMERBTIALERE
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on BUAZBMEEEFEZBRB& G
each of the Group entfifies” profit affer taxafion measured M REFABRTZEXBREREE
in the respective functional currencies, translated into HKD IME2H 2 HBARFTE -

af the exchange rafe ruling af the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes.
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27

values (Conined)
(d) Currency risk (Confinved) (d)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (ii)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group fo foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date,
including infercompany payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong info the Group's presentation currency and the
exposure arising from the borrowings from group entities that
in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries
and the bank balances that are designated as a hedge of
the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly probable forecast
transactions or committed future fransactions. The analysis
has been performed on the same basis for 2011.

(e) Fair values (e)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interestfree and have no fixed repayment terms. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose fair values.

All other financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as ot 31st March,

2012 and 2011.

28 Commitments 28

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March, 2012 not (a)
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

HBRBEERARE
()

EXE M ()
SRS (B)

FRESMIIBREZEHEANE
MAEAEENEEERAZSARE
EEsaBRb s ARERTA &8
BAEERFRAERASERAZ
WEEEBAIN 2 B EZEHNR R
JEUR - DT B REEBREFEIAIN
WEHBARZMBHRRAAEE 2
2IEEMELNEZRE  SERNEY
f 8 A B SR (R ERERR B
Y B AR FREN—#D) ™
EENRERE - RigERESHIAEE
EHRAIEET 2R B A E AHEST
ZARERR 5 2 INERR Z RITAETF M
EEZER  —T——F 2Nk
FRABE AT o

AV

FEUL, FE A5 Y B8 A R R IR R SRR
RENREETEERY - ERUFRK
Fo WBEEHAABZERTKA

FrEEtEmITAZEEmMEREIN -
TR FT——F=A=1+—H
ZRARETEERER -

iR

RZT——F=A=+—8  Kx&§
B E P BE RN EREE BN
T

The Group The Company
XEHE AAT

2012 2011 2012 2011
=B —T——%F% ¥ —T——%F
$’000 ¥t $'000 F7xt $'000 Fi $'000 Fit
Contracted for BERI%) 39,751 261,676 10,205 54,022
Authorised but not contracted for B H#EEIBRETL) 122,886 307,033 84,107 105,937
162,637 568,709 94,312 159,059

As at 31st March, 2012, the Group and the Company are
commifted fo cerfain construction contracts for the acquisition
of plant and machinery and buildings.

RZEBE——F=ZA=+—H XEE
EARRBEBITETWERE « #3 %
BFZEERL -
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28 EIE
(b) R=T—=#=A=+—0  RET

28 Commitments (Continued)

(b) At 31st March, 2012, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

AR ZREHEERREN ZRIE
HERMFR@EWT

The Group NEEH
2012 2011
—F-C-F =T
Factory Factory
machinery machinery
and and
Properties  equipment Properties  equipment
it g TRtes
E/E S RRtE mE &S
$’000 F3T $°000 Fx $'000 F£ $'000 FT
Within one year —F R 43,221 1,306 40,443 1,136
After one year but within —FRE
five years AFA 23,141 1,990 19,578 1,112
After five years HF1% - 83 - -
66,362 3,379 60,021 2,248
The Company b /N
2012 2011
—F—-F =T F
Properties Properties
M mE
$’000 F3iT $'000 F7t
Within one year —FR 12,174 9,333
After one year but within five years —FIRIERFA 2,906 630
15,080 9,963

The Group leases a number of properties and items of
factory machinery and equipment under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to six yedars, with
an option fo renew each lease upon expiry when all ferms
are renegotiated.

Some of the leases of the Group include confingent rentals
determinable at certain fixed rates on the turnover of the
relevant tuck shops in periods in which the leases relafe fo.
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29
(a)

(b)

30

(a)

Contingent liabilities
As at 31st March, 2012, the Company has issued

guarantees fo banks in respect of banking faciliies granted
fo ifs subsidiaries. The Directors do not consider it is
probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the
Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantees
issued is the facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries of

$263,941,000 (2011: $141,037,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and its fransaction price was $Nil (201 1: $Nil).

The Company has given undertakings to certain wholly-
owned subsidiaries to provide them with such financial
assistance as is necessary to maintain them as going
concerns.

Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
info the following material related party transactions.

Transactions with related parties

(] The Group has purchased milk products from
a related party [non-controlling interests of the
Company's subsidiaries| in the PRC. The unit price of
the milk products is pre-defermined in an agreement
enfered into between the Group and the related porty,
and will be revised by reference to the prevailing
market price of similar products in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Total purchases from the related party
amounted to $1,284,000 (2011: $2,081,000)
during the year. The amount due to the related party
as at 31st March, 2012 totalled $48,000 (201 1:
$103,000).

[ij  The products of the Group are distributed in
Australia by a related party (non-controlling interests
of the Company’s subsidiary) and o management
fee is charged for the provision of services. The
management fee is calculated based on a pre-
determined percentage of the gross sales of products
distributed by the related party. Total management
fees charged by the related party for the year
amounted to $26,036,000 (2011: $23,805,000).
The amount due to the related party as at 31st
March, 2012 totalled $6,338,000 (2011:
$6,586,000).

29
(a)

(b)

30

(a)

HABE

R-EBE——"F=A=+—H ' ARQF
ERRTFTEMBRARZRITEE
MRTELER - EFRRAEM
ERMHYARABREBEZHE T
ReREER ARRE#EHZ
RTESABENIHBARABHEZE
§263941,000t (=& — — % :
141,037,0007T) °

MRERZANBEELNENE B
KREBERETL (ZE—F: )
AR R B BB % SRR AR
FEHA o

ARBEAZRET2EMBLRLR
HZ B BUR B AR I S B LS
BAE

TR

EXFAEALRS

GBHMBBRRAZBEREZRH MEH
Sh - REBE RIS A TERBEALT

%5 o
HEEALTZRS

] AEER—2ETEZEEAL
(RRAM B AR FFERR L)
RS - PERM BN
BEE—{DHEAEEEZEEA
TR ZWEPEEEE U e
SERBELPERBEMRZEA
MEELHEE - £/ - [%EE
ALHRBZ EmL(E 1,284,000
T (ZF——%:2081000
) e RZEBE—ZF=A=+—
RREMNZEEAL ZRIBERLR
/48,000 ( = F — — F:
103,0007T) °

i) AEBZEMB —ZBEEAL
(EREIM B ARG 2 IEIERER)
FORMND 3 - ZA TSR AR
WHRERER - BEEAREL
EEsZBEATHIBERBHE
EEZEDLHE - FR - Z
BEATWRzEEEREGH
26,036,000 (=& ——4F:
23,805000L) s R=Z&F — =
FZA=Z+t—HENTZEEA
T 2 RIBHEE A6,338,0007T

—EF——%F :6,586,0007T) °
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30 Material related party transactions

(a)

(b)

31

(a)

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continved)

The above fransactions also constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing rules, in respect of which the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing rules.

30 EXFAEALTRS @

(a)

HRIBE AT 25 (&)
BB FHRAl PR SIS E
BEx5  MAXTINMEEILET -
MRS AAE Y BERTE -

Key management personnel remuneration (b) EAREEAEZME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBBAREBABEZME (B
Group, including amounts paid o the Company's Directors F/TEERAARARESS N 2 HIE
as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid NEMFSEERSE TaaFES
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: S ZFIE) ;T
2012 2011
— —T——F
$’000 Fit $'000 7t
Shortterm employee benefits EHESEN 32,909 32,374
Post-employment benefits BEER 212 T 1,006 875
Equity compensation benefits RN GEEEER 4,266 2,915
38,181 36,164
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). B EFATEIRA] (RHHE
5(b)) »
Equity transactions with 31

non-controlling interests

Acquisition of non-controlling interests of
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang in%) Foods and
Beverage Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Vitasoy”)

On 5th September, 2011, the Group acquired an
additional 15% equity interest in Shenzhen Vitasoy from
Shenzhen GuangMing Group Co., lid. ("Guangming”)
for $75,052,000 in cash, increasing the Group's equity
inferest in Shenzhen Vitasoy from 70% fo 85%. The carrying
amount of Shenzhen Vitasoy's net assets on the date of
acquisition was $198,629,000. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of $29,794,000 and
a decrease in other reserves of $45,258,000.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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31 Equity transactions with 31 ggalzi%ﬂ&ﬁﬁiﬁﬁz*éﬁ

non-controlling interests (Coniinved) X5 (&)

(a) Acquisition of non-controlling interests of
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang in%) Foods and
Beverage Company Limited (“Shenzhen
VifOSO)//) (Continued)

(a) Ul RIILEM (FBR) RamEk
BAERDE (DRI ])
ZIEERER (@)

TR AL B R FE R ATE R A
PR R FE

The following table summarises the effect of the Group's
share of equity interest in Shenzhen Vitasoy during the year:

$'000 Fit
The Group's share of equity interest at the beginning of the year  ZREBRFHIFTIG AR A2 157,455
Effect of increase in the Group's share of equity interest REBAERAERIE N FE 29,794
Effect of dividend declared FIRREZ B (64,710)
Share of total comprehensive income s 2 U e B 5 90,036
The Group's share of equity interest at the end of the year REBRF RGBS 212,575

(b) Partial disposal of equity interest in Vitasoy (b) HEAT (F1L) BRLF
(Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) ([ERILAEfes | ) Z B3R IR
e
On 14th September, 2011, the Group disposed of a R-_E——FNA+TEABE  NEBEMA
15% equity interest in Vitasoy Foshan to Guangming for I & 40,605,000 7T A 3 A & 65 1L
$40,605,000 in cash, decreasing the Group's equity MM 5% IR A M 2 - AR B R
inferest in Vitasoy Foshan from 100% to 85%. The carrying L4 At 2 7 AR AR 25 B 100% 07 2 &=
amount of Vitasoy Foshan's net assets on the date of 85% - B RE  FILEMYFE
disposal was $231,532,000. The Group recognised an EZRBEEA231,532,0007T « N&E
increase in non-controlling interests of $34,730,000 and ) T SR JE ¥ % A 2 42 N 34,730,000
an increase in other reserves of $5,875,000. 7T - EfbEEE N S5,875,000 7T °
The following table summarises the effect of the Group's TSR At A 5= [ 70 A A BT A B LU A
share of equity inferest in Vitasoy Foshan during the year: R AR 2 8
$’000 Fit
The Group's share of equity interest at the beginning of the year A BERFHI A5 AR A 234,556
Effect of decrease in the Group's share of equity interest REBFTHRAEDZ R 2 FE (34,730)
Share of total comprehensive income Frfh2mk =85 (17,530)
The Group's share of equity interest at the end of the year REBNF RGNS 182,296
— y. 2 4
32 Non-adjusting post balance sheet 32 BAEHAEZEHBE
event =]
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Directors EENFEHRERRERPRE -
proposed a final dividend. Further defails are disclosed in HE— BRI 20(b) R EE -

note 26(b).
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33

34

Comparative figures

Certain expenses in the 2010/11 financial statements
have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation fo reflect more appropriately the nature of the
expenses. As a result, “cost of sales” for the year ended
31st March, 2011 increased by $50,569,000 and
"marketing selling and distribution expenses” and “other
operating expenses” for the year ended 31st March,
2011 decreased by $43,205,000 and $7,364,000

respecfively.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective tor the year ended

31st March, 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not vyet effective for the year ended
31st March, 2012 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant o the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers to financial assets

IstJuly, 2011

Amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes — Deferred fax:
Recovery of underlying assets

Tst January, 2012

Amendments to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income

TstJuly, 2012

HKFRS 10, Consolidated
financial statements

Tst January, 2013

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements Tst January, 2013

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests
in other entities

Tst January, 2013

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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34 ERMEHANREE=F

34 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective tor the year ended
3 1st MC"'Ch, 20] 2 (Continued)

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement Tst January, 2013

HKAS 27, Separate
financial statements (2011)

Tst January, 2013

HKAS 28, Investments in
associates and joint ventures

Tst January, 2013

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits Ist January, 2013

HKFRS @, Financial Instruments Tst January, 2015

The revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits, has eliminated
the corridor method and requires all actuarial gains and
losses to be recognised in other comprehensive income as
they occur. It also requires immediate recognition of all past
service costs and has replaced interest cost and expected
refurn on plan assefs with a nef inferest amount that is
calculated by applying the discount rafe to the net defined
benefit asset/liability. The Group has vet to assess the full
impact of the amendments.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of other amendments, new standards and
new inferprefations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's
or the Company’s results of operations and financial
position.

——#=H=+—HIL%E
BAEMZIERT « 5] %8
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RT3 H
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Five Year Summary

A FRIFE:

GE=S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABRERTE)
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
%5 "5 —Z-TF C—ZTNF —TIN\F
$'000 ¥t $'000 Fr $'000 ¥ $'000 Frt $'000 Fit
Results 25
Turnover BERE 3,716,539 3,329,336 3,012,312 2,809,294 2,441,153
Profit from operations | 425,336 426,540 380,181 307,489 300,677
Finance costs AR A (17,243) (7,279 15,222 [6,602) (8,865)
Profit before taxation BREE AR R 408,093 419,261 374,959 300,887 201,812
Income tax FriSH (85,691) (87,882) (74,375) [56,510) (55,831)
Profit for the year AEEEF 322,402 331,379 300,584 244,377 235,981
Attributable fo: JEAG
- Equity shareholders of -ANARRE
the Company BBEA 281,003 284,314 260,459 217,419 211,208
- Non-controlling inferests - IS 41,399 47,065 40,125 26,958 24,773
Profit for the year REZEF 322,402 331,379 300,584 244,377 235,981
Assets and liabilities BERER
Fixed assets BEEE 1,567,010 1,255,743 821,075 798,144 773,943
Other non-current assets HudEREEE 69,941 78,747 73,239 56,698 7,576
Net current assets FREBAE 191,275 434,728 656,597 591,592 706,965
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDER 1,828,226 1,769,218 1,550,911 1,446,434 1,488,484
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (149,886) (179,497) (52,033] (49,437 (64,635
NET ASSETS FEE 1,678,340 1,589,721 1,498,878 1,396,997 1,423,849
Capital and reserves AXRGE
Share capital &N 255,437 254,963 254,422 253,805 252,894
Reserves e 1,238,918 1,160,881 1,104,075 1,033,213 1,052,490
Total equity attributable to ARAIRE
equity shareholders of BB AL
the Company EREE 1,494,355 1,415,844 1,358,497 1,287,018 1,305,384
Non-controlling inferess RS 183,985 173,877 140,381 109,979 118,465
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,678,340 1,589,721 1,498,878 1,396,997 1,423,849
Eamings per share BRAM
- Basic - &K 27.5¢cents fll 279 cents il 25.6 cents fll  21.4 cents il 20.9 cents il
- Diluted -8 273 cents fll 27.6centsfill 254 cents il 21.3 cents Il 20.8 cents i

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2011/12
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www.vitasoy.com
WWwWWw.vitavitasoy.com
www.vitaland.com.hk
www.hkgourmet.com.hk
www.vitasoy-chn.com
WWWw.vitasoy.com.au
Www.vitasoy-usa.com
www.unicurd.com.sg

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
No.1, Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Tel B35 : (852) 2466 0333
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